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El CHHOLZ )
)
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II'linois Pollution Control Board
1021 North Grand Avenue East
Springfield, IL 62702
(Starting tinme of the hearing: 09:59 a.m)
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* * * * * * *x *x * * *x *

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: We'l| go back on
the record. Good norning. M nane is Carol
Webb, and this is the continuation of the
hearing for PCB 22-9, Doug and Geri Boyer
versus MRB Devel opnent, LLC, doi ng business
Copper Fire, Renae and Mark Eichholz. It's
Novenber 6, and we are beginning at 10 a. m

Again, there are no nenbers of the publ

present, but witten public comment nay be

begin with the Conpl ai nant's next w tness.

MR. JACOBER: Thank you. Should we clo
t he door?

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Yeah, if it's
noi sy, feel free to close the door.

MR. JACOBER: For purposes of the recor
Geri Boyer is not here today. M. Boyer was

Is dealing wwth sone health issues. She has

a -- they're not sure what it is yet. | don
think there's a diagnosis yet, no, but a nas
i n her abdonen, and she's in -- she's under

| ot of pain nedication. She was not able to

make the trip today, so her daughter, Becca

filed with the clerk by Novenber 20th. We wll

Boyer, who was a witness, is here in her place
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Page 6
as a representative. And we would call M ke
Biffignani to the stand.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Sir, woul d you

pl ease cone have a seat right here. Up here.

Don't trip over the -- would the court report

pl ease swear in the wtness.

(M ke Biffignani sworn.)
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR JACOBER:

Q Coul d you state your nane for the record?

A M ke Biffignani.

Q Can you spell your |ast nanme for the
record?

A Sure, B, as in Boy, i-f-f-i-g-n-a-n-i.

Q Thank you. You're the president of a
conpany cal |l ed Sondare Acoustics G oup; is that
correct?

A That's is correct.

Q VWhat i s Sondare?

A Sondare is an acoustics consulting conpany
and sone product devel opnent and product testing.

Q |'msorry, say that again?

A Product deadly weaponi ng and product
testing.

Q Ckay. Are you trained in the area of

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
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. Page 7
sound and acoustics?

A Yes.
Q Tel | us about your training.
A | received a naster's in acoustics from

Penn State in 2015 and started the consulting
conpany in 2016, and been doi ng a nunber of
consulting jobs since then.

Q Ckay.

A The product testing |'ve done as far as
sound booths, and |'ve done product testing for
Rawl i ngs Sporting Goods; for baseballs and for
basebal | bats; and | had previously had a test
facility inside ny office on Brentwood, in Brentwod
on Manchester. Wen Covid cane, | don't have the
of fi ce anynore.

Q And that's in St. Louis County?

A Yes.

Q Coul d you speak a little |ouder; I'm
having a hard tine hearing you.

A Sur e.

Q And are you presently enpl oyed?

A Yes.
Q I n what capacities?
A Well, I'"malso an adjunct professor at

Webster University as an acoustics professor.

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179
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Q Ckay.

A And | teach nusical instrunent acoustics
and room acousti cs.

Q kay. And then you also work for Sondare?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. So other than your master's degree
from Penn State, do you have any ot her fornal
education in the acoustics area?

A Not specifically acoustics, but I
graduated with an el ectrical engineering degree from
University of Mssouri-Rolla in 1979, and | took

sone acoustics cl asses then.

Q Do you hold any certifications or
i censes?
A No.
Q Are none necessary in your |line of work?

A Not for the consulting that | do.

Q Are you a nenber of any professional
associ ati ons?

A The Acoustics Society, and |'mthe chair
of the St. Louis chapter of the Acoustics Society.

Q What is the Acoustics Society?

A Well, the national society pronotes
acoustics nationally, education in several of the

commttees, technical commttees. That's

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Transcript Of Proceedings November 06, 2024

nationally. It covers publications. It covers if
soneone wants to wite a book, they can provide peer
reviews. |It's a society of acoustics professionals.
| started the chapter for the St. Louis Society
about five years ago.

Q And to kind of take a step back, what is
acoustics?

A Well, it's a study of sound.

Q You did two sound studies in relation to
this case; is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q They're both in the Boyer |oft |ocated at
208 East Main Street in Belleville?

A That's correct.

Q What is a sound study?

A A sound study can be a lot of things. |
get -- well, in this particular case or in general?

Q Let's speak in general first, and then
we'll tal k about this case.

A | do sound studies for good sound and bad

sound, which is called noise. So to ne, it's all
sound. If it's unwanted sound, it's noise. So, |
can do studies on air-conditioning noise, people
noi se, anything that people don't want to hear. |

can al so do studies on good sound. So room

Page 9
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. Page 10
acoustics for people who want a study. Room

acoustics for hone theaters. Room acoustics for
general conference roons, nmake a room sound better.
So, | do a nunber of studies where | nmay do
anal ytical studies or I nmay do testing in addition
to the analytical studies, and then wite up a
report, make recommendations to people on how to
I nprove whatever problemwe're trying to solve with
sound, and that's the study.

Q Have you received any -- any specific
training in relation to doing sound studies?

A O her than during the naster's progranf?
W did a lot of sound studies to prepare us for
environnental studies. W did outside noise.

Q During your master's program how nuch
training did you do in relation to sound studi es?

A Speci fic sound study? |In the nmaster's
program we woul d take sound readi ngs i ndoors and
outdoors, and then anal yze the sound reading with
anal ytical tools and do frequency anal ysis and then
wite up reports. So, |'d say they were usually
enbedded wthin classes, not a specific sound study
class. So, |I'd say half of the classes included
study and neasurenent of sound.

Q Ckay. How many sound studi es have you

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179
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Q
that is

A

hel p ne

Q

A

conduct ed?

determnation if a sound is a nui sance or an

annoyance versus just a sound --

guidelines that | use locally or nationally that

r easonabl e.

m ght | ook at?

sound levels. N ghttinme neani ng conduci ve to sl eep.

Duration of the sound, the conti nuous noi se. The

Page 11

A hundr ed.

At | east a hundred?

| " m not sure the exact nunber.
More than a hundred?

Coul d be nore than a hundred.
At | east one hundred, though?
At | east.

And you kind of already tal ked about

Unwanted is the term

Unwant ed sound - -

Unwant ed sound i s noi se.

| s part of your analysis whether the sound
being heard is at a reasonable |evel?

Reasonable is so subjective. There are

to determ ne the subjectiveness of

And what are those guidelines that you

The main guideline is daytinme-nighttine

888-893-3767
www.lexitaslegal.com
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. . Page 12
main one that | run across is sleep. Usually the

Wrld Health Organi zation, the EPA's | ocal
ordi nances, usually all agree on about 30 decibels
as a good | evel for sleep.

Q And we' Il play sone sound in a little bit,
but what -- generally speaking, what does 30
deci bel s nmean to us as individual s?

A G ve you an exanpl e?

Q Yeah.

A If we were all quiet in this room it'd be
about -- ny guess w thout a neasure, about 35,
because of the air conditioner noise. But at
nighttinme, the environnent outside is quiet, you
m ght just have the air conditioner or the
refrigerator, real quietest is about 30.

Q Ckay. And when you say "nighttine", what
do you nean by that? When specifically does
nighttine start?

A 7:00 o' clock, 10:00 o'cl ock.

Q So, you tal ked about comrunity guidelines
and national guidelines. Are there any other
gui delines that you kind of rely onin relation to
sound | evel s?

A Well, the first thing | do when |I have a

client is | ask them where do they |ive because the

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
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. . . - . Page 13
gui delines are sonetines specific to the |ocation.

St. Louis County, St. Louis City, Kirkwod, Wbster,
in the St. Louis area, the Illinois EPA or sone of
the local jurisdictions have sound guidelines. So,
It depends on where the person is but they're a
lot -- and nationally, there's US EPA guidelines and
there's World Health Organi zati on gui del i nes.

Q In this case, did you rely on any specific
gui delines in your anal ysis?

A | first |ooked locally at Belleville.
Then | went up to, | think, Mdison County and then
to EPA

Q Ckay.

A Trying to find what guidelines m ght
apply.

Q Ckay. So, we've already tal ked about
30 deci bels or |ess being the recommended | evel for
sl eeping --

A Sl eep.

Q What about for just general living? Are
there different sound | evel s?

A General living during the day? A general
gui del i ne m ght be 45.

Q Ckay. And would that be -- could you

equate that to anything in particular, |Iike as we

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
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. Page 14
are talking or we --
A Tal ki ng, a discussion like this is about
60. So, you can tell if in this roomwe're talking

at 60, if there's activity outside the room
dayti me, you m ght neasure 45. But a normal daytine
I ndoors woul d be about 45.

Q We've already referenced -- I'msorry. It
IS appropriate to ask M. Biffignani expert opinion
guestions now that we've established --

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Yes.
MR. JACOBER: -- his credentials? Thank
you.

Q (By M. Jacober) W' ve already
establ i shed that Sondare was hired to conduct two
sound studies, correct?

A That's correct.

Q And t hose were done on the -- the first
was done on April 23rd and April the 24th of 20217?

A | don't recall the exact dates, but |
think that's correct. April and Novenber,
bel i eve.

Q And if you ook in the book that's in
front of you, if you turn to Exhibit 227

MR, PETRUSKA: Just while he's doing that,

"Il place ny objection to any expert opinion

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
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. . . . Page 15
he has about conpliance with IIlinois EPA from

this report, because it's already ruled on by
the Board as to what is conpliant in Illinois.
But I'll let himtalk about the rest of the
stuff because that's fine.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay. Noted, thank
you.

Q (By M. Jacober) Have you | ooked at your

report?
A Ckay.
Q And it's dated May 5th of 2021, correct?
A Ri ght .
Q s this for sound neasurenents that were

taken on April the 23rd and April the 24th?

A Yes, that's the first one that shows

Friday April 23rd, the band was pl aying. The 24th,

it looks |ike a Saturday, Friday.

Q Ckay. And what did you do as part of this

sound study?

A | set up a sound |evel neter in the

apartnment, away fromthe wall as to not have effects

of the wall. And | turned it on and recorded over a

period of tine.

Q And you did this inside the Boyer's |loft,

correct?

888-893-3767
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Page 16

A That's correct.

Q Where were you when you set up your
equi pnent ?

A Qutside the loft.

Q "' msorry?

A | set up with a tiner, then | left and
then it went on.

Q But where was the sound neter, the
equi pnent set up? Was it right next to the --

A | thought you said where was |, |'msorry.

Q "' msorry?

A | thought you said were was | when --

Q Yeah, | did, so it's a bad question, |
apol ogi ze.

A No problem

Q When did you set up the actual equi prment
in the loft?

A | set up the actual equi pnment away from
the wall, towards the center. | think there's a
small bar -- there's a small bar away fromthe wall.
So, away fromthe bar, that general vicinity.

Q Was it siting on a table or on the ground?

A No, | had a tri pod.

Q Ckay.

A A m crophone on a tripod away fromthe

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
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wal | .

Q And tell us about all the equi pnent that
you used as a part of the sound study.

A | used a calibrated m crophone and a tool
cal | ed Audi otool s that neasures sound | evel over a
period of tine.

Q And this calibrated m crophone, who
calibrated it?

A It's calibrated automatically over -- from

t he manufacturer of the m crophone.

Q And was it -- was it operating wthin
specs - -

A Yes.

Q -- at the tinme you used it? So, you set

up the equi pnent and then you left?

A | left.

Q Wiy did you | eave?

A Because the m crophone is very sensitive.
It will pick up foot fall, pick up ny breathing. It
wi Il pick up anything in the room

Q So, your goal was to make sure it only
pi cked up the sound?

A That's correct.

Q You didn't want to be part of the sound --

A | didn't want to be part of the

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
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. Page 18
sound- noi se problem

Q When you were in the loft, was there nusic
I n Copper Fire playing when you were setting up?

A | don't recall, but I don't -- | don't
recal | .

Q Ckay. Did the equipnent that you set up
record sound in the loft that was com ng from Copper
Fire on Friday night?

A Yes.

Q And what was the decibel |evel that cane
into the Boyer |oft on that Friday evening, and it
| ooks |i ke you neasured the sound | evels on Friday
from3:55 to 4:00, and then again from7:30 to
2:33am 7:30 pm to 2:33 a.m

A |'d have to | ook.

Q That's why | wanted to have the report in
front of you. Take your tinme to look. | don't
expect you to renenber those nunbers.

A Well, | should nention -- to go back to
answer your question, was there nusic playing? The
answer must be no because | neasured the anbient
| evel .

Q Ckay.

A That's usually what | do -- the first

thing | do is before the sound is on, | neasure the

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
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anbient with the source off.
Q | s the anbi ent | evel what you neasured
from3:55 to 4:00 o' cl ock?
A It sounds |Iike | nmeasured anbient |evel
Friday afternoon about 30. And then nighttine
anbi ent, Friday and Saturday night at 1:00 a. m,
whi ch was when it was off -- it was off again; it
was 29.
Q So, wthout the nmusic, at 1:00 o'clock in

the norning, the level was at this 30 or bel ow
deci bels that is ideal for sleep?

A That's correct.

Q And during the day, what did you say it
was ?

A It says | neasured about 30 during the
day, which is very, very quiet. Measured 30 during
t he day.

Q And then you, again, neasured from 7:30
p.m onward on Friday evening, correct?

A That's correct.

Q What were the decibels in the Boyer |oft
at 7:30 p.m on -- in the Boyer |oft on that Friday
eveni ng?

A At 7:30? | -- | don't see a -- let's see.

Q | think it's on page 4 of your report.

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
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) Page 20
A On page 4. On page 4, | seen in the table

Friday night 10:00 p.m \Where do you see a 7:30
measur enment ?

Q That's when you said you neasured the --
at the beginning of the report, you say you neasured
from7:30 -- on Friday night, you neasured from
7:30 p.m to Saturday, 2:33 a.m so l'mtrying to
understand where that's recorded or where that shows
I n your report what those levels were in that tine
peri od?

MR, PETRUSKA: And at this point, |'l]
obj ect --

THE WTNESS: Ckay, | see.

MR. PETRUSKA: It's not in the report.
He' s got sonething on page 5 about his deci bel
levels and it's all during a --

HEARI NG OFFI CER VWEBB: Yeah, | nean, |
don't see anything about 7:30. | nean, unless
you happened to -- in the report, | nean, if
you want to just ask himabout it generally --

MR. JACOBER: Yeah, | nean, the report
says that's when he started reporting.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay.

THE WTNESS: Right. I'mtrying to recall
back. | think | added -- | provided other
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i nformati on showing the tinme period from 7: 30

covering the whole tinme period. Wthin the

report, | just quoted the 10:00 -- pieces of

that, 10:26 to 11:00.

Q (By M. Jacober) Ckay. Let's talk about
what you provided in your report.

A | think |I provided, if | renmenber
correctly, the actual screenshots of the tine period
nmeasurements.

Q Ckay. Let's | ook at page 4.

A | see them now in the back.

Q Let's look at page 4. Let's start there.
At the bottom of page 4, there's a chart, correct?

A That's correct.

Q And what does that chart provide in that

m ddl e col um?

MR, PETRUSKA: At this point, I['"'mgoing to
object to that. | think this is irrelevant
because this is based on the Illinois EPA

standards; and it's already been determ ned
within the standards. |If he wants to talk
about decibel levels, that's on the next page;
but | don't think it's relevant to tal k about
t hese nunbers that are based on the Illinois

EPA st andar ds.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER \\EBB: | understand there

has been a summary judgnent order on that, but

| can't say it's not relevant, so I'mgoing to

overrule that. You can conti nue.
THE WTNESS: Right. The chart in figure

2 just shows the breakdown of the sound | evel

nmeasur es by oct oban.

Q (By M. Jacober) Ckay.

A | nstead of --

Q Expl ain that to us.

A Okay. You can take neasurenents that are
the overall sound |evel that covers all the
frequencies range within the sound. Sonetines
you -- it's beneficial and sonetines it's required,
to neasure the sound | evels by octoban or one-third
octoban, which is even a finer slice of frequencies.
So in this case, | -- since the EPA specified
oct obans, | took the neasurenents and sunmari zed in
this chart in octobans.

Q kay. And what do -- so in the mddle
colum or the colum that starts with loft Friday

night after 10:00 p.m --

A Ri ght .
Q -- paren, db, closed paren, correct?
A Ri ght .
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Q |s that where you're referring to the
di fferent octobans?
A Well, you'll see the first one says "68
deci bel s" for the octoban of 32 hertz.
Q Ckay.
A Which is | ow frequency.
Q So, that would be, like, base in a --
A Very | ow base.
Q Ckay.
A 64 hertz -- | mean, 64 decibels at 63. 38

at 500, which is speech, singing. 1,000 and on up,
you can see the decibel levels for those.
Q So, the octoban frequencies are different
sound, not levels, but different sound frequencies?
A That's correct.
Q And then the decibel, | just want to nake
sure that we understand your chart; the deci bel
|l evels -- so, I'msorry, the octoban frequencies is

what is represented on the very |left colum --

A That's correct.
Q -- of this chart?
A That's just a common -- that's conmmon

oct oban, not specific to EPA
Q Got it. And the deci bel nmeasurenents then

in the next three colums are what was recorded as
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to those frequencies at different tines, correct?
A The next -- skip the mddle colum or skip
t he second col um.
Q Ri ght .
A In the second and third colum is what was

neasured in those octobans frequently ranges.

Q And actually the third and fourth col um,
right?

A Third and fourth colum, yeah, |I'msorry.

Q So, after 10:00 p.m on April the 23rd,
you neasured the octoban frequency of 32 hertz at 68
deci bel |evel s?

A That's correct.

Q | s that conducive to sl eep?

A You -- the 30 decibels that | told you is
conduci ve to sleep would be a deci bel addition of
t hese deci bel [evels.

Q | don't understand what that neans. Can
you explain that?

A Yeah, so if you add up in decibels, which
is a log scaling, these 68, 64, 49, all the way up
to 18?7 |If you add those up, you get a nunber. That
nunber woul d be the nunber that you would use to say
Is it greater or less than 30 decibels. Because the

frequenci es that you hear, you hear sone |ows, sone
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hi ghs, sone m ds, when you add them all up, you get

a certain decibel level and that decibel |evel can
be conducive to sleep or not because it's 30 or
above. If it's not, if it's 30 or below, it is.
But it's an addition of all those |evels.

Q Ckay. Wien you add up the different
oct oban frequency hertz neasurenents from Fri day
ni ght, what is the decibel |evel that was observed
in the Boyer loft on April the 23rd?

A Well, | can't do it in ny head, so if |
didit in areport, that would be neat.

Q Yes.

A Yeah, | did. So, let's see. | have on
the next page, figure 3 from10:26 to 11:00 o' cl ock,

| said the equivalent Ievel is 38 decibels.

Q So, what does the equivalent |evel nean?
A It nmeans that over that tine period from
10:26 to 11:00, | neasured 38 decibels in total. It

consi sts of octoban neasurenents.

Q So, the different octobans, the m crophone
m ght hear them at a higher |evel, but human ears
don't hear them at that higher lever, it's the sound
as a whole --

A No, a human ear would -- the neasurenent

that | took is conducive or simlar to the hunan ear
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i n heari ng.

Q Ckay.

A That's what's the dBA is. The A behind
the DB is the sane as what a human woul d hear

Q kay. And just tal king about the 32 hertz
frequency that's at a 68-deci bel --

A Uh- huh.

Q That doesn't automatically translate into
68 deci bels being heard, is that what |'m
under st andi ng?

A No. It does. To put this as an exanple,
i f you were playing nmusic, you would hear base
| ouder than you would hear in 18 decibels, 8,000
hertz, which is a real high frequency.

Q Ckay.

A So, you woul d hear vocals at about 38, and
the 500 hertz frequency is a lot of tines the sane
as the overall when you add them toget her.

Q Ckay.

A So, you can see that the 500 hertz was 38,
and when | add themall together, it's 38.

Q Ckay. So is 38 decibels conducive to
sl eep?

A No. The nunber | quoted you, 30, is the

overall nunber not broken down by octobans, is

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Transcript Of Proceedings November 06, 2024

. Page 27
conduci ve to sl eep.

Q Ckay. And can you -- we'll play sound --

A Uh- huh.
Q -- eventually, and we'll get it nore
exact, but just in general can you -- can you give

an exanpl e of what 38 decibels sounds like in a
roonf

A An exanple? This roomthat we're -- |I'm
listening to air conditioning. This roomcould be
somewhere between 30 and 40, the roomwe're sitting

in right now.

Q Ckay.
A If we're really, really quiet, the air
condi tioner went off, we m ght neasure 30. |If

there's sonething going on in the hallway that woul d
make it louder, it would push it up towards 40. So,
just to answer the question, if it's really really
qui et and you're ready to sleep and there's no
out si de noi se or other noise on the other side of
the walls or ceiling or anything, it would be about
30. If there's sonething going on, you're going to
pi ck up and get -- approach 40. Daytine is in the
45 range. Speech like this is 60. TV on is, you
know, 65, could be 70. That gives you a general

i dea. See, the sound is not just in the room It's
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what's going on the outside and sound travels

t hrough the duct work from peopl e doing things.

Q And were you able to determine if the
sound that was being heard in the Boyer's |oft was
com ng from Copper Fire?

MR, PETRUSKA: |'Il guess I'll object
because he wasn't there, so he couldn't say
where the sound was actually com ng from

HEARI NG OFFI CER VWEBB: Well, 1'Ill ask for
clarification: would you be able to say?

THE WTNESS: The only thing I would be
able to say -- the m crophone picks up
everything. The only thing I would be able to
say i s, when the nusic stopped, | was picking
up everything, and it was 30. After 1:00
o' clock. That's the only tinme | could get an
anbient reading is after this band stopped.
After the band stopped, | let it run, and at
1:00 o' clock in the norning, it was still
pi cking up everything. It was 30.

Q (By M. Jacober) It was what?

A 30 or 29.

Q Ckay. So the anmbient was only existing
when the band wasn't playi ng?

A So, the only thing I can say is, the
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anbi ent of 29 or 30 was when the band was not

pl aying; and that's representative of other sounds
ot her than a band.
Q Okay. And on Friday you noted that there

was a Six menber acoustic country band; is that

correct?

A | think that's right there in the
begi nni ng.

Q It's on the first page.

A Ri ght .

Q And then Saturday, during the day, there
was a sol o acoustic guitarist, Billy Barnett.

A Ri ght .

Q And then a two-person acoustic band at
3:00 p.m, and a DJ doing an 80s playlist Saturday
eveni ng, correct?

A That's correct.

Q And the sounds Saturday night were just a

little bit |ouder than they were on Friday night,

correct?
A That's correct.
Q One deci bel nore?
A Yeah.
Q | s the deci bel scale just like a |inear

goi ng straight up a scale?
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A It is not. It's a log scale.

Q What does that nean to those of us who
don't have a scientific background.

A Ckay. So, if you -- the definition of a
decibel is if you take the log, if, you know, the
mat henatical log of a ratio of two nunbers. So, the
way it figures the log for sound, you can -- you can
take 10 dogs divided by one dog and take the |og,
you get decibels and dogs. | nean, that's kind of a
silly exanple, but that's decibels is the ratio of
10 times the log of two nunbers. So, you take the
sound pressure |level that the m crophone and the
nmeter neasures, you divide it by a reference, you
take the log tinmes 10 and that's the deci bel neter.

So, the curve of log is this way, not straight

l'i near.
Q Ckay.
A |"mnot sure |I'mgiving you --
Q | think I understand.
A Ckay.
Q But the point being 39 isn't --
A "Il give you anot her exanple: 10 deci bel

change is perceived as tw ce as |oud.
Q Ckay. That's --

A O 10 decibel less is perceived as tw ce
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as quiet.

Q Ckay. So, the difference between 30 and
38 is alnobst twce --

A Al nost, al nost.

Q Al nost twice as |louder. Now, did you
spend tine | ooking generally at the Boyer's | oft
when you were in there?

A O her than it's a very beautiful loft. |
nean, | didn't inspect tables and chairs. | kind of

| ooked at general surroundings to how nuch
absorption and how nuch reflection in general.

Q Ckay. Did you note the brick wall that is
the adjoining wall to the Copper Fire | ocation?

A | noted that there was a brick wall.

Q Ckay. There's been sone talk in this case
about there being holes or gaps in the brick wall.
And you were at the prior hearing, correct?

A That's correct.

Q So, are you famliar wth what |I'm
ref erenci ng?

A Yes, | am

Q Did you notice any gaps that you thought
should be filled in to reduce the sound comng into
t he Boyer loft?

A | did not.
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Q Wul d gaps in the brick cause nore sound

to cone through or I ess sound to cone through?

A This is a question of sound transm ssi on,
SO you can neasure -- observe the structure that
sound has to go through and how nuch sound gets
reduced by going through that structure. You can
cal cul ate that theoretically. 1In the field, it's
usually | ess because there's transm ssion on gaps
and holes and ventilation. So, it's usually a snall
anount of transm ssion loss that's in the field that
equate to the theoretical. But | didn't observe any
one-inch holes or -- which is usually a test that
they would do. You can have a wall; you can neasure
the transm ssion |loss of, |like, a regular office
wal | .  You put a one-inch hole init, and it usually
drops quite a bit. But that's a big, big hole. But
there's always sonething that nakes the field
transm ssion |oss different than the theoretical.
And |'ve | ooked at what the brick would be, and then
| measured what the brick would be, and they nmade
sense.

Q Ckay. Did you, as part of your analysis,
do you have any idea of what the wall is doing to
reduce the anount of sound that's coming into the

Boyer | oft from Copper Fire?
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A Yes.
Q Expl ai n t hat.
A | -- the very first thing | did when |

went to the Boyer loft is |I | ooked between into the

two buildings visually, and | observed what |

t hought was an air space. | thought | observed sone

air space, which gave ne an idea how nuch

transm ssion | oss we m ght be dealing wwth. So, |

t hen assuned by | ooking at the other wall where the
door was, the size of brick. So, | assuned there
m ght be an 8 to 12-inch brick wall at Copper Fire.
| assuned there mght be an 8 to 12 inch space, and
another 8-inch to 12-inch wall. | did a theoretical
calculation, and | canme up wth sonewhere around 55
to 60 decibels transm ssion | oss theoretically.
Theoretical ly?

Uh- huh.

So, does that nean --

It's a very, very good wall.

It's a good wall?

Uh- huh.

It's an old building, right?

> O » O » O » O

But because of the air space, it really
hel ps. 55 deci bels or 60-decibels is a good

trans -- it's a good neans for transm ssion to not
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go through it.

Q So, does that nean if it reduces the
deci bel s being heard in the Boyer |oft by
55 deci bels, that you add the 55 decibels to the
38 deci bel s observed on Friday night, and that gets
you to what the decibel level is inside of Copper
Fire?

A That's directly, yes, and that's what |
did. So, | calculated, to nake it easier, you know,
55 and 40, it is 95. So, | figured the sound nust
be 95 decibels in Copper Fire.

Q kay. How loud is 55 -- I'msorry, is
95 deci bel s?

A Very | oud.

Q Very loud as in -- can you equate it to
sonething that we mght be famliar wth?

A Wll, in aroomlike this, you can't talk
to the person next to you. Can | share ny

experience with hearing 95 in Copper Fire?

Q Yes.
A Ckay, | was | ooking sonewhere to have
lunch. | had in ny mnd that it could be 95. This

was during the day, so | went over and | had | unch
at Copper Fire.
Q Was this on April 24th?
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A | think it was |ater.

Q A later study?

A | think it was. But the nunbers were the
sane. The | ater study.

Q Ckay.

A And the nunbers were the sane in the
McCl ure study, too. The nunbers in the loft, they
were -- all three were the sane.

Q Ckay.

A So, | went and had | unch at Copper Fire,
and the nmusic was very loud. It was during the day.

Q This is on a Saturday?

A This is a Sunday afternoon.
Q Ckay.
A So, | said, this is very loud. | had a

hard tinme ordering food fromthe waitress. She was
inny ear; | was in her ear. | was about -- | don't
know four or five tables back, kind of in the
mddle, and it was very |loud. And, so, | took out
ny phone, which has a sound pressure neter on it.
It's not the same as the neters that | use, but it
gives ne an idea. It was around 95, 96 deci bels.

So, imediately, | said that equates to what | just
told you theoretically, of 95, 55, and we're getting

40 in the loft. So, it was a quick way for ne to
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ki nd of gauge where ny theoretical calculations
were. The McCure study said the exact sane thing.

Q Were you there eating |lunch by yoursel f?

A Yes.

Q | f you had been there with a guest, would
you have been able to talk across the table to a
guest ?

A No. | observed a couple across the table
at another table, they were |i ke up against each
other. 95 is very |oud.

Q ls --

A The food was good.

Q Good. Is it rock concert |oud?

A Vell, | just had an experience. | went to

the Billy Joel-Sting concert, and |I'm al ways curi ous
about sound levels. So, ny famly and peopl e put up
Wi th ny nmeasuring sound everywhere. And, so, | was
about 12 rows back fromthe sound speakers at the
Billy Joel concert, and | neasured 95 to
100 deci bel s.

Q And where was that concert hel d?

A Busch Stadi um

Q Ckay. |t was outside?
A | was outside, but | was very close to the
speakers. | was 12 rows back.
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Ckay.

A big set of speakers. It was | oud.

O » O

And you couldn't speak to soneone --

A | couldn't speak to ny daughter. That's a
ref erence.

Q You woul d have to get to their ear --

A You could screamin their ear.

Q Ckay. |Is there an inpact or an effect --
strike that. |Is there a difference in the inpact on
our ability as humans to hear sound, but not let it
di sturb what we're doing as it -- between anbient
noi se and ot her noise, like nusic or a TV or
sonething like that? Does that question nmake sense,
first of all?

A It's kind of an acoustics psychol ogi cal
guestion, because you mght -- | mght be doing
sonet hi ng and have nmusic going on and it doesn't
bot her ne. You m ght have nusic on while you're
doing sonething and it really bothers you. |It's
subj ecti ve.

Q So, it depends on the person?

A It depends on the person. Sone people
i ke to study and do honewor k and have nusic on;
sone people can't. It's so -- it's so subjective.

Q | think you' ve already testified, MKke,
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t hat when you neasured the anbi ent noi se both during

the day and then at 1:00 o' clock in the norning in

the Boyer loft, did you characterize it as very

qui et ?
A It was very quiet.
Q Li ke any other honme would be that isn't

| ocated on a busy commercial street?

A It was quieter than a ot that | neasure,
because | have to neasure anbient a | ot for people
trying -- wanting to sleep. Sonetines you can't get
to 30 or 29, so | thought it was very good.

Q So, given the level of decibels that you
read -- that you -- that you recorded on Friday at
10:26 to 11: 00 p.m then Saturday at 10:00 p.m to
11: 25, those levels are above what it is recomended
for sleep, correct?

A That's correct.

Q Wuld it be difficult for a normal person
to fall asleep with the sound at that |evel ?

MR, PETRUSKA: [|'Il object as what
constitutes normal person.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: | didn't hear you,
sorry.

MR, PETRUSKA: | would object as to what

constitutes a normal person. W already had

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Transcript Of Proceedings November 06, 2024

. . . ) ) Page 39
evidence in this case of a police officer who

said he needs noise to sleep. People have
noi se makers to help themthensel ves sl eep.
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: | understand. |'I]
overrule it. You can give your opinion.
THE WTNESS: It's subjective. | don't
think I could say.

Q (By M. Jacober) But it is over the
suggested | evel ?

A That's correct. There's -- | didn't
I nclude them but there are a |ot of studies that
|'ve read, especially from health organi zati ons, you
know, howit's -- howit doesn't pronpte good health
to not sleep, so a good sleep requires quiet.
There's a ot of comunity standards fromthe world
on down that state that.

Q And regardl ess of the decibel level, if
sound is just persistent, can that cause an
additional level of difficulty in sleeping or
difficulty in enjoying day-to-day activities?

A The repetitiveness and the conti nuousness
can. A lot of the ordinances that | deal with talk
about the duration of tine that a | evel can be
tolerated at, and then the duration decreases the

| evel s, the tolerance changes. So, a real quick
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burst out in the hallway, we can tolerate. But a

conti nuous noi se out in the hallway, you can't
tolerate. The OSHA gui delines tal k about exposure
to certain levels during the day for eight hours.
So, there's a lot of studies about the duration of
sound.

Q And, again, you -- based on your
observations of being in Copper Fire, you and then
your sound neasurenents as well, you estimate you
observed the sound in Copper Fire to be at about 94,

95 deci bel s?

A That's correct.
Q In that general range?
A Uh- huh.

Q Are you okay with us playing sound at that
| evel , because | can have a -- he can do his
measurenent to nmake sure we get it up to that, but |
don't know if you need it --

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: | don't

necessarily -- | nmean, the board nenbers are

going to be deciding this case. |'mnot sure,

are you -- is this sonething you're going to
offer into evidence?
MR. JACOBER: | was going to offer it as a

denonstrati ve.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Were you going to

file it with the Board, |ike on a disk or
sonet hing, el ectronically.

MR. JACOBER: | hadn't anticipated -- |
can do that certainly. It's the -- it's the
sound level that's a problem because nost, you
know, conputer speakers isn't going to get to
95 deci bel levels. That's why | brought this
big --

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: | nean, if it's
just nme, you know, the Board is not going to
hear it, there's not really any point in
playing it for ne.

MR. JACOBER: Understood, and | don't
think with the way it's being recorded that, it
woul d be --

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Yeah.

MR. JACOBER: And | don't want to bl ow
everyone's ears out either, but 95 decibels
sounds pretty loud. Now, in addition to
nmeasuring the sound --

THE W TNESS: Uh- huh.

Q (By M. Jacober) -- you were asked to
provi de an opinion, forman opinion, as to how the

sound coul d be reduced inside of the Boyer |oft,
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correct?

A That's correct.

Q Ckay. Do you have an opinion on that?

A My opinion is that to reduce the sound
bet ween Copper Fire and the Boyer's |oft, you need
to add nass to the structure. To give you an
exanple, to reduce -- if you doubled the nass, if
you added anot her eight-inch brick and another air
space, if you doubled it, you would get a | ot of
reduction, obviously. But you can't do that. |It's
al ready a good 55, 60-decibel reduction. So, | was

| ooking for ways to add nass that mght add a little
bit of help, and | offered nass-|oaded vinyl, but
there aren't very many things that are mass, right,
that would add a |lot. Even a mass-| oaded vi nyl
would -- what | was |ooking at is you need

10 decibels to get from40 to 30.

Q And what woul d be the best way to reduce
the sound that's heard in the Boyer |oft by
10 deci bel s?

A | cane to the conclusion since the wall is
good and since the options of addi ng nass on either
side is not going to get you nuch, not going to get
you 10, turn it down 10 deci bels at the source.

Q It's that sinple?
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A It's that sinple. You |ook at the

bl ocki ng mechani sm you | ook at what it is over
here, and there's not nmuch you can do, so you j ust
| ook at the source of the sound, in this case, the
percei ved noise, and you turn it down 10 deci bel s.

Q So, instead of 95, you have it at --

A 85 mnus 55, and you would be at 30 in the
loft. It's that sinple.

Q How | oud is 85? Can you equate that to

sonething that we would be famliar wth?

A It's still a | oud band.

Q Maybe not a |live rock show at Busch
St adi um - -

A Ri ght.

Q But it's still --

A It's |ive nusic.

Q It's still live nusic?

A Sur e.

Q Whul d doi ng any work inside of the Boyer
| oft allow you to reduce the sound level that's
heard inside the loft by 10 deci bel s?

A Not really. Because in acoustics, it's
t he sane question about what could you do in Copper
Fire, what could you do to absorb? The sound

bet ween the source and the receiver in this case i s
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the massey wall. So, if you put absorption panels

in either place, you can maybe absorb a little but
you're not going to block the sound from one pl ace
to the other. It's the mass of the wall, the

dividing wall. So, the answer is, you're going to
get nuch by absorption panels or you're just going

to make it a little bit quieter.

Q You were in Copper Fire, correct?
A Uh- huh
Q Did you notice any sound absorption or

sound deadening material in Cotton Fire when --

A | didn't observe any.

Q kay. |Is there anything that Copper Fire
could do and -- strike that. |Is it better to have
the sound absorption or the sound deadening at the
source of the sound as opposed to where the sound is

bei ng heard on the other side of the wall?

A The area of the source sound can get the
nost reduction then -- but, again, a couple
guestions you asked ne. | observed that the band
was closest to the wall. So, one of the

recommendations | nmade, and | think | wote it in an
e-mail or a report or sonething, nove the band to
the other side. Get sonme of that direct sound away

fromthe wall. You had a sound traveling space
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bet ween t he band over here, because when sound
travels, it reduces about 6 deci bels per double
di stance. That's another -- so even indoors, it may

reduce it by three or four decibels if the band is

further away fromthe wall. So, you m ght pick up
three or four there. The wall is what it is, but
you still have to turn it down. | nean, you could

| ine Copper Fire wth acoustic panels, and you're
not going to get what you need.

Q O simlarly, you could line the Boyer
| oft with acoustics panels, and it's not going to
get you 10 deci bel s?

A Transm ssion loss is a nassey el enent.
It's mass. That's why the brick wall with air is
the best, and 55 is a good bl ocker.

Q And based on your years of studying sound,
I's 84 decibels | oud enough for people to hear nusic?

A Agai n, subjective, but | personally could
listen to nusic at 84 deci bel s.

Q " msorry?

A | personally could listen to nusic at 84
deci bels. 84 decibels is |oud.

Q Is that -- is it as loud as sonething |ike
a | awnnower ?

A Do | have to | ook at sone charts that |
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have? |t depends on how cl ose you are to the

| awnmower, but | think the | awmnnower m ght be hi gher
t han that.
Q Ckay.
A O a leaf blower mght be higher than
t hat, too.
Q Ri ght .
A Right in the proximty of the sound
source. Like |I said, if you nove away, it
decr eases.
Q Then you did this again, a sound study
again -- I'msorry | would nove adm ssion into
evi dence Exhibit 22.
MR, PETRUSKA: | will not object to
Exhi bit 22 being admtted for factual basis,
but, again, | renew ny objection to any
suggestion that his report is admssible to
show a violation of the Illinois EPA
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Noted. Exhibit 22
Is admtted.
(Caimants' Exhibit G22 admtted onto the hearing
record.)
Q (By M. Jacober) You did a sound study
again in Novenber of 2021; is that correct?

A That's correct. s that i n here?
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Q Yes, | would have you turn to tab 23 in

your book.

A Ckay, vyep.

Q Ckay. Turning to Exhibit 23, this is your
report from Novenber of 2021, correct?

(Caimant's Exhibit G 23 marked.)
THE WTNESS: That's correct.

Q (By M. Jacober) And this was --

A It | ook |ikes Sunday afternoon daytine.
Sal oonatics was probably the band that | heard when
| was there at lunch. That's what |'m assum ng.

Q So, the report that you provi ded, dated
Novenber 26 of 2021, includes the information from
April as well; is that correct? O at |east you
note that you listened to those bands as well.

A Oh. It looks Iike the second colum is
from 4/ 24, okay.

Q Yeah. So, if you could turn to page 3 of
your report, and here we're | ooking at that chart
agai n.

A Uh- huh.

Q You have the deci bel readings that were
observed on Saturday night of April 24th that we've
al ready tal ked about. Then you have readi ngs from

Novenber 21st in the afternoon. Novenber 21st in
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the early evening, and then Novenber 21st in the
eveni ng, correct?

A That's correct.

Q And can you explain those -- those deci bel
readings, and | think you'll have to turn to the
next page to figure 2 to give us the actual deci bel
readings. Sorry, actually, you'll have to turn to
page 5, figure 3.

A Ckay, | think so looking at -- are you
referring to page 5, figure 3?

Q Yes.

A Page -- | renenber in addition to the tine
measurenents that | took, | used another neter,
calibrated neter, and I went around the lot. So, |
went by the couch; | went by the table. | took
I ndependent readings. Not by octoban, but total
deci bel s.

Q Ckay.

A And that's at that table as well.

Q And that was done from4:00 to 5:00 p. m
on Novenber 21st, 2021, correct?

A That's correct.

Q And the anbient |evels that you recorded
are in the last colum, correct?

A That's correct.
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Q Ckay. Al over 30 deci bel s?
A The anmbient, it ook Iikes the anbient is,
coffee table anmbient, is 30.
Q Ckay. So, maybe |'mnot reading the chart

correctly. What is the columm that says LEQA?

A Ckay, | renenber | nentioned the A note?
You can take neasurenents in different -- different
readi ngs, different scales. |f you take a reading

in the scale that's how we hear, it's an AE

wei ghting. So, what | have here is the LEQ

unwei ghted 57. The LEQ weighted of Ais 34. That's
what that shows.

Q What does that -- what is the difference
bet ween wei ghted and unwei ght ed?

A Ckay, so if you do an unweighted, it
enphasi zes | ow frequencies. Wen we hear, we don't
hear the | ow frequencies the sane. Because there's
musi ¢ and there's | ow frequencies in base and druns,
| sonetines do the unweighted to give a flavor of
how | oud the | ow frequencies m ght be. But then how
we hear it, we don't hear it quite that way. So, |
do the A and -- so, what we're | ooking at here, |
| ook at the A -- the right-hand colum. So, you'll
see the right-hand colum is 34, 36, 39, 37, 35, 36

wer e nmeasurenents of sound i ndependent around the
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apartnment. Not over tinme, but the place where | set

the original up.

Q Under st ood.

A Then the anbient is 30.

Q kay. And you -- | think | m sspoke. The
anbient is when there is no noise playing.

A There's no noi se.

Q O no nmusic playing. You wal ked around
and took neasurenents by the couch, by the table,
the dining roomtable, the kitchen island and the
bedr oom dr esser ?

A That's right.

Q And those are all over 307

A That's correct.

Q Wi | e nusi c was pl ayi ng?

A That's correct.

Q So, it's everywhere in the --

A Right. The reason | did that was because

| mentioned where | set up the tinme neasurenent was
away fromthe wall. Sanme place both tinmes to be
consistent. But then | wanted to see what it was
around the |oft.

Q Did you notice any significant difference
in the sound level fromApril of 2021, when you did

your first sound analysis, to Novenber of 2021, when
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you di d your second?

A | have to -- in general, wthout | ooking
exactly at the nunbers, no.

Q So, the sound wasn't turned down. There
was not hi ng done in that period of tine?

A Which was -- to ne, it was pretty anmazing

because | think it's different bands, but the nusic
content, the level was the sane. To go from April
to Novenber, and the nunmbers were al nost the sane.

| mentioned -- | don't know when McClure did their
study, but it was a different study with different
bands and his nunbers were identical.

Q So --

A He even canme up with identical assunptions
for the transm ssion |oss of the wall.

Q On Novenber 21st, you have audi o sanpl es
that we like to play on the record, and this will be
provided on a thunb drive. And do you have -- we'd
like to play themat this 39 decibel level. Do you

have a sound neter avail able --

A | do.
Q Coul d you get that so we can --
A Sur e.
Q -- get the sound at the right level?
A Just for the record, | calibrated this
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nor ni ng.
Q Ckay.
A It depends on where you want --

HEARI NG OFFI CER VWEBB: (Okay. He'll repeat
that in case you didn't catch that.
MR. JACOBER: | have -- yeah, | have a
coupl e questions |I'"mgoing to ask him
HEARI NG OFFI CER VWEBB: (kay.
Q (By M. Jacober) Now, Mke, |'ve asked you
to get a decibel reader, correct?
A That's correct.
Q Now, what did you get from your bag?
A | got a sinple SPL neter, an Anprobe
SM 10.
Q And is that a decibel neter that you use
i n your sound anal ysis?
A | use it only to get sinple nunber SPL --

this is not to do tine averaging or --

Q Ckay.

A This is just if we wanted to neasure --
Q At this nonent?

A -- 60 deci bel speech.

Q Got it. Wiere did you -- is that -- did

you buy that commercially?

A You can.
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Q s it sonething that needs to be
cal i brat ed?
A |'"msorry, yes, it does.
Q Ckay. Wien -- when was it nost recently
cal i brat ed?
A Thi s nor ni ng.
Q Ckay. So, give us a second to kind of
adj ust the sound and you give us a thunbs-up when
we're at 39 deci bel s.
(Conpl ai nant's Exhibit C 24 marked. An excerpt of
Exhi bit G 24 was pl ayed.)
THE WTNESS: Could I -- could I interject

sonething? W're already at a certain deci bel

level, so if we were all quiet, | could tell

you what that is. So, the sound you're going
to play is additive to the anbient in the room

Q (By M. Jacober) Ckay. So, in other
words, this roomis not as quiet as the Boyer's
| of t ?

A | don't know. | never neasured the
anbient in this room but what I'msaying is, if the
anbient in this roomis 40 and you play nmusic at 40,
what |'m going to neasure is 43.

Q Ckay. Wat's the anbi ent when no one is

t al ki ng?
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A 46.

it to 39; is that what you're saying?

A No, what I'msaying is, the roomis

t he sound of -- comng out of there is 39.

36.

t he daytine: 45, 46.

Boyer |oft was 30 --

A Was 30.

this roonf

A That is right.

A That's right.
Q Ckay.

to neasure is 45 plus 45, 48.

Q Ckay.

Q So, it needs to be relatively quiet to get

al ready at 46, and you're asking ne to tell you when

Q Ch, the roomis 46. | thought you said

A 46. Wiich is what | woul d expect during

Q Ckay. And your report indicates that the

anbi ent sound -- the anbient sound | evel in the

Q So, the Boyer loft is nmuch quieter than

Q Ckay. So, we're really not able to get

to a level that -- because this roomis | ouder?

A So, | hope you understand the log, if this

Is 45 and you play nusic that's 45, what |'m going

Page 54
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A That's the | og.

Q So, inthis room there's no way for us to

play the sound and to replicate the 39 deci bel s?

A No.
Q kay, we'll turn it down, so it's on the
record that it was played, and |I'll ask that we'll

nove for adm ssion of this.
(An excerpt of Exhibit C 24 was played.)
Q (By M. Jacober) What deci bel did that get
to?
A About 53. So, |'d have to do sone math

that | can't do in ny head.

Q ' m not --

A 53 mnus 46 is what that woul d be.

Q Ckay. You -- were you in the loft when
musi ¢ was pl ayi ng?

A | think at some point. | don't recall.

Q You have to have been in Novenber,
correct?

A At sone point, | was in the room when

musi ¢ was pl ayi ng.

Q Was that level that | just played the
musi ¢ at, was that about what you could hear inside
of the Boyer |oft when you were in there taking

measur enent s?
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A Hard to tell with different -- different
anbient levels, and | can't answer.
Q Ckay. We would nove for adm ssion of
Exhi bit 23 and Exhibit 24?
MR, PETRUSKA: [|'Il object to the
adm ssion of this evidence. It's a sound --

unless it's played at the sound |evel that it

have to play it out of volune, so just
recording -- admtting this sound doesn't do
anyt hi ng.

HEARI NG OFFI CER VWEBB: Coul d you furt her
explain is the Board going to -- | nean, |'m
not really sure how this works.

MR, JACOBER: Well, it works to
denonstrate the | evel of sound that was
observed that was recorded by the sound study.
It's part of his sound study.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay.

MR. JACOBER: So, it denonstrates the

Boyer loft.

tal ki ng about a nui sance provision, so |'m

going to admt it. | think it's arguably

| evel that sound was recorded at inside of the

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay. Well, we're

Page 56

was recorded at, it doesn't nean anything. You
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rel evant .

(Conpl ai nant's Exhibits G 23 and G 24 admtted onto
the hearing record.)
MR, JACOBER:. (kay, go ahead and pl ay

G 25.

(Conpl ai nant's Exhibit C 25 marked. An excerpt of
C 25 was pl ayed.)

Q (By M. Jacober) That's good. W just

pl ayed another clip of sound. |Is that also a clip

of sound that was recorded as part of your sound

st udy?

A | assune it was.

Q Yes.

A Coul d | explain how the sound was
recor ded?

Q Yes, that would be great.

A The software that | used allows you to not
only record the sound deci bel |evels, you can switch
it to record the actual audio. The way | use that,
alot of times is to get a flavor of what type of
sound am | hearing or what type of sound is the
recorder recording. Not just decibel, what type.

And it could be significant if I'mrecording, an

airplane flies overhead, | hear it, | knowit's an
ai rplane, | subtract the data out. So, it's used a
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| ot of different ways. | don't use it a |lot, but |
occasionally turn it on to let ne know, here's
deci bel levels is one thing, but here's the type of
sound.

Q kay. And this -- that's what this
recording is evidence of ?

A That's right.

Q You turned this part of the software on --

A That's right.

Q -- and this was recorded?

A And when | |isten to what was actually
recorded fromthe software, | could sing along with
t he nusi c.

Q (kay. W're going to -- we're going to go
to that, because if you turn the page to tab 26.

A Whi ch one? Onh, 26.

Q 26.
A Uh- huh.
Q Are these your handwitten notes --

(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit C 26 marked.)
THE WTNESS: Uh-huh, yes, they are.
Q (By M. Jacober) -- fromlistening to the
audi 0?
A Uh- huh, vyes.
Q Ckay.
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A Painfully so. Not listening to audi o but
docunenti ng.

Q Right. R ght, yeah. You focus on tine
ranges --

A Ri ght .

Q So can you wal k us through your notes to
we make sure we understand what your -- what your
not es nean?

A So, the termis audio capture in the
sof t war e.

Q Ckay.

A So, | listen to the audio played back from
the software, and | could -- I wote down the sanple
of time; and | can hear, like, 2:04, | could hear
| oud voices. | could hear the song Margaritaville.
| could hear a dog bark, so, okay, | can hear a dog
bark for a short period of tinme. | could hear
anot her song; | could hear Brown Eyed Grl. | hear
sone noise. | hear sone |oud screamng. | hear a
train whistle. So, | picked up all the sounds, and
the ones that were fromthe band, | could tell you
the titles.

Q Okay. You know Brown Eyed Grl.

A Uh- huh.

Q Margaritaville, Proud Mary --
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A Sone of them | didn't know the titles to.

| referenced sone decibel levels, so | kind of -- |
correl ated decibel |levels with actual songs that |
coul d under st and.

Q Ckay.

A | could hear them clear enough, which I
was ki nd of surprised about.

Q Wiy were you surprised by that?

A Wel |, because when you listen to it, for
the frequencies of the sounds in the voice ranges to
cone through that well to be able to hear themin
the loft is -- you could tell what song it was. It
wasn't just sound or nusic on the other side of the
wal . You could tell what it was.

Q And that neans the sound in Copper Fire is
at a pretty high level, right?

A Yes. It's going through that 55 deci bel
reduction wall.

Q And, so, your notes, the first page, is a
listing from2:04 p.m, and then it ends at
2:50 p.m on the next page, correct?

A Uh- huh, yeah.

Q And then you do the sane thing from 3:57
to 4:52 p.m on Novenber 21st?

A That's correct.
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Q Ckay. And then finally you did -- |I'm
sorry that's -- okay. So, those are contenporaneous
notes as you listened to the sound recordi ngs?

A That's right.

Q Did you do this type of sound recording
in -- as part of your April of 2021 sound study?

A | don't think | did.

Q Ckay, so that's why we don't have your
notes for your April --

A Right, | think that's correct, because the

actual audio capture takes up a ot of nenory in the
software. | kind of did a spot check to see if --

Q Ckay. If you go to the first page of your
notes, M ke?

A Uh- huh.

Q You' ve got at the top, "Sanple audi o wave
files provided", and that's 5:06 p.m and 4:42 p.m;
do you see that?

A Yes.

Q And you -- those are the two audi o sanpl es
that we just listened to, aren't they?

A That you just played?

Q Yeah. |'ll represent to you those are the
two audi o sanples that you provided to us.

A Ckay.
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Q What does the -- at the end of those two
lines where there's bracketed 56 DB, slash, 37 dBA,
and then again 56 dBA, slash, 38 dBA, what do those
nunbers nean?

A That neant the unwei ghted | evel was 56 and
the A weighted level is 37.

Q Ckay. So, in other words, the anount that
the equipnent is able to pick up is 56 decibels; the
anount that the equi pnment can pick up that a human
ear would hear is 37 decibel s?

A That's correct.

Q W would nove to admit Exhibit 25, which
Is the second audio sanple, if | didn't do that
al ready, and Exhibit 267

MR. PETRUSKA: No obj ecti on.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay. Before we
nmove on, can | just revisit the exhibits we
just discussed for 22 and 23?7 Did you nove to
admt Exhibit 23? |'msorry.

MS. ROBBINS: Yes.

MR. JACOBER: | believe | did.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Okay, for Exhibit
22 and 23, Respondents do not object to the
docunent, al though you have a standing

objection in light of the prior board ruling on
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the EPA rule violation --

MR PETRUSKA: Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: |Is that a fair
characterization?

MR. PETRUSKA: Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay. So, 24, did
you -- you objected to 24 --

MR PETRUSKA: Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay. | admtted
that anyway. Sane thing for C 25, | assune you
MR. PETRUSKA: [|'mgoing to let 25, no

obj ection to that one.
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: All right.
(Conpl ainant's Exhibit C25 admtted onto the
hearing record.)
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: And C- 26, no
obj ecti on?
MR, PETRUSKA: No obj ecti on.
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: All right, C 26
admtted, no objection.
(Conpl ainant's Exhibit C26 admtted onto the
hearing record.)
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay, |'ve admtted
G 22, G233, CG24, CG25 and 26. Ckay, thank
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you.

Q (By M. Jacober) And, M ke, | ooking at
your notes, you indicated you were able to hear the
songs, and when you coul d hear the songs and you

knew the title --

A Yes.

Q You actually wote the title in your --
A | wrote them down.

Q Ckay.

A As best as ny nusic ability --

Q Sure. Maybe it's a genre you don't enjoy,
so you don't know the nane of the song?

A Uh- huh.

Q Now, when you were in Copper Fire on
Novenber 21st having |unch, we tal ked about that
earlier, correct?

A Ri ght .

Q Was there a four-nenber Rock Pop band

pl aying at that tine?

A " msorry?
Q There was a |live band at that tine,
correct?
A That's correct.
Q And four nusici ans.
A | don't renenber.
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Q Ckay.

A | remenber on the floor there were two big
speakers, and a band with a bass player and a
dr ummer .

Q kay. Do you renenber if the nanme was the
Sal oonati cs?

A | don't remenber. Oher than | noted that
was a band that played during that tine.

Q Ckay.

A Lunchti ne.

Q Ckay. After you had lunch, did you walk
out si de of Copper Fire?

A | did.

Q Did you take any sound neasurenents when
you were on the street?

A | think I did. | don't renmenber what
report, but | think -- | think I took two ot her
measur enent s.

Q Yeah, if you | ook at page 5 --

A | went to the restroom

Q If you | ook at page 5 of your report,

A Wi ch one?
Q Exhi bit 23, page 5, and | ook at | nfornmal

Measur enent s?
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A Did you say 237

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Yes.

Q (By M. Jacober) Exhibit 23, Page 5?

A Ckay. Yeah, | went to the restroom and
so the back of room | neasured 84. This was on ny
phone so it was really easy to do.

Q Ri ght .

A Then | went -- sidewal k outside and behi nd
the glass, it looks like |I neasured 70.

Q So, you could hear the nusic on the
si dewal k at 70 deci bel s?

A That's correct. And, so, that note there,

W ndow STC, that neans the bl ocking capabilities of
gl ass was about 24, and that's about correct.

Q And that's just inline with all the other
nmeasurenments - -

A That's right.

Q In other words, all the neasurenents are
consi stent ?

A That's right.

Q The deci bel |evel inside Copper Fire is
approxi mately 95?

A Ri ght .

Q 94, 95 deci bel ?

A M nus 24 for glass is a sound bl ocker.
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A And | got 70, so I'mlike, okay.

Q And that's consistent wth the neasurenent
you took inside Copper Fire wth your phone?

A Exactly.

Q So, you're confident that the deci bel
| evel inside of Copper Fire is in this 94, 95
deci bel range?

A |'"'mas confident as | used ny phone. To
be honest, | didn't have it calibrated in here. |
pul | ed out ny phone, and the phone has got
m crophones and it's not calibrated. | keep ny
phone calibrated to neters, because | often do that,
but it's not a calibration process.

Q Under st ood.

A Ckay.

Q | think we've -- we've addressed this, but
| want to nmeke sure that -- that it's clear on the
record. Your opinion today is the best way to
reduce the sound that is heard inside of the Boyer
loft is sinply turn down the nusic down by 10
deci bel s i nside of Copper Fire?

A That's nmy best recommendati on.

Q That's the best and the easiest way?

A Easi est way.
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Q It actually costs no noney, correct?

A | -- 1 don't know -- | can't if it
costs --

Q Wel |, as opposed to putting sound bl ocking

up --

A Ch, from an acoustics standpoint?

Q O adding nass to the building --

A From an acoustics standpoint, yes.

Q There's no i nherent charge that --

A No.

Q You woul d have to have a conpany cone in
to do that?

A No.

Q Are there any sound blocking -- is there

any sound bl ocking construction or itens that could
be added to either the Copper Fire space or the
Boyer loft to reduce the sound by 10 deci bels to get

it at or below the accepted standard for sl eeping?

A Add a lot mass to one or both sides of the
wal | .

Q When you say "mass", you nean add nore
wal | ?

A Steel plates because transmssion is --

the mass i s depending on the density of material.

So, steel has a higher density than brick does. So,
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find sonebody to find sonething that adds mass to

the wall in terns of steel or nore brick or -- add
mass to the wall.

Q Ckay.

A That's anot her study but add nass to the
wall. A lot of mass to the wall.

MR, JACOBER: At this tinme, | have no
further questions. |I'll reserve the right to
redirect.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Wbul d anyone |i ke
to take a 5 or 10-m nute break before we start
Cross?

MR. PETRUSKA: Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: All right, let's do
that. We'll take a break.

(Werein, a short recess was taken.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: | think we're ready
to go back on the record, and we begin wth
Cr oss-exam nat i on.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR PETRUSKA:
Q M ke, | want to thank you for comng. |
know you had to cone all the way up to Springfield,
but you've given us sone great testinony. | want to

talk to you about it.
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A Ckay.
Q On Exhibit G 26, do you have that in front

A Tab 26, is that --

Q Yeah, tab 267

A Ckay.

Q At 2:33 to 2:36, you have a dBA rating of
33 deci bels, correct?

A That's what | wote down right here, yes.
Okay. You can still hear the song?
What did | wite -- what does say?
Song 93.

> O >» O

Song 93, is that --
| don't know what you put down. |'mjust
trying toread it. You put sonething down?

A | put sonething there.

Q Ckay. You could hear it, correct?

A | assume so.
Q The reason |'m asking you that, Mke, is
because you say -- your expert testinony in this

case is lower it to 85 and it wll fix everything.
Do you realize what sound that is? Wat sound is 33
over in Copper Fire?

A | don't understand the question.

Q Add 55 to 33.

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Transcript Of Proceedings November 06, 2024

Page 71

A |"msorry?

Q Can you add 55 to 33 for ne?

A 55, where's -- where are you getting 55 --

Q M ke, what does the wall reduce the sound
by?

A Ch, 55,

Q Thank you. Now, add 55 and 33 for ne?

A 88.

Q Ckay. W turned it down to 88 on this
song, and Geri would still conplain because she
could hear it. Your solution won't even work. It
will not satisfy the problem Do you understand
t hat ?

A No.

Q Wiy not ?

A Because | don't know if she would hear or
conpl ain or not.

Q Ckay. What if we have evidence today of
the sound being below 85 in our restaurant, and she
still is calling us, texting us and conpl ai ni ng.
Now, what would you say?

A | don't know.

Q We can't solve the problem M ke. She's
going to conplain. Wat do we do?

A | don't know she'll conplain. | can't
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answer what she'll do.

it.
What '

Ceri
85, t

Q Well, | can prove it, okay? | can prove
So, now if that doesn't work, what's next?
s the next solution?

MR, JACOBER: I1'mgoing to object to the
extent he's calling for speculation and aski ng
hi m what sonmeone who's not even a w tness at
this point may or may not do.

HEARI NG OFFI CER VEBB: You know, maybe
clarify your questions a little bit.

Q (By M. Petruska) If the evidence that
Boyer will still conplain the sound | evel is at

hen your solution doesn't work; is that

correct? |If there is evidence show ng that and your

sol ution doesn't work?

MR. JACOBER: |'mgoing to once again
object. It's an inproper hypothetical.

HEARI NG OFFI CER VEBB: No, I'Il allowit.
Go ahead.

MR, PETRUSKA: Do you want himto read the
guestion back?

THE WTNESS: No, but ny answer woul d be,
the only way to do that would be turn it down
to a level that's 84, and go to the loft and

renmeasur e.
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Q (By M. Petruska) W' ve done that. And --

A | have not done that.

Q But in this situation, in this situation,
| wll show you that there's evidence in this case
of the sound | evel at Copper Fire being bel ow 85 and
Geri texting while that's going on, conpl aining.
Now, if that evidence is admtted, would you agree
that your solution wll not solve the conplaint?

MR JACOBER: |'mgoing to object. It
calls for an inproper hypothetical.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: | nean, sone of
this argunment is best left for your brief. |
mean, can you just ask himquestions, | nean,
based on the evidence --

Q (By M. Petruska) Let's just keep with
obj ective stuff. 28 decibels with no band playi ng
at 2:36, 45, correct? On C 267?

A It | ooks |ike 28.
Q Ckay. At 2:33 to 2:36, 33 dBA, correct?
A Ri ght.
Q At 4:.42 above that, 37 dBA, correct?
A "' msorry, where?
Q 4:42 above at the top of the page?
A 4:42.
Q 4:42.
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A Ckay, 4:42 at the top?

Q Correct. 37 dBA

A Ckay.

Q 5:06, 37 dBA; is that correct?

A Ri ght .

Q Ri ght ?

A Ri ght .

Ckay. Next page, 2:38 to 2:42, | Just
want to Fly, 36 dBA?

A Ckay.

Q | s that correct?

A That's what's witten here, yeah.

Q That's what you wote down.

A Ri ght, okay.

Q 2:43 to 2:47, 34 dBA, correct?

A Ckay.

Q Yes?

A Yes.

Q 2:47 to 2:50, 37 dBA, correct?

A That's correct.

Q Your report at C-23, when you neasured the
decibels in the apartnment -- that's wong. | got to
go back.

A You said 237

Q Yeah, one second. C22. |s that your My
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5th one? 1Is that C 227
A C 22, okay.
| s that your May 5t h?

Yes.

O >» O

Okay. You did a neasurenent of the sound
| evel in the apartnment at 10: 26, correct? Page 5.
Ckay.

| s that correct?

That's correct.

38 dBA, correct?

Ri ght .

O » O >» O >

And on Saturday from 10:00 p.m to
11:25 p.m 39 dBA, correct?

A That's correct.

Q So, is it fair to say that this entire
lawsuit, this entire lawsuit, is about sound | ess
than 40 dBA?

MR. JACOBER: |'m going to object.
M. Biffignani is an expert witness. He
doesn't know about the entire lawsuit. He's
here to provide his expertise to the Board
relating to sound that he observed during his
sound st udy.
MR, PETRUSKA: | will anend ny question.
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay.
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Q (By M. Petruska) Mke, is it fair to say

that everything you studi ed, neasured and found out,
shows that the sound level in the Boyer loft is

bel ow 40 dBA with nusic playing?

A Right, | only neasured, as stated here, 38
and 39.

Q And you have | ower readings al so?

A Ri ght, because this is an average.

Q Ri ght .

A Those ot her ones you cited were snapshots.

Q And we can't even get to that |evel of

sound in this roomwth the nusic because the sound
|l evel in this roomis above 38 dBA, correct?

A We could get to a sound |level of that in
this room Not wth that recording.

Q Wth the air condition on, can we get to
387

A 38 what ?

Q 38 dBA in this room

A W' re al ready past 38.

Q Right, that's that |'msaying. W can't
get to 38 dBA in this hearing room correct?

A | don't understand the question.

Q The level -- if you use your neter right

now for two mnutes, 10 mnutes 30 m nutes and the
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air conditioner was on, would it stay above 40 dBA?
MR, JACOBER: I'mgoing to object. It
calls for specul ation.
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: You can answer if
you know.
THE WTNESS: Well, it's kind of apples
and oranges because the sound level with the
musi ¢ of f was 30.
Q (By M. Petruska) |I'mtal king about in
this roomright now You pulled your neter out, yo

renenber that?

A Yes.
Q And you neasured the sound in this room
correct?

A Ckay, so what you're asking, though, is i

| turn the sound |l evel neter on in this room and

it's 45.
Q Ri ght .
A If we play nusic in this roomand it got

up to 55, that would be equivalent to 0. 10 dBA
hi gher .

Q VWhat |'msaying is, we can't even pl ay
music at the 38 dBA level in this room because the
dBA in this roomis above 38?

A The anbient level is higher -- the anbien

Page 77
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iIs -- it's a reference.
Q And Geri Boyer has filed this | awsuit
because she can't handl e that | evel of noise.

MR, JACOBER: I'mgoing to object. It
calls for specul ati on agai n.

HEARI NG OFFI CER VWEBB: Yeah, sust ai ned.

MR JACOBER: Ms. Boyer isn't on the
stand --

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: | think sone of
this is best reserved for the post-hearing
briefs. Mybe |imt our questions to the
di rect testinony.

MR. PETRUSKA: Sure.

Q (By M. Petruska) You testified on your

a problemwth sound, right?

A Ri ght .

to 85, correct?
A That was a suggestion | nade | ooki ng at

the other factors to get from38 to 39 down to 30.

ni ght w t hout nusic?

A |'ve only been to Copper Fire one tine

Page 78

initial questions that you are often hired to sol ve

Q kay. And in this case, your solve -- the

way you solved this problemis, you want it reduced

Q Have you been in Copper Fire on a Friday
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during lunch like | testified.

Q If | told you with 100 people in Copper
Fire, the sound level is 88 to 90 just with people
tal king without nusic, would that nmake sense to you?

A | don't know. How many people --

Q You' ve done a lot of studies in your life?
A | ot of sound studying?

A Yeah, but you're asking -- but | don't
make up nunbers unless | go there and do testing. |
nmean, | can't -- you can't say, Mke, what do you
think the sound level is going to be of 80 people
tal king i nside of Copper Fire. | have no idea.

"1l go neasure for you.

Q Have you ever neasured the sound |evel in
a loud bar with people tal king, just people talking?

A Yes, | have.

Q Ckay. Wat kind of nunbers did you cone

up with?
A It depends on what -- what kind of
absorption material is inside the bar. It could be

anywhere from 65, 70 to 80 sonething just throw ng

out raw numbers.

Q Ckay.
A It depends. A lot of bars are really bad.
Q So, it would not be uncommon for a bar
888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
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that's full of people to be in 80s?
A Uncommon? | don't know.
Q You were asked about what is reasonable

for sleep and your response was it's very
subj ective; is that correct?

A Coul d you repeat?

Q You were asked what is reasonable for
sleep and you said that's very subjective, correct?

A No, | have lots of references that say
good for sleep is 30.

Q But for any person it could change based
on what they desire for sleep, correct?

A Well, sure, but --

Q But it could be subjective for those
peopl e?
A Sur e.
Q You' ve heard of -- have you heard of green

noi se and brown noi se for sl eep?

A And pi nk noi se and white noi se.

Q Yes.

A Yeah.

Q So, sone people like the noise to be

constant and it hel ps them sl eep, correct?
A That's a different type of noise.

Q Correct, but it is adding noise to help

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
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them sl eep; is that correct?

A That's correct. Again, it's a different
type of frequency noi se.

Q Are you aware of what Copper Fire has done
since they had a chance to review your May 5th,
2021, sound study?

A | am not.

Q So, if I told you Copper Fire has taken
nunmerous steps to turn down the sound, would you say

that's a good thing?

A Sur e.
Q |"'mgoing to hand what's been marked R-21
and R-22. |I'mjust going to ask it if those have

been provided to you at any point in tine?

A No.

Q If I you told those are policies that
Copper Fire has put in to reduce the noise inside
the bar, can you review themfor ne?

A Yeah, it looks like the top half of this
one is applicable. |If they're being foll owed, yes.

Q Wul d you agree that 85 to 89 would fall
reasonably wi thin what you suggested?

A No.

Q Ckay. Wuld you agree that it is a

reduction from 95?
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A It's a reduction from 95. ragese

Q Ckay. And if Copper Fire has installed
those policies, they've turned down the sound,
right?

A |f the band is not playing at a --

Q And | told you --

A You could -- you could have a policy all
you want, but if the band is playing and sonebody
goes in and neasures, it depends on what's being
pl ayed and what's bei ng neasured.

Q If I tell you there's evidence that Copper

Fire has contracts with their nusicians saying they
nmust keep their sound bel ow a certain decibel |evel
or they will not be asked back, would you say that's
a good thing?

A |f the band has a way to neasure they're
followng it, yeah.

Q If | told you that Copper Fire has been
routinely neasuring the sound on a phone app for a
while to determ ne what their baseline is, would you
say that's a good thing?

A No.

Q Is it not a good thing for themto have a
standard to determne fromnight to night what's

| oud and what's not | oud?
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A Agal n, froman acoustics person, you can

show ne standards; you can show ne guidelines. | go
in and | neasure what's actually the |evel being

pl ayed. And that's all | know. | nean, you could
say | gave the band a standard of 80 and they're

followng it, and | go in and neasure 95, so a piece

of paper is worth nothing. | don't do things |ike
that. | neasure the actual |evels.
Q | understand that, but you' ve given an

opi nion that the best way to solve this problemis
to turn down the sound, right?

A Measur abl e sound | evel.

Q kay. And what I'mtelling you is Copper

Fire has neasurably turned down the sound.

A kay. | haven't --

Q Geri is still conplaining, so what do we
do now?

A | have -- if | had evidence of -- if |

went in there, hired by Copper Fire, to neasure and
show that it's that level, and I went over to Boyers
and | neasured it was at 30, that's the only thing I
can say.

Q So --

A O if sonebody else did, McClure did or

they hired sonebody |ike that, but to say a phone
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this case shows that Copper Fire has installed a
per manent deci bel reader that the band can see in
the bar, so they could see what |evel they're at,

woul d you say that's a good thing?

a good thing, yes.

her testinony, correct?

Q And you have already testified that if

app and a pi ece of paper, | have no idea. raoe
Q | f you neasure -- if you got it back down
to 30 with the nusic on at Copper Fire, that woul d
be a solution to you?
MR. JACOBER: (bjection, it calls for
specul ation. He's already said what it would
take for himto do that. |It's an inproper
hypot hetical, if, if, if.
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Yeah, sustai ned.
Q (By M. Petruska) Mke, if the evidence in

A What kind of neter, where's it at? Sure,

Q The reason |'m asking is the whole theory,

you heard CGeri say the sanme thing, you were here for

A | was here for the last part of her

t esti nony.
Q You hear her say just turn it down, right?
A | think I've heard her say that.

they turned down the level it would help, correct?
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A Yeah, turn -- right, yes, | have.

Q And then we -- if -- no, not if. Wen
evidence is presented that Copper Fire has taken
steps to turn down the sound and the probl em has not
been resol ved because we're still here today, we're
still here today, so ny question to you is, what do
we do then?

MR, JACOBER: |'mgoing to object. It

calls for specul ation.

THE WTNESS: | don't know.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: | nean, he's
testified about turning it down. | guess I'm
not really -- | don't know what you're seeking,

what you're really asking.

MR. PETRUSKA: What |I'masking is, he's
testified here today that the solution to the
problemis turning down the sound. Wen ny
client testifies, she's going to talk about all
the steps they've done to turn down the sound,
and they have turned down the sound. But Ceri
Boyer was very clear in her testinony: there's
been no difference. There's been no
di fference. Nothing has changed. So, | want
to know from M ke, the expert, what do we do

then? |If we turn down the sound and that

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
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doesn't work, what's the next step? That's

what | want to know.
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay. You're an
expert witness. You nmay answer that question.
THE WTNESS: | preface it by saying if
| -- if the band plays and | am neasuring on ny
equi pnent, and | neasure 84, and | have -- take
the neter, | go to the loft and I neasure 30,
t hen we've achi eved what turning down the sound
woul d do, or if sonebody else did it. But the
only way | could be convinced of it is if | had
the data and | did it on the sane kind of
equi prment, the sane location to set up neters
or MClure does it. MCure was hired, and you
showed ne a report from MCure, that said he
measured the band at 94 -- 84, and he went to
the loft just |like he did before, and he
measured it at 10 dBA and less, and it's 30 dBA
all the tinme, then, yeah, | believe it. That's
the only way | do it, if | had objective
evi dence.
Q (By M. Petruska) Right. And what |I'm

saying is if that objective evidence --

A | haven't seen that.
Q | f that objective evidence is produced and
888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
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is still conplaining, what do we do then?

MR, JACOBER: (nbjection, calls for
specul ation, Your Honor.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Well, | think the
question is, what nore would you -- is there

anything you can ask themto do besides turn it

down? |s there anything -- do you have
ot her --

THE WTNESS: Well, | also suggested the
band further away fromthe wall. | suggested
t hat .

HEARI NG OFFI CER VEBB: (kay.

THE W TNESS: You coul d nove the band
away -- there's other things. You could nove
the band | ocation. You could tell themto turn
it down. You could nove the band in the back
on the other side, the inside side wall, the
back corner, instead of up against the gl ass.
Those woul d be the first two things | would do,

and |1'd get objective evidence that it's now 30

inthe loft. |If sonebody is still conplaining
that it's 30 inthe loft and it's still too
| oud, | honestly couldn't tell you what to do.

Q (By M. Petruska) 33 is three decibels

hi gher than 30, correct?

888-893-3767
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A That's correct.

Q In your report, you say that three
decibels is a barely perceivable difference to the
human ear, correct?

A Yes. Six decibels is considered
percei vabl e.

Q Ckay.

A Up and down.

Q You have evidence from your own testing

that the sound has been 33 in her apartnent during a

song?

A A snapshot .

Q Right. But that's your neasurenent?

A Not average over tine.

Q Ri ght. But that was your neasurenent,
correct?

A Yes.

Q And you could still hear the nusic?

A Uh- huh.

Q Yes?

A Yes.

Q Okay. You heard Ceri testify that she
wants no sound; that's what she wants?

Ckay.
Q | s that correct, you hear her say that?
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A | don't -- no, | don't think |I've heard raae s
CGeri say that. | think I hear you ask her that, but
| don't think that was her response.

Q | f both parties took actions on both sides
of the wall to reduce sound with nmass, would that
hel p?

A Lots of nmss.

Q Wuld it hel p?

A It depends on how nmuch nass.

Q Ckay.

A | "' m | ooking for 10 deci bel s.

Q Wel |, you had 38 and 39. Just to be
cl ear, mathematically, you had 38 and 39 in your
report?

A Ckay, |I'm | ooking for nine decibels.

Q Ei ght or nine decibel s?

A Ckay.

Q Then you al so have 37 at different tines.

A kay. |I'mlooking to get to 30.

Q | f you get to 30 then you'll be satisfied?

A | will be satisfied if we were in the
range of recommended | evels for sleep.

Q Okay. What about during the daytine?

A During the daytine, there's lots of other

noi se going on, so during the daytine, you know,

888-893-3767
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accepted levels are 44.

Q But the transcript will show this very
clearly, but you heard Geri testify she doesn't even
go honme after work from6:00 to 9: 00 because she
can't handl e the noise; do you renenber that? She's

not sleeping, is she?

A This is, again, is subjective. |I'm
| ooking wwth -- I"mneasuring the levels. And the
main level | ook at is 30 dB for sleep. Daytine is

a conbi nati on of the band and outside and other --
it could be other things.

Q |"'mgoing to ask you ny |ast question.

A It's subjective. It's so subjective
during the day.

Q Agreed. Two | ast questions then. Do you
think the | aw shoul d be subjective?

MR, JACOBER: |1'mgoing to object. It
calls for speculation. He is --

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Yeah, sust ai ned.

MR. JACOBER: Thank you.

Q (By M. Petruska) Second question, what --
have you considered the possibility that Geri Boyer
wi Il not be satisfied no matter what happens?

MR JACOBER: |'mgoing to object. It

calls for speculation well outside of his
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experti se.
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Yeah, sust ai ned.
MR, PETRUSKA: No further questions.
MR. JACOBER:. May | proceed?
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Yes.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR JACOBER:

Q M ke, | want to go over sone of the --
sone of the questions you were asked on Cross. |Is
there a difference in the decibel |evel between an
anplified band and peopl e tal ki ng?

A Yes.

Q How so?

A People tal king are in the frequency range

of maybe 5, 600 hertz. So, that's the narrow band
sound. Were a band is anywhere from |l ow frequency
druns and base, 32, to high synbols and, you know,
so it's a broader band of frequency ranges with a
band.

Q So you can't -- you can't just say that
80 deci bels of people talking is going to sound the
same on another side of the wall as 80 decibel s of
band pl ayi ng?

A That's correct. You al so have the

percussi ve of base druns (knocks table). I'msorry

Page 91
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You know, you al so have that percussive part of it,

so, no, a band -- the band dynam cs are different
t han speech.

Q Thank you. Now, you had -- you were asked
guesti ons about the white noi se machi nes or brown
noi se machi nes that people nmay use to sleep. |Is
that, and you started to answer it but there wasn't
alot of followup onit. |Is that noise different
t han noi se from nusic?

A Yes, because the pink noise, white noise,
brown noi se that people use to nmask sound and to
sleep with, it's a consistent hiss. It's like
turning on your stereo in between stations. It's a
consi stent broadband of continuous hiss. Ckay, so
it beconmes al nost in the background, alnost |ike
this air conditioner noise right here, right? It's
al nrost white noise. W don't notice it. A band is
up and down and percussive and stop and start, and
the band -- song and nusic are different than a

conti nuous white noi se.

Q So, you can't do a conparison --

A No.

Q -- of white noise to a band?

A No.

Q Now, there was sone di scussion about
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di fferent decibel |evels, and we've tal ked about the

manner in which the decibels isn't necessarily
linear -- | can't renenber the phrase you used?

A Log.

Q Alog. |Is there -- what's the perceived
di fference between 84 and 89 deci bel s?

A Vell, like | nentioned, five or six
deci bel difference up or down is perceivabl e by
peopl e.

Q Ckay. |s 89 louder than 84?

A Yes. |t would be perceived | ouder.

Q Ckay. Now, counsel asked you about
Exhi bits R-21 and R-22.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Do you have an
extra copy of that?

MR, PETRUSKA: Yes.

M5. ROBBINS: They m ght be the sane as

C-17 and C-18 in your binder.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ch, okay, thank
you. Yes.
THE WTNESS: Did you say C 21?

Q (By M. Jacober) In the book, you can | ook
at C 21, yes.

M5. ROBBINS: No, C 17 and 18, sorry.

Q (By M. Jacober) G 17 and 18, sorry.
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A 17 and 18. Onh, okay, all right. Okay.
Those are the ones that Paul just showed ne.
Q Yes, and let's |look at C18. Let ne know

when you have that in front of you.

A Ckay.

Q This has decibel limts of -- in the
afternoons of 85 to 88 decibel |evels, and then at
night of 88 to 92 decibels. Do you see that?

A | do.

Q | s that | ouder, the evening, when people
woul d be going to sleep, is that | ouder than what
you woul d reconmend?

G ven the 55 barrier wall?

Correct.

What's the math? 92 mnus 55 is what?
387

37, 38. Yes, greater than 30.

O » O >» O >

When you were in Copper Fire on
Novenber 21st of 2021, you've already testified that
It was so loud in there that you couldn't have
tal ked with someone who was sitting across the table
fromyou?

A Right, | couldn't talk to the waitress
taki ng nmy order.

Q Ckay. Wen that -- I'msorry, the sound
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that you experienced in there, was that due to a

band pl ayi ng that day?

A Yes.

Q Did that band ever take a break?

A | don't renenber.

Q Did they stop playing in between songs?

A | assune they did.

Q kay. Did the Ievel of noise go down to a
| evel that was | ess than where it was when they were
pl ayi ng?

A Al | can say --

MR, PETRUSKA: [|'Ill object, lack of
foundation, calls for speculation. He said he
can't renenber if they took a break.

MR JACOBER: | asked if they stopped
pl aying i n between songs, and he said yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay. That's okay.
Go ahead.

THE WTNESS: | assune it went down. |
don't renenber taking a reading.

Q (By M. Jacober) Ckay.

A What ever it was.

Q When you were in the Boyer |loft and you
wer e doi ng those readings that you testified to in

Exhibit C 23 on page 5 and figure 3 --

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Transcript Of Proceedings November 06, 2024

Page 96
A Ckay.

Q And for purposes of the record, |I'm
referencing the chart here on figure 3 where you
recorded 34 deci bels dBA by the couch. 36 dBA by
the table by the wall?

A Yes.

Q 39 by the dining roomtable, et cetera, et

cetera?
A Yes.
Q You were in the [oft at that point and

time, right?

A Yes.

Q You were wal king down with a neter --

A | was hol ding the neter.

Q Were you able to hear --

A |"mvery, very careful about maki ng sound.
So, | went like this with the nmeter on the table.
|"mvery quiet because | know I'l| be picked up.

Q Ckay. Were you able to hear nusic playing
at that |evel when you were taking these readings?

A | don't recall.

Q Ckay. Do you recall if you were able to

hear tal king inside of Copper Fire?

A | don't recall when | was taking those
what | actually heard. | don't recall.
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Q In the analysis of the sound or the --

your notes of the sound, and that's on Exhibit C 26?

A 267

Q Yes. These are your witten notes, M ke.

A Ckay, yeabh.

Q | ve | ooked through them several tines,
and you talk -- you have a note or two in here about
tal king, talking fromthe band, do you differentiate
the talking that you heard fromthe band that was
anplified as opposed to the group of people who were
I n Copper Fire watching the band? Are you able to
di sti ngui sh between the two?

A The talking -- If | recall, the talking

was from a band nenber.

Q And tal ki ng over a m crophone --
A Over a m crophone --
Q -- that was anplified?

A Thanki ng the crowd for clapping,

announci ng the next song, and occasionally | heard

crowd noise. Like 2:04, |oud noises. | renenber
hearing the crowd -- later on, | hear the crowd
singing along. | renenber that.

Q Ckay.

A But mainly it was when the band stopped,

you know, but the band | eaders, thank you very nuch,
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HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay.

MR. PETRUSKA: None from ne.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Al l right, thank
you.

THE W TNESS: You're wel cone.

MR, JACOBER: May he be rel eased?

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Yes, absolutely.

You can go.

hone?
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Let's go off the
record for a nonent.
(Werein, a lunch recess was taken.)
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: We'l| go back on

the record now. It is 1:00 o' clock. W are

Conpl ai nants' next w tness.

Ei chhol z.
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Wbul d the court
reporter please swear in the wtness?

(Renae Ei chhol z sworn.)

Page 98
here's the next song. | could hear that.
Q Under st ood. One second here.
MR JACOBER: | have no further questions.

THE WTNESS: Released as in drive ny car

back fromlunch, and we will pick up with the

M5. ROBBINS: The Conpl ai nants call Renae
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DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY M5. ROBBI NS:
Q Ms. Eichholz, can you state your full nane
and spell it for court reporter, please?
A Renae Ei chholz, R-e-n-a-e,
E-i-c-h-h-o0-1-z.
Q Wul d you prefer | call you Renae or
Ms. Eichhol z?
A Renae.
Q Ckay. Renae, can you tell ne a little bit

about your enploynent history. Before you owned
Copper Fire, what was your primary job?

A | owned and amthe founder and the
presi dent of Precision Practice Managenent.

Q And how | ong have you been the owner of
Preci sion Practice Managenent ?

A 31 years.

Q And what does Precision Practice
Managenent do?

A Medi cal billing and software for
physi ci ans in hospitals.

Q And you still own and operate that
conpany, correct?

A Yes.

Q Prior to Copper Fire opening, did you have
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A

Fire? |
venue?
A

Q
A

Q

expert,

> O >» O » O »

Q
si gni ng
A

Q
A

musi ¢ venue?

Fire. It's a DBA -- Copper Fire is a DBA of MRB

Devel opnent .

) _ Page 100
ory of running a restaurant, a bar or a live

No.
And how woul d you characterize Copper

S it arestaurant or a bar or a live nusic

Bar, live nusic venue. Bar.

Bar, live nusic --

Wth good food.

You woul d agree that you're not a sound
correct?

Correct.

You had no special schooling in sound?

That's right.

You're not a sound technician, correct?

Correct.

Or a sound engi neer, correct?

Correct.

Did you consult with a sound expert before
on to build Copper Fire?

No.

What i s MRB Devel opnent, LLC?

It's the corporation that owns Copper

888-893-3767
www.lexitaslegal.com
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Q And can you please identify all the owners

and i nvestors of MRB/ Copper Fire?
A My husband, Mark, nyself and our son
Brett.
Q And do you have all equal ownership
per cent ages?
A No.
Q Can you tell us what each of those
per cent ages are?
A Mark and | each have 40 percent. Brett
has 20 percent.
Q When did you decide to open Copper Fire?
A 2016, the corporation was forned.
Q Ckay. If you could turn in that book to
Exhibit C 2.
(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit C 2 nmarked.)
Q (By Ms. Robbins)ls Exhibit C2 the
articles of incorporation for MRB Devel opnent ?
A Yes.
Q It's fromJanuary -- it was filed
January 6th, 20167
A Uh- huh, vyes.
Q W nove to admt Exhibit C 2.
MR. PETRUSKA: No obj ecti on.
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Exhibit CG2 is
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adm tted.

(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit C2 is admtted onto the
hearing record.)

Q (By Ms. Robbins) You forned Copper Fire,
or the LLC that owns Copper Fire, in 2016. Wen did
Copper Fire formally open?

A March of 2018.

Q Ckay. That was on St. Patrick's Day,
right?

A Yes.

Q Way did you select the | ocation where
Copper Fire is | ocated?

A W own the buil ding.

Q And when you say we say own the
bui | ding --

A My husband and |I.

Q Did you own the building before 20167

A Yes.

Q Ckay. So, you owned the buil di ng when
there was a Quiznos and a coffee shop in the current
| ocati on?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. And did either of those businesses,
the Quiznos or the coffee shop, have live nusic

perfor mances?
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A No.
Q When you sel ected the |ocation, were you
aware that residential |lofts were next door?
A | don't remenber if | renmenber.
Q Bef ore Copper Fire opened, were you aware

that there were residential |ofts next door?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Did you consider the inpact that
your busi ness m ght have on your nei ghbors?

A | really didn't.

Q Now, goi ng back to when you were first
constructing the building, changing froma Qui znos
and a coffee shop to Copper Fire, what were the
original building plans? What -- what -- the
construction plans. How did you plan on
constructing this space?

A That ended up bei ng Copper Fire?

Q Yeah.

A W hired an architect. It was going to be
a tw story. It's already a two-story building in
that floor, but it also has a nezzanine. It was
going to be -- both the nezzanine and the first
floor would be part of the entire restaurant and
bar; but then we didn't have enough noney to do

those plans. W scaled it down to just the first
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floor, which is really two floors but not excluding

t he nmezzani ne.

Q Ckay. So, just so we're clear, when you
originally hired an architect to build out this
space, the plan was to build the entire first and
second floor, and you ended up not havi ng enough
noney for the second floor, so it's just the first
fl oor and a nezzani ne?

A The original space, Quiznos and Junction
were -- already a two story. It was a depart nment
building a long, long tinme ago. And, so, it was --
it's already two stories just for the main area.
And there was a nezzanine, which is on the second
floor in the back that was going to be part of
Copper Fire. 1t is now our event space.

Q Ckay. But it wasn't ever -- but it hasn't
been built down; it's just a separate event space?

A It's never had a wall there.

Q Ckay. So, it's open air?

A On the first floor, it's never had a wall.
It's always had a wall on the second floor of the
mezzani ne.

Q Ckay, | understand. And did you discuss
sound mtigation as part of the building plans with

the architect?
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A No.

Q Were sound mtigation neasures installed
in the ceiling of Copper Fire?

A No.

Q Were any sound deadeni ng devi ces
I nstal | ed?

A No.

Q What about sound absorption?

A Not initially.

Q When you not initially, is there a sound
absor ption device now?

A Not a device, but we have done sone sound

panel s and sone sponge-|i ke sound absorption around
the entire permtter of the ceiling.

Q And who advi sed you about putting in those
devi ces or what are you saying -- you're saying it's
tiles on the ceiling?

A They are sponge foamtiles around the
circunference of the second floor of the main bar.

Q Okay. There's nothing on the first

floor --
A It's all one room
Q Yeah.
A There's no -- it's just like this would go

up anot her fl oor.
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Q Right. So, there's nothing on walls?

It's the ceiling. You're saying there are tiles --
A It's on the corner of the top panels
sponge panels along the edge of the entire perineter

of the roof.

Q And when were those sponge tiles
i nstal | ed?

A Ch ny goodness. After we opened, after
our conplaints, probably, |I'm guessing 2019.

Q So the sponge tiles were they installed
before this lawsuit was fil ed?

A Oh, |'m sure.

Q Did the architect recomend any sound
mtigation?

A | al ready said no.

Q The live nusic at Copper Fire, all the
bands and the acoustic acts, they're all anplified

in some way, correct?

A Meani ng they have a m crophone?
Q Correct. And the instrunents are
anplified or --

A Not al ways, but, yes. They have a
m cr ophone and soneti nes a speaker.
Q Ckay. And Copper Fire plays live nusic or

sonetines it's a DJ five days per week on average?
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A It's a DJ, maybe, three or four tines a
year.

Q Ckay. It's pretty much live nusic five
days a week?

A Yes.

Q And what are the live nusic tines?

5:00 and 8:00 to 11:00; Sunday 2:00 to 5:00.

Q Ckay. Just to nmake sure | have this

Friday and Saturdays, 2:00 to 5:00 p.m; and then

to 5:00 p.m and then --
A Friday and Saturday nights, 8:00 to

5:.00 p.m

on Saturday between 5:00 and 8:007?
A Correct, and 9:00 a.m to 2:00 p.m

before a holiday it mght go later?
A Maybe three tines a year.
Q Can you please turn to Exhibit C 16?

A Wednesday, 6:00 to 9:00; Thursday 6:00 to
9:00; Friday, 8:00 to 11:00 p.m; Saturday 2:00 to

Sonetines a Sunday evening if it's before a holiday.

correct: Wdnesday and Thursday, 6:00 to 9:00 p. m;

sorry, Fridays, 8:00 to 10:00 p.m; Saturday, 2:00

11: 00 p. m; Saturday and Sunday afternoons, 2:00 to

Q kay. So, there's a weekend gap in nusic

Q You said that sonetines on Sunday evening

Page 107
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(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit C 16 marked.)

Q (By Ms. Robbins) Do you recogni ze Exhi bit
C 167

A Yes.

Q s this alist of live nusic that played
on June 6, 2020, to April 1st of 20227

A Yes.

Q Did you create this list?

A Yes.

Q Are you aware that this |list was created
In response to a discovery request that the

Conpl ai nant sent ?

A Yes.
Q Are you aware that that request asked for
certain detail, including the style of the nusic,

the types of instrunents played and whet her or not
t he performance was inside or outside of Copper
Fire?

A Yes, | didn't track that.

Q So, why did you fail to provide this
I nformati on as required?

A Because | didn't track it. This is what |
had that was easily able to submt.

Q You understand that we did ask your

counsel nunerous tines to update this information?
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And you're now asserting, or your counsel has

asserted at the prior day of hearing, that certain
bands pl ayed outdoors but that information isn't
i ncluded in this spreadsheet?
A Well, 1'"mlooking at 2020, we weren't
al l oned inside, so they were all outdoor.
Q But that information wasn't provided in

t he spreadsheet ?

A It wasn't in our responses.

Q But not in the spreadsheet --

A Correct.

Q Ckay. And you would agree that after

April 1st, 2022, live nmusic has continued to play at
Copper Fire?

A Yes.

Q And it's with the simlar frequency with
the average of five days per week?

A It's not the sane frequency, and it's not
t he sane tine.

Q What do you nean it's not the sane
frequency and it's not the sane tine?

A Wel |, during Covid, we could only be
outside and it was only certain -- we could only
have two nusicians at a tinme. Then, when we resuned

i ndoors in 2021, we had water danage, so then we had
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no food. W reopened two weeks |ater, and we were

only live nusic and all owed people to cone in to
listen to nusic and bring food in fromother places
in the area. Throughout these years, | would say
the last couple years have been the hours that |
gave you, those are our consistent hours. Up until
that point, we were -- once in a while, we got until
m dnight. W don't do that at all anynore. | think
our hours m ght have been different, too. So, |
tried to get nore consistent in terns of Wdnesday,
Thursday nights. This tinme, you'll see different
tinmes all over. You'll also see, maybe, sonetines,
even then we would have two or three in a day. So,
they're not the sane now as they were then.

Q Ckay. Wen was the period of tine when
Copper Fire was just a live nusic venue. Do you

renenber the dates?

A Yeah, we had water damage in February of
'21. It was a Friday. And we shut down for two
weeks and reopened only as a bar, liquor, beer and

live nusic. W went another nonth or two where we
could actually serve cold sandw ches, chips, things
i ke that; and, then, as we rebuilt, parts of the
bui | ding and the kitchen, and then it was al nost

exactly three nonths later, we reopened fully.
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Q So --

A So, a coupl e nont hs.

Q So, by, like, June you were open?

A It was sonetinme in June.

Q Ckay.

A Early June, | think.

Q And you woul d agree that sone of the tines
on this spreadsheet extend, as you've nentioned,
until mdnight, sonetines |onger on the weekend,
dayti me hours, do you agree?

A It's probably been at | east two, maybe
t hree years.

Q Ckay.

A At | east two.

Q So, for exanple, if you go to Saturday,
April 24th, 2021 --

A Ch, April.

Q Yeah, on page 2. It's about hal fway down?

A |"msorry, April what?

Q April 24th. Saturday, April 24th?

A Yes.

Q On April 24th, nusic started at
11: 00 a.m, correct?

A Yeah, every once in a while -- well, every

once in a while. There are a | ot of events Downt own
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Belleville. Margarita wal ks, Bl oody Mary wal ks,

things like that, and there are several of us that
w Il sonetinmes have nusic starting at 11:00.

Q Ckay. So, on April 24th, nmusic went from
11: 00 a.m to 11:00 p.m, correct?

A The 24th went from 11:00 to 2: 00, 3:00 to
7:00 and 8:00 to 11:00.

Q So, there was two one-hour gaps?

A Correct. Plus the gaps for their breaks.

Q If you go up just up alittle bit to
April 10, 2021, that -- on that day, it |ooks Iike
it went until mdnight, correct? The nusic?

A Yeah, like | said, | did have -- it's
changed since then.

Q Okay. But at least in this period of tine
there were instances where you played beyond the
current schedul e?

A That woul d have been when we were down in
only live nusic.

Q Ckay. What about turning to the next
page, Saturday, July 17th, 2021. So, this would
have been after you were back to being a full

rest aur ant ?

A Yes.
Q So, that one goes until mdnight as well,
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correct?

A Yes, that was an event night if | had a

Q Ckay. What about June 25th, 20217

A June 25th? Sorry, |I'mlooking at July.
June --

Q Just up a little bit. Bottomthird of the
way down the page.

A That may have been -- oh, no, it was
the weather. It was inside. That was supposed to
be an outside event that because of the weather got
noved i nsi de.

Q Ckay. On that day, a band pl ayed inside
until m dnight?

A Because, again, they were supposed to be
out on the street, and it got noved i nside.

Q Then turning to the next page, what about
Friday, August 20th?

A Yes.

Q Yeah, that's also went until m dnight as
wel | ?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. |If you do go down to near the
bottom of the page, Sunday, Cctober 10th, that nusic

| ooks like it went until 10:00 p.m on a Sunday?
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A That's before Veterans Day. That's a
Sunday before a holi day.
Q What about Sunday, February 6th, on page
67?
A Sunday - -
Q It | ooks like the nusic went until 9:00.
Do you know why it went later?
A Sunday, | don't.
M5. ROBBINS: Ckay. W nove to admt
Exhi bit C- 16.
MR, PETRUSKA: No obj ecti on.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: C-16 is admtted.
(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit C 16 admtted onto the
hearing record.)

Q (By Ms. Robbins) When the bands are
pl ayi ng i nsi de Copper Fire, you or sonetinme your
staff take videos of them playing, correct?

A Yes.

Q And t hose videos get played on Facebook or
your soci al nedia page?

A Yes.

Q Are you the person who typically takes the

videos or is it soneone el se?
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A Sonetines it's sonebody fromthe band. |

grab it fromthem but sonetines it's ne.

Q Are you the one who posts videos to
Facebook?

A Yeah.

Q kay. Can you please turn to G 33?

A C 33?2

Q Sorry -- yeah, C-33.

(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit C 33 nmarked.)

Q (By Ms. Robbins) Now, we'll play the video
If you like, but if you're able to identify it
wi t hout us playing the whole video, we will. So, if
you go to the first page it is just fromthe conpany
that pulled the video off the website, but you go to
t he second page, it's a screenshot of a Facebook
page from Copper Fire on August 24t h.

Does this look |like a video you

post ed on August 24th?

A Yes, it should have been, yes.
Q kay. It's says 0 to 907?

A Ckay.

Q | s that the nanme of the band?
A Ckay.

Q Wul d you like us to play the video so you

can identify -- or fromthis can you identify this
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Is an accurate video you posted on your Facebook

page?

A | can't tell if it was -- | shared it or |
posted it. | don't renenber doing this, but I can't
tell. | have to see the actual post.

Q Well, the actual post is what -- the
actual post is what you see the screen grab of. So,
| wll represent to you it's a screen grab from
Copper Fire's Facebook page.

A It wasn't shared or --

Q No. It was from-- it was on your page.

A kay, | can't tell that.

Q And if you look in the top right hand
corner where, you know, above where it says
Overview, the person who owns the video -- posted
the video is Copper Fire, correct?

A "' mnot going to say yes or no, because,
one, | don't renmenber doing it; and, two, | would
have to actually see the Facebook page to know if |
shared it from sonewhere or if | did the video; but
| do a | ot of posting.

M5. ROBBINS: W'Ill nove to admt C- 33.

MR, PETRUSKA: No obj ecti on.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: C-33 is admtted.
(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit C33 admtted onto the
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hearing record.)
M5. ROBBINS: Okay. Turning to C 38,
Renae, it's going to be simlar.
(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit C 38 marked.)

Q (By Ms. Robbins)So, if you go to the
second page, again, a screen grab. It says Copper
Fire was live --

A A Live, | would have absol utely done that.

Q Ckay. So, you would agree that --

A Yeah.

Q -- this was a video was posted on June 17,
20227

A Yes.

M5. ROBBINS: Okay. W nove to admt

C- 38.

MR, PETRUSKA: No objecti on.
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: C-38 is admtted.
(Conpl ainants' Exhibit CG38 was admtted onto the
hearing record.)
Q (By Ms. Robbins) Renae, when did you first
becone aware the sound in the Copper Fire was an
I ssue?
A The day we opened.
Q When did you get your first noise

conpl aint fromthe Boyers?
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A The day we opened.

Q In 2016, prior to opening, did the Boyers
have ever raise any concerns about noise comng from
Copper Fire during construction?

A Yep, when ny -- when Brett was working on
a wall to see what was behind the drywall.

Q Ckay.

A It was about ten mnutes in, she cane into
the building, telling himto stop.

Q Ckay, so in 2016, when that happened, at
| east as early as then, you were aware that

Ms. Boyer lived next door?

A Yes.

Q Ckay.

A Her business is right there. She wasn't
com ng over that day about her -- where she |ives.

She was com ng that day about where she worked.
Q Ckay. But you were aware her business was

on the first floor?

A Yes.
Q As at least as early as then?
A Yes.

Q Ckay. Did you ever nention this conpl aint
to the architect?

A Nuh- huh, no.
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Q Did you becone concerned that your

nei ghbors coul d hear what was happeni ng i nside
Copper Fire?

A He was using a sl edgehammer, so, no, it
didn't cross ny m nd.

Q You nentioned previously that you got your
first conplaint about -- once Copper Fire was opened
on the first day it opened in March of 2018,
correct?

A Yeah, on St. Patrick's Day.

Q On St. Patrick's Day. And | believe
that's March 17th --

A | think it actually fell on the 17th of
March that year, yes.

Q Ckay. |If we go to Exhibit G 3, please.
Ckay. And Exhibit CG3 is an e-mail on March 17,
2018, from Ceri Boyer to you, correct?

A Yes.

Q kay. And she wote, "It |ooks |like
Copper Fire is a hit today. W're so glad you're
partially open, but the sound is very loud in our
second floor loft. Please talk to your architect
about acoustical renediation imediately." So, is
that the nessage you received from M. Boyer on the

17th, the first day you opened?
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A Yes.

Q You responded to Geri saying that you'll
have them turn the nusic down, correct?

A | did.

Q And she responded, "Thanks, that hel ps."

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Are you aware that Geri is a civil
engi neer ?

A Yes.

Q Did you talk to your architect at this
ti me about acoustical renediation |ike Ceri
suggest ed?

A No. We were already done.

Q Did you -- did you inplenent acoustic
remedi ation after this incident?

A This one e-mail? No. | said no.

Q Ch, sorry, | didn't hear you. Do you
agree that turning the nusic down naekes it quieter?

A She said it hel ps.

Q kay. But when you turn nusic down, does
it make the nusic quieter?

A Qovi ousl y.

M5. ROBBINS: And followng this, we nove
to admt Exhibit C 3.
MR, JACOBER: It's already in.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Yeah, it's al ready

adm tted.

Q (By Ms. Robbins) Ckay. Please go to C 4.
So, followng this first incident, you would agree
that the Boyers continued to have issues with the
noi se comng from Copper Fire; is that correct?

A Can you repeat?

Q | said followng the first day that Copper
Fire opened in March of 2018, you woul d agree that
t he Boyers continued to raise their concerns and
I ssues with the noise com ng from Copper Fire?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And Exhibit G4 is an e-nmail that
starts wwth a thread fromyou to Ms. Boyer; is that
correct? On May 2, 20187

A Yes.

Q Your e-mail starts with apol ogizing for
not calling Geri back, and then you nentioned that
we woul d have found sonethi ng, although not cheap,
and that you want | ook at Taverns tonorrow ni ght and
t hen nmake a deci sion?

A No.

Q Are you referring to sound mtigation
options in this e-mail?

A They were sound panel s.

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Transcript Of Proceedings November 06, 2024

. Page 122
Q Sound panels, okay. And Tavern is another

bar on Main Street, correct?

A That does not have |ive nusic.

Q Then what were you going to go | ook at at
Taverns?

A Their sound panels, because Geri said that
once they installed those, everything was so nuch
better, is what she told ne.

Q |'"'ma little confused by what was so nuch
better, for who?

A | don't know. |'mjust telling you what
she told ne.

Q Ckay. You said that Tavern doesn't have
live nusic?

A Not i nside.

Q Not inside. D d you talk with Tavern
about their sound panel s?

A | did not.

Q Did you ever ask them how nuch it cost to
install then?

A No, we | ooked it up ourself.

Q Where did you ook it up?

A | can't renenber, online. You can put
dinmensions in and it tells how nuch you need and

factors the cost onli ne.
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A
Q

sound?"

good. "

Q Online, but you don't know -- rage 1S

A There's several of them

Q But you don't recall which?

A | do not.

Q -- online website vendor it was? Ckay,
and you don't have a copy of that bid or that
estimate?

A No.

Q And how nuch it was?

A Li ke 30, 40,000 dollars. Sonething crazy.

Q Did you install anything after this e-nmail
was sent and you investigated the paneling?

A Like | said, we put those sponge sound

panel things up around the corners after that. |

just don't know exactly when.

And those sponge things are not the sane

paneling --

No.

It's not the sane paneling that Tavern
rect?

Correct.

Ckay. In your e-mail, you also said, "W

didn't have nusic |ast Saturday. How was the

And then Ms. Boyer responded, "Saturday was
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A Were are you at?

Q So, the last sentence on May 2, 2018, you
said, "We didn't have nusic |ast Saturday. How was
t he sound?”

A Yeah.

Q And her response at the start of her enuil

was, "Saturday was good."

A Uh- huh.
Q She also said in her e-nmail that she still
t hi nks you could have -- you could have nusic if you

did sound mtigation and just had the nusic around
80 deci bels, correct?
A Ri ght .
Q kay. We nove to admt C-4.
MR. JACOBER: It's in.
M5. ROBBINS: Sorry, | don't have ny sheet
in front of ne.
MR. JACOBER: That's okay.

Q (By Ms. Robbins) And foll ow ng these
e-mai |l s of May 2018, at other tinmes Ms. Boyer
continued to informyou when the nusic was too | oud;
Is that correct?

A I n her opinion, yes.

Q But she inforned you, in her opinion, that

the nmusic was too | oud?
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A Yes, she did. She texted ne all the tine.

Q What did you do to investigate her
conpl ai nts?

A W submitted all the texts and she has,
too, | responded to every one of her texts until
2022.

Q And responding to her texts was
I nvestigating the sound issues at Copper Fire?

A | have listened to everything that she has
said and made deci sions based on that. She's had
sound testing. | read that entire report. |[|'ve
| ooked at all the EPA and the World Health
Organi zati on docunents, and |'ve nmade deci sions
based on taking all that in. | asked to hear it for
nmysel f nunerous tines. | was not allowed to do
that, so ny investigation was pretty limted only
because | only could take what | could hear in our
restaurant and what she's texting ne; and a | ot of
tinmes, it didn't nake sense. So, | tried to figure
this out nyself. | talked to ny nusicians. |
talked to them-- sone of them are sound acoustic
guys, and people were offering suggesti ons know ng
that I was having sound conplaints frommnmy nei ghbor.
| tal ked to nunmerous people. Albert is when -- he

and | tal ked several tines. One of the biggest
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conpl aints cane on a day he and his wfe were

pl ayi ng, and he and | have tal ked nunerous tines
about what we can do with whatever is happening on
the other side of the wall.

So, |I've done a lot of research and
I nvestigating, as nmuch as | can, w thout getting

anything from CGeri Boyer other than it's too | oud.

Q And woul d you agree the nusic is com ng
fromyour side of the wall, correct?
A | honestly don't -- not always believe

that, because there is a band that wll play from
across the street that will go right into her front
wi ndow. A |lot of the conplaints cane after | saw
her, Geri or Becca, wal king back from either dinner
or wal king their dogs, right when they wal ked ri ght
by our front window. | have texts where | will have
just seen themwal k by, and then get a text that
says it's entirely too loud. | don't know | often
t hought that maybe the sound was getting confused as
to whether it was com ng out of our w ndow, back
into their wi ndow, or was it because they just

wal ked by and heard it. So, | did read research,
and |1've always tried to stay within the | egal

gui delines, and |'ve done that.

Q And you woul d agree that you're not a
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| awyer ?

A Correct.

Q And you woul d agree that you're not a
sound expert?

A | do.

Q And you woul d agree that Copper Fire plays

live nmusic five nights a week?

A Yes.

Q Ckay.

A Downt own Bel |l evill e.

Q We talked -- you nentioned text nessages.
Please turn to CG11. 1Is this the text nessage chain

you were referencing between you --

A They started in 2018, so this is just one
of them

Q This is -- I'"ll represent this was the
chain that was produced in this case --

A Ckay.

Q -- between you and Ms. Boyer. So, if we
go | ook at Novenber 6, 2020, at 11:58 p.m, she --
Ms. Boyer, texted, "Please turn the nusic off at
Copper Fire."

A Ckay.

Q Ckay. This is alnost at m dni ght,

correct?
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A That was during Covi d.

Q Exactly. Wre you allowed to play nusic
at Copper Fire during Covid until alnost m dnight?

A W were only allowed inside a couple weeks
in July and a couple weeks in Novenber. But, yes,
we were allowed -- if we were allowed inside.

Q | think you previously said that you
al ways responded to Ms. Boyer every tinme?

A | tried.

Q Ckay. But in this instance, it doesn't

| ook |ike --

A | may have been asleep. | may have been
out. It's mdnight.

Q If -- hold on a second. |If you go | ook at
Exhi bit C- 16.

A Ckay.

Q That previous day we were | ooking at was
Novenber 6, 2020. If we look at CG16, it | ooks |ike

Danny Kal aher (sic) was playing that night.

A Yes.

Q Ckay.

A That's what doesn't nake sense because
he's an acoustics -- yes, he may be using a

m cr ophone, sol o nusi ci an.

Q But he was -- according to your
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spreadsheet, he was playing on the night that Geri

sent that nessage, correct?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. And M. Kal aher actually he's
pl ayed at Copper Fire nunerous tines, correct?

A It's been a few years, but he was pl aying
t here.

Q Ckay. |If we ook at G 16 on June 9th of

2021 --
A Ckay.
Q He was playing that day as well, correct?
A Yes, | had himnonthly for awhile.
Q Ckay. Can you |l ook at Exhibit-30 for ne?

(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit C 30 marked.)
THE WTNESS: G 30.
M5. ROBBINS: Yeah.
THE W TNESS: Ckay.
Q (By Ms. Robbins) And C-30 is from June
9th, 2021, which we just established is when
M. Kal aher played, and this | ooks |like a video
posted by Copper Fire of himplaying; is that
correct?
A Yeah.
Q Ckay. Wuld you agree this is a video you
posted of hinf
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A Pr obabl y.

M5. ROBBINS: Ckay. W nove to admt
Exhi bit C- 30.

MR, PETRUSKA: No obj ecti on.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: C-30 is adm tt ed.

(Conpl ainants' Exhibit CG30 admtted onto the

hearing record.)

Q (By Ms. Robbins) Now, going back to C 11,

the text nessage thread. The next text is on

Friday, June 11th, 2021. I'massumng it has to be
2021 because it's -- we already had 2020 happen, so
that's the assunption. You renenber exchangi ng text

nmessages wth Ms. Boyer in 2020 before the | awsuit

was filed, correct?

A Yes.
Q So, at 9:41 p.m, Geri tells you that she

had can hear the nusic tonight; and you said, "W

wi |

ask themto turn it down." And she responded,

and then there was a few exchanges. You say, "W

asked themto turn it down. Better?" She responded

at the top of the next page, "Yes, thank you." So,

in this instance, you were willing to turn the nusic

down;

Is that correct?
A Yes, | was willing whenever | could.

Ckay. And on June 13th, 2021, Ms. Boyer
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texts that she could hear the nusic but it's not
of fensive since we're just wal king around but for
your understandi ng, we can hear Take a Load off
Benny now. So, she even told you in this
instance -- in this instance that she could identify
the exact song playing; is that correct?

A | actually renmenber this text, because |
called in because | wasn't there; and | even -- we
talked to -- | was talking to soneone; and | said

where are you at; and they said I'"'min the bar.
couldn't hear the nusic behind them | renmenber
this text. And | didn't understand it because --
and she said it's not offensive. I'mlike, it's
| onwer than what it was |ast night, because | was
calling in, asking themwhat the decibels were; and
she goes, well, it just nust be a different
frequency. That's why | called in, and | couldn't
under stand how she could hear it when | couldn't
hear it when | was calling sonebody and they're
standing in the bar. | couldn't even hear the nusic
behind them So, | got a lot of texts that were
very confusing for ne. And | was trying to figure
out what | could do.

Q And you woul d agree, though, you weren't

in the bar at that tinme on that day?
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A This is anot her exanple where she's --
Q That was not ny question, M --
A | didn't hear you.
Q | said, you would agree you were not --
you weren't in bar, so you didn't personally hear
the nmusic firsthand?
A Correct. But I'mreading the texts, and

then she even follows up with | wal ked by and it
could be heard to the other side of Main Street, the
doors closed. Wat does that have to do with what's
going on in her apartnment? These were the kind of
t hi ngs that were confusing for ne.

Q Ckay. If you could, going forward, |isten

to ny question and just try to answer it?

A Sur e.
Q |'d appreciate it. After Ms. Boyer on the
13th told you she could hear the exact tinme -- the

exact song playing, why didn't you offer to turn the
sound down?

A | called in and tal ked to sonebody, and |
couldn't even hear them | also had them-- |

remenber this day very well --

Q But you weren't inside the bar at the
time?
A But, no, | renenber the exchange very
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well. | renmenber talking to them asking what the

decibel was. It's like it's lower than it was --
this is what got very confusing. | couldn't even
hear the nusic behind them | had them asking
custoners, what it sounded |i ke and everybody at the
bar near the nusic, said they could talk freely.
This was a very confusi ng exchange for ne.

Q Ckay. But you weren't in the bar that
night, so you didn't personally talk to any of the
custoners, correct?

A No, | did not.

Q Ckay. You weren't in Ms. Boyer's |oft

that night so you couldn't hear --

A No, |'ve never been in her |oft except one
time, listening to Chetch (sic) tunes.

Q Ckay.

A O not even hearing it actually.

Q So, you were -- you mght have been

confused, you would agree that you' re not a sound

expert, so this could be a confusing issue?

A What's confusing --
MR PETRUSKA: |I'm-- I'mgoing to object
to the form [|I'mgoing to object to the form

It's a conpound question, but, also, she asked

the question but she doesn't |ike her answer,
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so.
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: (Ckay. Pl ease
re-ask your question.
Q (By Ms. Robbins) | can just nove on to a

new question. Earlier, you said, when | asked you
about the first instance where you did turn the
vol une down, you said | turned it down whenever |
coul d. \What does that nean?

A Sonetines it's so busy inside that you
can't go any |l ower, neaning they wouldn't even hear
the nusicians. So, if we're on a Friday- Saturday
night, there's a hundred people in there, the
deci bel readings are already high. The nusic, you
can't hear themsinging wwth all the chatter and all
t he people that you can't turn the deci bels down any
| ower or they will not be able to hear the band.

Q And how do you know they won't be able to
hear the band?

A Alot of times | amthere, and when |I'm
not, they have to nake a judgnent. |'ve talked to
my staff. We know what the policies are. They have
a deci bel reader, but there are tinmes when we are so
busy, we cannot turn it down | ower than, say, 90
because they cannot hear the band.

Q And this decibel reader you're talking
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about, is a cell phone app; is that correct?

A No, we actually have a deci bel reader that
IS up on the serving station, so the nusicians and
everybody on that side of the venue can see it.

Q |s that a calibrated deci bel reader?

A It is a baseline for us, and it's been
wor ki ng great for us.

Q When you say it's been working great for
you, explain that?

A Qur custoners see it. They want to know
what it's it about. Qur nusicians have a straight
line, like |I can see that TV. There are rules
posted in the window for the nusicians. It's well
known that we are nonitoring our sound. So it's
wor ked out great to keep the levels |ow

Q Ckay. |s sonebody staring and wat chi ng
the nonitor on the wall at all tines?

A Qur nusi ci ans are.

Q So, when they're singing, the nmusician is
al ways just | ooking straight ahead at the nonitor
and nowhere el se?

A If it gets to the point when they can't
hear sonebody's order, they're going to | ook at that
deci bel reader, and they're going to knowif it's

too high or too low. A manager will go talk to the
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band i nredi at el y.

Q Ckay.

A O their sound guy.

Q So, the sound policy is that bands have to
keep it below a certain decibel. You would agree
with that, correct?

A Yes.

Q And t he bands are the ones that control
their own volune, correct?

A A lot of tine, us.

Q And it takes a server having issues
hearing an order to then go | ook at the sound neter
and turn the vol une down?

A W' ve been doing it so |long, we know what
IS -- we -- | can walk in and i medi ately know if
it'"s too high or too low. They are the sane way.
They are there when the bands are there. So, it's
So visible you can see -- you can't mss it.

Q When was the last tine, in your opinion,
when you wal ked in too high?

A It happens. Especially when they're
starting. But that's why they have a clear |line of
sight of what that decibel reader is, and they know
| wll not hire themback if they don't abide by our

rul es.
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Q And how many tinmes have you not hired a
band back?
A At |east two, and | have not booked many.
Q And when you say at |east two, it was
because their noise was too | oud?
A Yes. | had them | eave earlier, and they

got a cut in pay.

Q And when were these two bands playi ng
about ?

A A coupl e years ago.

Q And there's been no ot her bands, other
than those two, that you' ve stopped earlier and told
themto | eave?

A Then | actually had to ask themto | eave.

Q And that was, as you said, sonetine a
coupl e years ago?

A Ri ght .

Q kay. On -- if you go back to Exhibit
C-11, turn to page 8. Their are page nunbers at the
bottom They're kind of small.

A Ckay.

Q At 9:50 p.m on June 18, 2021, GCeri says
she's just getting honme and put the grandkids to bed
and the nusic is pretty bad; is that correct?

A Yes.
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Q Then you responded, "It should be better

now. "

A Yes.

Q And she agreed, "Yes, thanks." Was this
an instance where you wlling to turn the sound
down?

A | don't renenber if it was one where --
don't know.

Q Ckay.

A | don't know. | could have been there.
It could have been ny nmanager.

Q But with you saying it should be better

now neans that you asked themto do sonethi ng about

the noise in the restaurant?

A | probably -- if I wasn't there, | would
have been checking on it. |If | was there, | did
sonet hi ng.

Q kay. If we look at C-16, which is that
l'ist of bands.

A Ckay.

Q For June 18th, 2020, which |I believe -- or
2021, sorry. June 18, 2021, | believe Buffal o Road
was playing; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q They played until mdnight that night, it
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| ooks 11 ke.

A Looks like it.

Ckay. Can you turn to CG31 for ne?
(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit C 31 marked.)

Q (By Ms. Robbins)And if you |ook at this
screenshot, it's fromJune 18, 2021. It says,
“"Buffalo road is so good, we've having an awesone
Friday." Wuld this be the video of Buffal o Road
that was posted from June 18?

A Yes, but | don't knowif | took that video
or not because that was also in relation to ny, at
the tinme, manager. She may have sent ne the video,
then | posted it. So, | don't knowif it was her or
| that did sonething about the nusic.

Q But you woul d have been the one that
posted this video?

A Yes, absolutely.

M5. ROBBINS: Okay. W nove to admt

Exhi bit C 317

MR, PETRUSKA: No obj ecti on.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: C-31 is admtted.
(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit C31 admtted onto the
hearing record.)

Q (By Ms. Robbins) Fromthe inmage in C 31,

you can see that there's -- it |looks like an
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el ectrical guitar player, an acoustic guitar player,

a bass player and druns. Does that | ook accurate?

A Yes.

Q So, going back to C11, sorry, to nake you
junp around. Back on page 8, when you can get
t here.

A Ckay.

Q At the bottom of page 8, starting on
June 25th, 2021, at 10:22 p.m, Ceri says that she
wants to go on the record that this is too loud; is
that correct?

A That's what it says.

Q Ckay. If you go to the next page, you
said that we've turned it down over 10 decibels; is
that correct?

A Yes.

Q And then she goes on to say, "It's still
cl ear over here and it's after 11:00. 1Is it ending
soon?" Is that accurate?

A That's what it says.

Q You say, "We've turned it down tw ce since
10: 00, and | can't bring it down nore. |It's
reasonable.”" Wy was it reasonabl e?

A | have to see what day of the week that

was, but ny guess is, it's a weekend night.
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Q It was -- according to your text nessages
A Fri day night.
-- It was a Friday night?
A Meani ng exactly what | just said earlier.

There are tines when | can't bring it down any | ower
or they can't hear it inside our place.

Q Do you know if on this instance -- on this
date, if you said you can't turn it down anynore,
did you try turning it down and then couldn't hear
it?

A Well, | said | already turned it down over
10 deci bel s.

Q Then you said you can't bring it down
anynore. Was it physically inpossible to bring it
down anynore?

A Wt hout hearing the band? Probably. 1'd
have to see who the band is.

Q Did you try it?

A | don't know. |'mjust saying what | did,
what | told her and why | couldn't go down any
further. | just explained earlier why there are
times we can't go down any | ower.

Q And at the bottom GCeri then indicates

that she has a five-year-old up because it's not
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qui et enough to sleep. And then you responded,

“"We're doing everything we can to conply with the
law, and that's 63 deci bel s and bel ow on your si de,
which | think we've been doing." Wat were you
doing to conply with the | aw?

A At this tinme, ny understanding, | had
al ready | ooked at the EPA and the Wirld Health
Organi zation, trying to understand what all that
nmeant; but ny assunption was, as long -- to follow
the law was to stay under a certain decibel; and
that's what | worked to do this is entire tine.

Q So, do you think that it's reasonable for
sound to be up 63 decibels inside Geri's loft after
11: 00 p.m ?

A That's not for ne to answer.

Q But that's seens to be what you -- you
said that it's 36 deci bels and bel ow on your side.

A It's reasonable to ne.

Q So, you think reasonable can be up to

63 decibels inside Geri's |loft?

A According to what | know about the | aw,
that's what | -- that's all | could go wth.
Q | wasn't asking about the law, | was

aski ng about you personally. Do you reasonably

think --
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A But that's what | --
Q Yeah, do you think it's reasonable for

sound to be up to 63 decibels inside her [oft?

A | don't know what it sounds |ike on her
side, so | don't know. |I'mjust trying to be
reasonable by following the law. So, to ne, |I'm

bei ng reasonable. So, she says it has nothing to do
with that, and it had everything to do with that for
me because that's all | had or have.

Q And you weren't inside the Boyers |oft at
the tinme you were sending these texts?

A | was never allowed to go in there.

Q So, you couldn't assess whether it was
reasonable on their side, correct?

A It's reasonabl e on ny side.

Q If we go to C-16, and we | ook at
June 25th, 2021

A Yes.

Q That's Wl fe & Nation, correct?

A Yes.

Q And they also -- it looks |like they played

until mdnight that night, correct?
A Yes.
Q Ckay. And Wlife & Nation has played at

Copper Fire other tines, correct?
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A They haven't played in about three years.

Q But they have -- on dates other than
January 25, you have them play at the bar nore than
once, correct?

A Yes, and | booked the last -- that m ght
have been the last inside one. | always try to book
them outside. The only reason that they were inside
t hat ni ght was because of weat her.

Q Let's look -- why do you try to book them
out si de?

A Because they draw a huge crowd, and | want
to be able to accommpdate them W are allowed to
get street -- a street closure a couple tines a
year, and | always saved it for them

Q Can you please go to Exhibit C 327

(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit C 32 marked.)

Q (By Ms. Robbins) And, C-32, if you | ook at
it, it's a video posted by Copper Fire in My of
2021. It says, "Wl fe & Nation band warm ng up.

Ww, they are good."

A Yes.

Q s this Wil fe & Nation?

A Yes, | was there.

Q So, that woul d have been the sanme band

that was playing inside the bar?
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A They were supposed to be outside, yes.

Q And this was -- this was on a different
day, but June 25th, they also played inside?

A That's the sane peopl e, yes.

M5. ROBBINS: Okay, we nove to admt

Exhi bit C- 32.

MR. PETRUSKA: No obj ecti on.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: C-32 is admtted.
(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit C32 admtted onto the
hearing record.)

Q (By Ms. Robbins) We're going to be going
back to G 11 then.

A Wi ch page.

Q Page 10.

A Ckay.

Q Ckay. So, on Sunday, June 27th at 2021,
at 4:45 p.m GCeri sent you a text letting you know
she could hear the song Don't Stop Believing
playing; is that correct?

A That's what it says.

Q Ckay. Then, on this date, you said, "It

Page 145

can't go down lower." |Is that correct?
A Yes.
Q Was it inpossible to turn it down | ower?
A If | said | can't go |lower, |'m saying
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can't go | ower.

Q Was it inpossible to walk up to the vol une
and crank it down at all?

A | don't control their volume, but I'm
saying | couldn't -- | wouldn't be able to hear them
if I went down any | ower.

Q | think you previously said that woul d be
on Friday and Saturday nights when you have a big
crowd?

A Usual |y, vyes.

Q This is a Sunday afternoon?

A You get crowds on Sunday afternoons. |
don't know -- tell ne who was playing and | can tell

you if it was a big crowd or not.

Q Do you think it is reasonable for a
nei ghbor to hear an entire song through their
unat t ached bui |l di ng?

A | can't answer that.

Q | f you | ook at the bottom of page 10 in
the text thread, you can see that it says Friday,
July 21st, 2022, 10:10 p.m, and then the text cones
on the next page.

A Wait, July what?

Q July 2nd, right?

A Yeah.
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Q At 10:107

A Yes.

Q And then it pushes over to the next page.
| just wanted to establish the date. On this date,
Geri asked you to turn the nmusic down because the
kids are trying to sleep, do you see that?

A Yes.

Q And this tinme you didn't respond; is that
correct?

A Yes.

Q Did Geri text you every night bands were
pl ayi ng?

A No.

Q Can you go to page 14 in Exhibit 11,

A Yes.
Q And at 9:02 p.m on Septenber 2nd, 2021,
Ms. Boyer texted you that the band vol une needs to

be turned down; is that correct?

A What year are we in?

Q This is still 2021; it's all the sane
t hr ead.

A Ckay.

Q That -- did she ask for the band pl ayi ng

to turn down; is that correct?
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A Yes.

Q This is on a Thursday at 9:02 p.m

A Yes.

Q And, in this instance, you al so

didn't respond?

A Yes. | was getting to the point where |
was done respondi ng.

Q If you go to the next page, page 15 in
Exhibit 11, Decenber 22nd. Do you see that in 20217?

A Yes.

Q Ceri texted you that her dying aunt is
suffering due to the nusic and asked you -- there
was sonme exchanges and asked you, if you go to the
next page, to stop disrupting their I|ives.

A Yes.

Q It | ooks like after these -- this
| ong-w nd exchanges, if you kind of go forward, it
| ooks |i ke at sone point in |ate Decenber, early
January, you m ght have bl ocked her?

A | did.

Q Ckay. Wy did you choose to bl ock
Ms. Boyer?

A Years of trying to make her happy, trying
to be responsive and nothing we did ever worked and

not al ways believing what she was telling ne. So, |
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have a long history with Ceri.

M5. ROBBINS: And we've touched on this --

oh, we nove to admt Exhibit G 11.

MR. JACOBER: It's in.
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Yeah, it's in.

Q (By Ms. Robbins) So, if you turn to
Exhi bit 17 and Exhibit 18? These are the live nusic
policies that we were tal king about before.

(Conpl ai nants' Exhibits C 17 and C- 18 marked.)
THE W TNESS:  Yes.

Q (By Ms. Robbins) There's two versions of
these. Can you tell nme, do you know when each one
was i npl enent ed?

A No, |'ve been updating them | probably
have had either on version four or five since 2021.
| started putting the dates on them

Q Before we tal k about these further, going
back to the text nmessages, we've | ooked at the
nmessages and there was tines you were willing to
turn it down; is that correct?

A | was always willing to do sonething. |
have done nothing but try to do sonething.

Q And when you -- on certain eveni ngs when
Geri asked you to turn down and you did, she

acknow edged that it worked and sai d thanks,
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correct?

A Sonet i nmes.

Q Ckay. So, why bl ock her?

A There's three years of -- that's just a
coupl e exanples of our history. There's a |ot nore
to this story than just a couple texts.

Q Goi ng back to CG17, C18. Are they in the
record?

MR. JACOBER: They are not. You don't
have them noted, | think.

M5. ROBBINS: |s your version, Paul --

MR. PETRUSKA: | have used them | have
not admtted them

MR. JACOBER: They are not admtted.

Q (By Ms. Robbins) So, these are two
versions of the Copper Fire noise policy; is that
correct?

A Yes.

M5. ROBBINS: Okay. W nove to admt

Exhibit 17 and 18.

MR. PETRUSKA: No obj ecti on.
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: C-17 and C-18 are
adm tted.
(Conpl ai nants' Exhibits G 17 and C-18 are admtted

onto the hearing record.)
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Q (By Ms. Robbins) Is this policy given to

every band?
A It's posted in the wi ndow, so, yes.
Q Where in the w ndow?
A Say |'mthe band. The window is right
here. (Indicating)
So, to the side by the door?

Yes.

| thought we al ready tal ked about that.

Q

A

Q How do you enforce the policy?

A

Q Besi des the two bands that have a few

years ago you asked themto | eave earlier?

A Before | even hire them | go look in
videos. |If | feel like they're going to be too
loud, | tell them nope, you' re not a good fit for

us. That's one way. A lot of these nusicians |
have been working with four or five years. \Wen |
bring a new band in, we have this conversation
before | even bring themin. Wen they first start,
they have to go to the bar, because in here, | think
it's -- | don't knowif it's -- yeah, we have our
tabs. Each band or nusician gets a tab. They go
and establish their tab before they even start nusic
and they're setting up. So, they may ask about it.

Qur manager or whoever the bartender is, may tell
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them but they are very well aware of what our sound

rul es are.

And as far as enforcing, they al so
know -- | actually had a nusician just nessage ne a
week ago, asking if | haven't been bringing himback
because he was too | oud.

Q Wi ch nusician was that?

A Roy Frye. Because he was asked to turn it
down, | don't knowif it is a Sunday or whatever,
it's in the nessage, but he's -- he's upset that |
have not booked him and he asked if it was
specifically because of this.

Q When did Roy Frye play nost recently?

A Ch, a year or two ago.

Q Did you ask himto | eave early?

A No.

Q And it | ooks like -- if you |l ook at C 18,

the limts are 85 to 88 on Wdnesday and Thur sday,
Fri day evenings and Saturday afternoons; and then it
al so says 88 to 92 Friday and Saturday eveni ngs?

A Yes, that was a typo.

Q Ckay. |Is the -- Friday evenings, should
that be renoved fromthe --

A No, Fridays and Saturdays should --

allow a little bit higher decibel.
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group does it belong with? The top one?

the 88 to 92.
Q Ckay. And how did you decide on 88 to
92 deci bel s?

there was a buffer between the two buil di ngs, |

even though he said 55, that if | could keep the

deci bel s, you know, even if they hit a hundred,

continuing to bring this down over the years.
Q What are your current limts?

A They're very simlar to this, but on

Q Ckay. On Exhibit G118, in the line that

says 85 to 88, Friday evenings should be not in that

l'ine?

A We are on 18?

Q Yes, C-18. So the top line --

A | was on 17.

Q That's okay. | just see Friday on there
twce. I'mtrying to establish, which -- which

A No, | just said the Friday and Saturdays,

"Il allow that one to go higher, so it should be in

A These all got established after | read the
sound report that CGeri had from M ke, know ng that
knew

| had 50 -- I'll just said 50 was ki nd of ny nunber,

would still be within the legal limts. | have been

Friday and Saturday nights, especially when it's so

Page 153
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busy, 92 doesn't even sonetines -- they end up

getting closer to 95, but | feel like they're still
inour limts. | know M ke conpl ai ned about how
loud it is, and, internally, alot of it is with ny
staff. |If they can hear the orders, that is the
subjective part of this, in terns of making sure
that the bands and everybody -- the custoners are
happy and the bands are staying within the limts
that ny servers and bartenders can hear.

Q Have you i nvestigated how | ow you coul d
have the decibel Iimts while still allow ng the bar
to host live nusic?

A It depends on how many people are in
there. That's what it boils down to for us in terns
of nmonitoring the decibel limts. Say it's a
Wednesday ni ght, not as many people, you are going
to be in the 80, 78 to 84 range. But the nore
peopl e you have in there, you can't -- they don't
sound -- they're not a band. They're not live
music. You can't even hear them You can't hear
their words. You can't hear anything. You just
hear a nmuffle.

Q Have you been in the bar in instances
where you just hear nuffle? Fromthe band, as you

describe it. You said you just hear nuffle.
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A Well, when they're doing their sound

testings and they're getting started, you can hear
it go high. You can hear it go low. A lot of these
bands on Friday and Saturday nights have their own
sound guys. They're watching and they know t hey
have to stay in the decibel range as well, but
they're wal king around the entire place. So, to go
any | ower, when they're doing their testing, they
know when it's too low. And |I've also told them
and it says here, set and |l eave it, because a | ot of
themw |l -- they hear the noise of everyone, you
know, coming in and it's getting | ouder and | ouder
because of the custoners, the bands want to, I|ike,
turn it up even nore. And we try to do the bal ance
to where everybody can hear it, but then the
bands -- they shouldn't adjust until we ask themto
turn up. And there have been situations when we had
to ask themto turn up because our custoners can't
even hear them

Q And you said the bands control their own
sound; is that correct?

A Their own base or their -- yes.

Q And i s soneone nonitoring the band at all
times to ensure that they aren't turning the vol une

up without you telling themto?
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A | don't control their sound.

Q And you tal ked about how you listen to the
peopl e who al so cone to Copper Fire, your custoners;
Is that correct?

A Uh- huh.

Q Wul d you agree that Geri is not the only
person who has conpl ai ned about the noise inside of
Cotton Fire?

A | nside? No, of course.

Q And custoners have conplained that's it
| oud; is that correct?

A Yeah.

Q And as the owner-nanager of Copper Fire,
you deal with a lot of those conplaints; is that
correct?

A | wouldn't say a | ot.

Q You're the one who handl es the conplaints
when they cone in; is that correct?

A Well, alot are them-- are you talking
about just nusic, or are you just talking about any
ki nd of conpl aint.

Q Any kind of conpl aint.

A Well, there's all kind of conplaints that
cone through a restaurant and bar.

Q If there's a conplaint and you're at the
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bar --

A No, | don't normally handle it. |It's
handl ed by our managers.

Q VWhat if there is a witten conpl aint
onl i ne?

A | handl e those.

Q And those online review sites, are those

Facebook, Yel p, Googl e?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And you --

A And Facebook.

Q Facebook, Yelp, Google. Are those the
three sites.

A Yeah.

Q And you manage Copper Fire's pages on all
three of those --

A | do.

Q Let's turn to Exhibit C 19.

(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit G 19 marked.)

Q (By Ms. Robbins) Can you go to Facebook 2

to start? This is a reviewthat says it doesn't

recommend Copper Fire; it's from Novenber 24t h,

2021. It says foods, drinks, service were |ousy and
music is way too loud. "W won't be back."
A Yeah.
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Q It says Renae Eichholz responded. That's

you, correct?

A Yes.
Q So, you were aware of this review?
A Yes.

Q And you responded to the review, is that

correct?

A | did.

Q And a part -- if you go down to the third
line, you said, "If it was too |oud, you may have

caught us just at the beginning as he fine tuned the

volunme."” |Is that correct?
A Yes.
Q Do you renenber the volune being an issue

on this night?

A No.

Q Goi ng back to Facebook 1. This is from
Decenber 4th, 2021, from a D ane Yarbrough who
doesn't recommend Copper Fire. This person posted,
"W were there at 5:00, and the music was blaring."

A Uh- huh.

Q And then it also | ooks like they can
sel ect sonething, and it says "Noisy", do you see

that in a kind of bolder-col ored bl ack?

A | see it.
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Q Ckay. And it says on this post, Renae
Ei chhol z responded, and that's you, correct?

A Yes.

Q So, you saw this review, correct?

A Qobvi ousl y, yes.

Q And you're aware that soneone posted a
revi ew saying that the nusic was blaring?

A Yes.

Q And it | ooks like in part of
your response, you said, "W had a nusic DJ from

3:00 to 6:00 and try to nake every one aware prior

Do you believe that if soneone thinks that Copper
Fire is too | oud they should just not cone during

the live music tinmes?

since then we al so have a sign posted on the door

where we're actually in the process of turning

Page 159

to visits on social nedia platforns.” And then if
you go down to the bottom you said, "If you decide
you' d like to try us again, please call in advance

to avoid tines that are schedul ed events and nusic."

A | actually have that posted on ny front
door. | actually have that we are a |ive nusic
venue. |'ve done so nuch, this is three years ago,

little signs on the tables, so that if someone cones

in at 4:00 o' clock or, say, 7:00 o'clock, and they

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F.
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want dinner, | want themto know that there's going

to be live nusic starting in an hour to give them
f or ewar ni ng.
| have -- this is three years ago.

Qur one stars, especially about sound, are -- are
reviews now are so different than what they were
when we started, in 2021 and even now. Am | going
to get a nusic conplaint? Absolutely. AmI'm going
to get a food conplaint? Absolutely. W're a bar.
Everybody conpl ains. But we have way nore five
stars than we have one stars. So, | can't nake
busi ness deci si ons based on one or two revi ews.

Q So, you think it's just one or two reviews
t hat have conpl ai ned about the noise at Copper Fire?

A "' m not saying that we didn't have an
I ssue. We have worked very, very hard since we
opened, since we had the sound guys cone in, hers
and ours. |'ve been constantly been updating and

wor ki ng with our nusicians, and |I'mvery sel ective

on the bands and nusicians that we hire. | do have
the policies in place that we're followng. | have
a deci bel neter, you know. | don't know what el se |

can do that's ever going to nmake Geri happy.
Q And none of your policies is to keep the

max deci bel level at 84; is that correct?
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A Show nme the noise policy again.
Q Your noise policy --
A The max, no, no.

M5. ROBBINS: W nove to admt C- 109.

THE WTNESS: It's not going to fix the
probl em

MR. PETRUSKA: No obj ecti on.

M5. ROBBINS: Myve to strike her | ast
conment as nonr esponse.

HEARI NG OFFI CER VWEBB: C-19 is admtted.

(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit C19 admtted onto the
hearing record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: | don't renenber
what the |ast comment was.

M5. ROBBINS: | asked a question. She
answered. As | went to enter the exhibit, she
made a comment that wasn't in response to any
guesti on.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: (Okay, we can strike
t hat .

Q (By Ms. Robbins) Moving on to Exhibit
C 20, it's the next one.
(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit C 20 marked.)
Q (By Ms. Robbins) And just |ike before,

we're going to start at the back and work our way
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toward --
A Ckay.
Q -- chronologically. So, if you can go to
the Yelp 3, these are the Yelp reviews?
A Ckay.
Q | know you said the other ones were from

2021 and three years ago. This first review, Yelp 3
fromJoan C. is from Decenber 3rd, 2022. So, that's
nore recent than 2021, correct?

A Ri ght .

Q Ckay. And in this review, the revi ewer
says, "The nusic is so loud, we couldn't talk to our
friends, and we were in the back." It |ooks |ike
there's a cooment from Renae E. of Copper Fire Bar
and Eatery; that's you, correct?

A Yes.

Q Al right. So, you saw this review?

A | did.

Q And you're aware that Copper Fire received
a reviewthat said the nusic was so |oud that they

couldn't talk to their friends when they were in the

back.
A For sonme reason, | think Yelp renoved.
|'d have to | ook. But, yeah, | renenber this one.
Q Ckay. |In response to this one at the
888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
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bottom vyou said, "I'll hope you'll give us another
try on the hours we don't have live nusic."

A | did.

Q And as you say, you have a sign up telling

people if they don't want to listen to |ive nusic,
don't be there when the nusic is playing; is that
correct?

A Yeah.

Q Ckay. Turn to the previous page, Yelp 2
Gacie L., this is from March

A Wher e?
Q Just from one page earlier.
A Ch, I'msorry.
Q You see Gracie L.?
A Yes.
Q There's a picture of food if that hel ps.
That's from March 3rd of 20237

A Yes.

Q I n her second sentence, this review says,
"When they have live nusic playing |oud on their
I ndoor stage, the nusic is always unbearably | oud
and unpl easant inside the restaurant.” On March 18,
2023, it says Renae E., business owner, responded.
That's you, correct?

A Yes.
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Q So, you saw this review?

A | did.

Q Ckay. You responded, saying, "I'm happy
to hear you'll still cone for the food and avoid the
live music tines." |s that correct?

A Yes.

Q Then Yelp 1, this is from Septenber of
this year; so, at this point, just a couple -- just

over a nonth ago. This is from Septenber 18th,
2024, from Mark P. He says, "The atnosphere is poor

with very high ceilings that have no noise

danpening. It's so loud you can't talk to anyone
sitting next to you." Do you see that?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And --

A Wait, which one are we on?

Q Yel p 1.

A W' re back to Yelp 1.

Q Yeah, we're chronologically noving |ater
to earlier. Yelp 1, Mark P., do you see that?

A Yes.

Q And Mark P. says, "Wen they have nusic
pl aying on their indoor stage, the nusic is always
unbear ably | oud and unpl easant inside the

rest aurant."
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A Yes.

Q And on that sane day, it | ooks Renae E.

responded, that's you, correct?

A Yes.
Q You saw this review?
A Yes.

Q And you woul d agree that unlike the
Facebook reviews that we | ooked at earlier, this
reviewis actually only from Septenber of this year?

A Yeah.

Q And in your response related to his
comrent about the atnosphere, this is the second
par agraph, you said, "In terns of the atnosphere, we
know our tall ceilings can sonetines contribute to a
noi si er environnent when it's busy. Wile we
expl ored options for reduci ng sound, the unique
architecture of our space limts what we can do.

That said we are always m ndful of this, and we did
what can to create a confortabl e atnosphere for
everyone." Did | read that correctly?

A Yes.

Q So, you admt that Copper Fire is a noisy

envi ronnment ?

A | never said it wasn't.
Q So, you agree that this is a noisier
888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
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envi ronnent ?

A Absol utely.

Q Ckay. And besides any of the options
we' ve di scussed, because you say in here that
you' ve -- you've discussed or that you've explored
options for reducing sound, what are the -- is there

any other option that we haven't already discussed
today that you have explored for reducing the sound
i nsi de Copper Fire?

MR, PETRUSKA: |'Ill object, vague. You
can answer if you can.

HEARI NG OFFI CER VEBB: (kay.

THE W TNESS: Just hearing suggestions
fromall these sound nusicians and acoustics
guys, sound guys.

Q (By Ms. Robbins) And in this review, the
revi ewer nentions a noise danper. Have you
considered installing a noise danper?

A No.

Q And how you been have m ndful in creating
a confortabl e at nosphere?

A Al the things that we put in place:
sel ective bands, working with our nusicians,
monitoring their sound, not bringing back themif

they're too | oud. Sone people just don't I|ike
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noi se, period. So, | can't fix that. So, | am

m ndful of trying to keep the nusic at a |l evel that
peopl e can hear and enjoy the nusic. W do not have

nmusi ¢ during dinner, unless it's an event day

downtown or a holiday or whatever. But, yeah, |'ve
done everything | can do. 1I've tried to work with
Geri. | have tried to be responsive. | have tried

to followthe law, and | really don't know what el se
| can do.

Q Just to follow up on one thing, you said,
you don't have nusic during dinner. What tinme do
you consi der dinner?

A 4:00 to 7:00.

Q 4:00 to 7:00. But on Wdnesdays and

Thur sdays, there is nusic between 6:00 and 7: 007

A You're right. | m sspoke.
Q Ckay.
A | was thinking weekends.

Q 4.00 to 7:00. And there's nusic that al so
goes until 5:00 p.m nuch on Saturdays and Sundays?

A Yes.

Q So, there are gaps but the tine you
potentially consider dinner could be -- there could
be |ive nusic during dinnertine?

A A der people like 4:00 o' clock, others
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order.
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i ke 7:30.

Q Sone people like 8:30 or 9:00.

A Yeah.

Q Ckay. So, when you're saying dinnertine,
you're referring to those small gaps in the typical
schedul e?

A Uh- huh.

Q | just to wanted to clarify.

A They not small. They're three hours.

MS. ROBBINS: W nove to admt C- 20.
MR, PETRUSKA: No objecti on.
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: C-20 is adm tted.

(Conpl ainants' Exhibit G20 admtted onto the

heari ng record.)
(By Ms. Robbins) Mwving onto G 21
(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit C 21 marked.)
(By Ms. Robbins) This is the Google

W're going to start at the | ast page

Start at the | ast one?

Yeah, the | ast page, so Google 16.

Ckay.

Again, we're going reverse chronol ogi cal

So, this review looks like it's fromfive

years ago. And this reviewer says, "Went to listen

888-893-3767
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to a band, acoustics weren't good. Sound was
echoi ng. "

A Uh- huh.

Q And there's a response from owner, woul d
t hat have been you?

A Yes. Yes.

Q Was t here anyone who was responding to
Googl e revi ews besi des you?

A Maybe the first weeks.

Q Maybe the first few weeks. And
this response fromthe owner, it says, "W're still
trying to work on acoustics.”

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Turning back to Google 15, it's
Gordon Jenkins fromthree years ago.

A Uh- huh.

Q Gordon says, "The food was good. The
music inside was a bit too loud.” In this one,
the response fromthe owner, |ooks like it was
signed by Renae, co-owner, so that's you.

A Uh- huh.

Q So, you wote this response, correct?

A Yes.

Q And, three years ago, you wote
a response, "W have a nax on our |evel and
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sonetinmes the bands ride right at the limt" --

A h.

Q -- "W gauge it based on our custoner,
too, so thank you for your feedback."

A Yes. Three years ago, that would have
been -- those policies were already in place.

Q Ckay. One of those policies. You' re not
sure which version, correct?

A W had a one -- yeah.

Q So, a version of a sound policy was in
pl ace?

A Yes.

Q You're nentioning the sound limts, so

that would be the limts of the decibels in the
policy? |If bands are riding right at the [imt, and
you're getting feedback it's too loud --

A It says a bit too |oud.

Q Ckay. Let's ne repeat ny question: if
bands ride right at the [imt and you' re getting
feedback that it's a bit too loud, isn't the limt
t oo hi gh?

A Who's to nmake that determ nation? | have
to make deci sions based on a mass of people. Not
j ust one.

Q So, you said you gauge it based on
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cust oner feedback, too?

A | do.
Q So, it's correct that sound isn't
sonet hing that just can be set by | ooking at
deci bel s, you also have to listen to your custoners?
A But | can have five hundred people on that
day and | get one --
Q Ckay, but ny question --
A -- that says it's a bit too | oud.
Q My question, Renae, was different. Can
you read back ny question?
(The requested portion of the record read back.)
Q (By Ms. Robbins) It can also be -- sound
Isn't sonmething that you | ook at by just | ooking at
deci bel s? Custoner experience matters as wel | ?
A Sur e.
Q Going to Google 14, Ryan Diggs fromthree

years ago. It says, "The nusic is so |oud inside
even the bartenders can't hear your order.” On this
one, it looks |like you responded as well, Renae,

co-owner, that's you, correct?

A Yes.

Q So, you're aware of this review that says
that the nusic is so loud bartenders can't even hear

you?
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Yes.

Correct?

> O >

| said yes.

Q Ckay. Sorry, | didn't hear your response,
apol ogies. In your response, you say, "So
everythi ng was good except the nusic was too | oud.
| know that drives us crazy because we work with
each group on their sound levels." So, you
acknow edge that sound | evels drive you crazy
soneti nmes, too?

A This was three years ago after |
under st ood nore about what the | aw was, and | was
wor ki ng on ny policies and working with each of the
musi cians. | said exactly what | thought.

Q So, it is sonething you have to work on.
Sound i s sonething you have to work on?

A This is before | knew that we were already
followwng the law. | didn't know, and | wanted to
al ways follow the law. And that's why we put the
policies in place. | knew we had a 55-deci bel
limt. | knew | had to work on that, and | have
been working on that. | feel |ike we've gotten
there. And | don't always believe -- |I'mnot saying
| don't believe these people; |I'mjust saying that

everybody has their own perspective on what's too
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| oud -- | have people that conme up and say turn it

up.
So, | have to make deci sions based on

what | know, which is the law, and that's what |'ve
been doing. That's what -- | do care about what
peopl e think and what they want, but | am never
goi ng to make 100 percent of the people happy. So,
| have to make busi ness deci sions based on what |
know | can or cannot do, so.

Q And | believe you said along in
your response sonething about 55. You said the | aw
Is 55?

A No, | said the buffer is 55.

Q Ch, okay. And you, once again, just to
establish, you're not a | awer; you're not giving a

| egal opinion, correct?

A No, I'm answering based on what | know.
|"mdoing what -- I'mjust doing it -- I'mtrying to
figure it out. I'magetting this over here fromthe

nei ghbor, and I'mtrying to bal ance running a
busi ness.

Q Ckay. You're getting conplaints fromthe
nei ghbor, and you're also receiving reviews --

A Once in a while.

Q Once in a while, but, | nmean, once in a
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while is --
A W see 65,000 people a year.
Q Ri ght. But not --
A Ten bad reviews is nothing.
But not all 65,000 people are witing a
revi ew?

A Correct. But | still have 65,000 people
com ng in.

Q Turning to Google 13.

A 13, okay.

Q Yep, so that's Joshua Showmaker fromtwo
years ago. And this review, "The food and dri nks
are great but the couple of tinmes |I've been here,

t hey' ve had |ive bands playing, which is cool but
they are incredibly loud. MW wife and | sat on the
conpl ete opposite corner of the restaurant fromthe
stage both tinmes we've been there, and we had to

yel|l at each other, waiters, to communicate the

entire time. |It's |loud enough that it's now a
factor to consider when we want -- whether --
considered if we want to go there or not." Is that
correct?

A That's what it says.
Q And t he response from Renae, co-owner,

that's you, correct?
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A Yes.

Q Ckay. So, you're aware that a review cane
In two years ago that said nusic is incredibly |oud?

A Yes.

Q And, in your response, you said, "As mnuch
as we love live nusic, we have a hard tine
controlling the nusicians. The bar is two stories
and the sound | evel travels uncontrollably."

A Uh- huh.

Q Then you said, "W have a nmax deci bel
limt and are installing a cancellation notice to
bands if they not abiding by our rules.”

A That is correct.

Q And you then state, "Hang with us. W
truly listen to our custoners and continue to
| nprove. "

A Yes.

Q And you ask themto join you the tines
that nusic -- that you don't have nusic until, and
think you said, we, "Until we get this under
control ."

A | don't know when two years ago was, but
for 2024, | only hired the bands that | worked with
that are our favorites.

Q But in two years ago which --
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A That is a change | nmade for 2024. | bring
I n new bands, but, yes, | think it shows that | am
trying to figure this out.
Q In two years ago, you would agree that you

said the sound was not under control ?
A Sonet i nes.
Q And have -- what have you done to stop the

sound fromtraveling uncontrollably?

A | can't. It's a two-story building.
Q And the cancellation noise that you
reference in here, is that the band -- you telling

the bands to stop playing?

A Yes.
Q And we established you've done that tw ce?
A Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER VWEBB: May | interrupt for
a nonent? Are you going to go through all of
t hese?

M5. ROBBINS. Yeah, if you want to take a
break after this one, we can.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Okay. |'d like you
to wap up, like, within the next 30 m nutes,

because 1'd like to finish this hearing

tonight. | imagine he has quite a |long, direct
testinony -- exam nation.
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MR JACOBER. W can take a quick break.

HEARI NG OFFI CER VWEBB: You want to take a
break when you're done or right now?
M5. ROBBINS: Just with -- can | just

finish my questions on 13?

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Yes, yes. Finish
your questions yes.

Q (By Ms. Robbins) So, in this post you said
you |listened to your custoners. So, if custoners
continue to conpl ain about the noise, you would
listen, correct?

A Yes.

M5. ROBBINS: kay. W can take a break

NOW.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay.
(Werein, a short recess was taken.)
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: All right. Let's
go back on the record.

Q (By Ms. Robbins) Renae, can you turn to --
in Exhibit 21, turn to Google 4-A. So, it would be
before the prior ones?

A Kendr a?

Q Yeah, Kendr a.

A Ckay.

Q Ckay. So, on 4-A, she says that, "It's an
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obnoxi ously | oud bar."

A Uh- huh.

Q And you responded, if you need to | ook at
4-B to see that it says, Renae, co-owner, at the
bottom that's why the second page just cut off, you
responded that, "This two-story room has been a
beast to control sound."

A Yes.

Q So, you agree that you've had issues

controlling sound at Copper Fire?

A |'ve never said | didn't.

Q And this reviewis from4 nonths ago,
correct?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And can you turn to Google 2? And
there's a 2-A, Band C, and it's nostly because the
review got cut off. |It's Danny H Do you see that?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. At the top of Danny H s review on
the 2-A page, the second paragraph, it says, "They
often have live nusic, but the nusic is always too
|l oud to enjoy it. There's no reason for that kind
of volunme in the mddle of the afternoon.” And you
responded to this, if you go to 2-C you can see that

you responded, saying when the live nusic tines
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were; and in the m ddl e of your paragraph, you say,

"Sonetinmes the nusicians, especially if new,
struggle to get the sound right. Watch the events

and cone at tines we don't have music."”

A Uh- huh.

Q And that was your response to this
revi ewer?

A Yes.

Q What do you nean by struggle to get the
sound right?

A | say especially if new, which | bring in
new but only occasionally, this year | did nostly
our favorites, and people | worked with a long tineg;
but | still try to bring in new nusic. W do work
wth them but they are worked with, and if they
aren't going to cut it, they don't cone back.

Q And in this case, if you | ook at 2-B, the
revi ewer gave an update regarding the nusic, and
says, "l've been to this restaurant nunerous tines.
The food is good. Nearly every tine they'd have
live music and the nusic is", in all caps, "always
too loud. Not sonetines. Always." Owner response
Is not to cone on Wdnesday, Thursdays, Fridays,
Saturday or Sundays because of the live nusic. Do

you see that?
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A Yes.
Q And then going to Google 1. This says
Chire Shepard froma few weeks ago. It says, "The
place is so |oud you couldn't hear people at your
table."
A Ckay.
Q So, as recently three weeks ago, you got

this review and responded at the bottom "W realize
not everyone likes live nusic, try to keep -- and
try to keep everyone inforned as to when we have
live music. Sorry, we aren't the place for you."

A | do.

Q So, you're aware that people have been
conpl ai ni ng about the noise at Copper Fire since you
opened in 20187

A My opinion on this is, |I can't make
everybody happy, and everybody has their own

t ol erance for sound.

Q And you're aware that there are people --
A Yeah.
Q -- who have conpl ai ned about the sound

si nce 20187

A Absol utely.

Q To as recently as just a few weeks?
A Same with our food.
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Q Ckay. And your response is to tell people

to not cone back when live nusic is playing?

A |"'mgiving themoptions. |I'mtelling them
there are so many nore other hours, if you |like our
food, you can cone at tinmes we don't have live
music. We are a live nusic venue.

Q So, your response is if people don't |ike
the live nusic is to cone back when the nusic isn't
pl ayi ng, correct?

A Sur e.

Q Ckay, what if you live next door?

A |"'mnot going to answer that. | don't
know how t o answer that.

M5. ROBBINS: Can you please direct her to
gi ve an answer as to what you should do if you
live next door?

THE WTNESS: | said | don't know how to
answer it. | did answer it.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: She answered it.

Q (By Ms. Robbins) Are you cl osed on Mondays
and Tuesdays?

A Yes.

M5. ROBBINS: Renae, if you just quickly
| ook through the rest of CG21, we're going to

move to admt it. M. Petruska, if you want to
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MR, PETRUSKA: [|'Il stipulate to -- you
can.

M5. ROBBINS: Okay. |It's all one sheet

MR. PETRUSKA: That's fine.
M5. ROBBINS: W nove to admt C 21.
MR. PETRUSKA: No objecti on.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: C-21 is admtted.
(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit C21 admtted onto the
hearing record.)

Q (By Ms. Robbins) Ckay. And throughout the
first day of the hearing, your counsel stated that
Copper Fire is just like other bars and restaurants
in Belleville. Do you renenber that fromthe first
day of the hearing? | specifically think he
menti oned Bennie's Pizza, Margaritas, Tavern on
Mai n, Big Daddy's --

A There's several bars downt own.

Q Ckay. But do you renenber those four
getting nentioned?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And you're aware of all four of
t hese establishnments and where they are | ocated,

correct?
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A Yeah, there's nore than four.

Q But Bennie's Pizza, Margaritas, Tavern on
Mai n, Big Daddy's --

A Yeah.

Q Those are on Main Street within a few
bl ocks - -

A Al'l on the other side of the street.

Q Yeah, across the street but within a few
bl ocks of Copper Fire?

A One bl ock each way.

Q Ckay. So, Bennie's Pizza, we'll start
there, Bennie's Pizza is |located on Main Street
across the street from Copper Fire and just about
hal f a bl ock west, correct?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And Bennie's Pizza sonetines has
bands inside the restaurant; is that correct?

A They usually just have one-to-three person
act s.

Q And you don't think a one-to-three person
act is -- but they have live -- you don't think it's

a band if it's one-to-three people?
A He doesn't have bi g bands.
Q Ckay. So, Bennie's doesn't have big

bands. Are you aware that Bennie controls the
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sounds of his nusicians?

A Wth his house nusic?

Q Are you aware that he controls --

A No.

Q -- the volunme? GCkay. Can you turn to
Exhi bit C 43,

(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit C 43 marked.)

Q (By Ms. Robbins)ls C-43 an i nage on
Bennie's Pizza?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And to the west of Bennie's Pizza,
that's Blanquart Jewelers, right? Blanquart,
B-l-a-n-q-u-a-r-t?

A They were to the west? | thought they

were to the east of them

Q | believe --

A They coul d be, yeah.

Q -- west is when you're |ooking --

A Left.

Q -- left. Copper Fire door faces --

A Oh, yeah, yeah, Margaritas is on the other
side. Yep.

Q Ckay. So, that's a jeweler on that side?

Yes.

Q And | ooking at this inmage, are there any
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residential lofts in this?

A | have no i dea.

Q Ckay. Have you ever been inside the
jewelry store?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. So --

A A lot of these buildings are -- you can
| ook at our building and think it's two stories, and
it's actually four with a basenent. So, a |lot of
these buil dings are deceiving. So, | have no idea
what's inside, above, next to them | have no idea.

Q To the right of Bennie's Pizza is
Margaritas, which is one of the other --

A Yes.

Q -- bars? Oay. And at Bennie's Pizza,
have you ever seen the live acts perform ng? Like
the one-to-three person --

A | can't say that | have.

Q Are you -- are you aware that those live
bands play, if you' re looking at this inmage, on the

front left --

A Yes

Q -- by the w ndow?

A Uh- huh.

Q Ckay. So, if you look at this -- if we
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assune the jewel ers does have not residential units,

and, additionally, to the right is Margaritas, but
there is -- you've been -- sorry, strike that
guestion. You' ve been -- have you been inside
Bennie's Pizza before?

A It's an ol d Panera, yes.

Q So, you've been inside and you' re aware
that once you walk in, kind on the right where the
w ndow ends just past it, is a wall?

A There's an opening to a garage opening
ar ea.

Q And, yeah, that's kind of a second room
over there?

A Yes.

Q So, the bands are playing, or the

performance i s happening, on the far side --

A Yes.
Q -- by the jeweler?
A Uh- huh.

Q Ckay. Then, if you're also | ooking at
this image, Margaritas is the building that we

identified, the tan one just to the right of the

gar age?
A Yes.
Q Isn't it true on the other side of
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Margaritas, to the east, is a vacant commerci al

space?

A | have no idea. Probably.

Q Are you aware that Margaritas hasn't had
any live nmusic in three years?

A They have a DJ.

Q Are you aware that they stopped having
i ve music because the custoners conpl ai ned about
how |l oud it was?

A | did not know that.

Q Are you aware that Margaritas doesn't have
DJs anynore?

A No.

MR. PETRUSKA: |'mgoing -- I'"mgoing to
object to |ack of foundation. Margaritas is
not here. She's just throwi ng things in.

M5. ROBBINS: |'m asking about her
awar eness that she is claimng are just |ike
Copper Fire.

HEARI NG OFFI CER VEBB: You can go ahead.
You can ask it.

Q (By Ms. Robbins) So, are you aware that
Margaritas doesn't have any DJs either anynore?
A No.
M5. ROBBINS: We nove to admit
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any obj ection?
MR, PETRUSKA: No obj ecti on.
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: It is admtted.
(Conpl ainants' Exhibit CG43 admtted onto the
hearing record.)
M5. ROBBINS: kay.
Q (By Ms. Robbins) Renae, can you turn to
C 447
(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit C 44 marked.)
Q (By Ms. Robbins)And is CG44 a picture of
Tavern on Main?

A | guess so, yeah.

A Yes.

Q kay. And Tavern is located on the
corner; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q So, there's nothing to the west of it,
except for Church Street, correct? No building?

A Correct.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: C-43, do you have

Q Ckay. Tavern is located across the street

from Copper Fire and a block to the east, correct?

Page 188

Q On the east of it is the Eye on Design; is
that correct?
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A Yes.

Q Ckay. Are you aware of any residential
units adjacent to Tavern on M n?
A | have no i dea.
Q Ckay. Are you aware, and | think you
m ght have nentioned this earlier, the only live
musi ¢ that Tavern on Main has is single nusicians
that play inside -- they play outside on the patio
or in the bar area?
A That is all that |I'm aware of.
Q And you tal ked about that they have even
i nstall ed sound panels, correct?
A Yes.
M5. ROBBINS: Okay. W nove to admt
C 44.
MR, PETRUSKA: No objecti on.
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: C-44 is admtted.
(Conpl ainants' Exhibit CG44 admtted onto the
hearing record.)
Q (By Ms. Robbins) And then turning to C 45.
(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit C 45 nmarked.)
Q (By Ms. Robbins)ls C-45 is a picture of
Bi g Daddy' s?
A Yes.
Q And Big Daddy's is | ocated across the

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Transcript Of Proceedings November 06, 2024

) ) Page 190
street and to the east of Copper Fire, and it's

actually just on the other side of Eye on Design,
correct?

A Yes.

Q So, that's what's to the west of Big

Daddy's and to the east is Liese Lunber; is that

correct?
A Yes.
Q Are you aware that Liese Lunber is a

comerci al building that takes up the whole
bui | di ng?

A If that's what it is.

Q Ckay. Are you aware that Big Daddy's
doesn't have |live nusic?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Are you aware that they do have
DJs, correct?

A Ri ght .

Q And they control the volunme of the DJ?

A | guess, yeah.

Q So, Copper Fire is the only bar restaurant
on Main Street that has |ive bands playi ng adj acent

to residential space?

A | f you say so.
M5. ROBBINS: | have no further questions
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subject to --

MR. JACOBER: You didn't nove --
M5. ROBBINS: Sorry, | nove to admt G 45.
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: C-45 is adnitted.
(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit CG45 admtted onto the
hearing record.)
M5. ROBBINS: | have no further questions
subject to any Redirect.
CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR PETRUSKA:

Q Renae, what is Live Misic Row?

A It's a group of us that have |ive nusic,
and we post our nusic for the week, every week, on
Facebook, |nstagram and the website.

Q And where are the businesses that are part
of Live Miusic Row?

A It's generally Papa Vito's, which is
behi nd us, us, Bennie's and Venue On Main, which is
on the other side of the Fountain on the 200 bl ock
of West Main.

Q And, so, it's a group of venues that have

live nmusic, correct?

A Yes.
Q It's on Main Street?
A Yes.
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Q And there are also bars that have | oud
musi c, correct?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Do you think Copper Fire fits in
Wi th the surroundi ng busi nesses?

A Yes.

Q | s Downt own Main Street a destination
pl ace for entertai nnent now?

A | woul d say yes.

Q What i s Spaces?

A Spaces is -- | would consider it an event

venue, but they do quite a few pop ups with

entertai nnment inside and outside. They hold

weddi ngs. They hold parties inside and outside, but

they will often participate in the downtown events.
Q Ckay. Do they have | oud nusic com ng from

their event space?

Li ve?

Loud.

> O >

Yes.
Q Ckay. And they're right across the street

fromGeri ?

A Yes.
Q |"mgoing to go through a tineline of
events but before | do that, | want to ask sone key
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poi nts, okay? Wen you found out that, after your

first day, when you found out you actually had
conpl ai nts about nusic comng fromthat, from Geri,
what did you want to have happen?

A | have, |ike, two thoughts, because |
al ready kind of had a history wwth her; but | also
wanted to believe and hope that it was only because
it was our first day, it was St. Patrick's Day, you
know, 20, 000 people downtown that day; and we had
t he Bugle Band cone in, because it was our --
unexpectedly fromthe parade; and | had just hoped
t hat was because of that.

Q Ckay. But after that, you had other
conplaints from Geri about --

A Yes.

Q Ckay. W already went through those
e-mails. |'mnot going to go through themw th you.
At sone point in time, did you ask her can | cone in
your apartnment and hear it?

A Oh, | asked all the tine.

Q How many tinmes? Well, estinmate, estimate.
You don't know exactly.

A 25.

Q Ckay. Did she ever let you in except the

one tinme that we set it up?
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A She let -- | was out of town one day,
flying out of town for work, but Mark was up there.
So, she let Mark in the bottom and |I've only been
up there one other tine in a different -- with a
different attorney, a different |awsuit, where
she -- we had a cease-and-desist, because she said
she could hear -- she wanted us to stop all sound,
all nmusic, TVs, our house sound, which is our
TouchTunes and all bands. And that's when the | ocal
ordi nance was getting reviewed. It was just, |ike,
chaotic, and we had a neeting and tested the
TouchTunes; and we were done with our neeting; but
then Doug called Geri and said he was up there and
he could hear it; so, you said, let's go. So, we
all went up there, and it was you and |, her
attorney and CGeri went up, Doug was up there to
listen to the house sound that was turned up full
blast to see if we could hear sonmething. W did not
hear anything, but that is the one and only tine
|'ve ever been up in that |oft.

Q And ot her tines when she has texted,
you' ve asked to cone over and hear it, right?

A Yes.

Q Do you renenber eventually getting the
sound sanpling fromGeri that Mke did --
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A Yes.

Q -- in the report?

A Yes.

Q Once you got that report, what was your
goal at that point in tinme? So, it explained the
I1linois EPA | aw. What was your goal fromthat
poi nt forward?

A To always be below the allowed Iimts. W
took lots of different steps. | was serious. | am
serious, | still am about always trying to provide

reasonabl e but great |live nusic for our guests and
to mnimze the sound on Geri's side; but | didn't

al ways bel i eve what she was saying was real, because
a lot of tinmes the texts and the timng and all that
didn't make sense.

But even with that, | still always
have tried to keep everything belowthe limt; and
when | read that report, and | thought it was kind
of what | already expected because | had been
tal king to one of our nusicians who is a sound guy,
he said there's definitely a buffer between the
buil dings. | knew there was sone kind of buffer but
that kind of like set it for ne that | knew there
was 55.

And | felt |ike, gosh, at 55 and
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staying in the limts, they could be over 100 and

"' mnot breaking the law. But | still have worked
to keep lowering and lowering it, but there are
ti mes on weekends or whatever and busy events, |
just can't; we're just busy; and people want to hear
the nusic; and I am-- we have becone the nusic
place to go in the netropolitan area, just not
Belleville but St. Louis people. W have a 50-mle
radius that cone to listen to our live nmusic. So, |
took that report, and it has been ny guide basically
totry to follow the | aw.

Q So, your goal has been conpliance, right?

A Al ways.

Q And you | ooked at the standards that were
inthe Illinois EPA, correct?

A | did.

Q Ckay. You eventually hired soneone to do
testing for you, correct?

A Yes.

Q And you found out you were in conpliance?

M5. ROBBINS: bjection. At this point in

time, we've determned that the Illinois EPA

standards pursuant to their summary judgnent

notion aren't relevant to this hearing.

VR. PETRUSKA: Under the Section 33
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factors, the severity of the injury and the

def endant s-respondents' efforts to address the

conplaints are relevant --

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay, all right.

Q (By M. Petruska) So, if you can answer,
t he question was once you found about the
I1linois -- once your expert told you you were in
conpliance, did you still make changes after that?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And you're maki ng changes because?

A Because | want everyone to have a good
experience. | don't want to break the law, and I
certainly don't want to be a nui sance.

Q Ckay. If the standard is, the lawis,
that you annoy CGeri you're breaking the law, can you
conply with that?

M5. ROBBINS: Objection, calls for
specul ati on.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Yeah, | really
don't understand the question.

Q (By M. Petruska) Okay. If the lawis, if
the result of this hearing is that because you have
annoyed Ceri that you have broken the nui sance
standard, is there any way you can conply with that?

M5. ROBBINS: bjection. Calls for
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specul ation. He's msstating the | aw.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Yeah, | don't
really --

M5. ROBBINS: Yeah, and m sstating what we
are claimng --

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: | don't know what
you want her to say really.

Q (By M. Petruska) Wat standard -- what
standard woul d you follow to avoid being a nui sance?

A The | aw.

Q Okay. And that's the objective nunbers in
the law, correct?

A Yes.

Q Qut si de of that, how you woul d avoi d being
a nui sance?

A | don't know. | canme to that conclusion a
long tinme ago. | don't know what | can to satisfy
CGeri's conplaints.

Q kay. And we tal k about sonme of those
texts. Well, | got sone other things |I've got to
cover real quick. You heard fromtheir expert and
your expert that found on her side is 39 or |ower
deci bel s, correct?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. You're okay with that?

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Transcript Of Proceedings November 06, 2024

Page 199
A Yes.
Q What el se happens on Main Street other
than just live venues? Do they have events down
t here?
A Tons.
Q Ckay. So, what kind of events are we
t al ki ng about ?
A Ch, gosh. Sone peopl e close streets down

for class reunions. W've had just the bars and
Belleville Main Street, which is an organi zation a
| ot of us are part of. W have Art and Wne Walk is
comng up this Saturday. W have Margarita Wl ks,
Bl oody Mary's wal k. W had a Pickle Pal ooza this
year. Admttedly, St. Patrick's Day, our
anni versary, favorite day of the year, is our
bi ggest downtown event. [It's one day. W just cane
out of Chili Cookoff. That's two days. QOctober
Fest was before. That's two days. |It's just -- not
every weekend, but it's pretty frequently. At |east
once a nonth, maybe a couple tines a nonth.

Q And how many people show up at |ike the
Chili Cookoff?

A Ch, ny gosh. Thousands. Tens of
t housands.

Q Ckay. St. Patrick's Day?
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A Tens of thousands on a good day. age 20

Q Ckay. It's loud?

A Sur e.

Q At night, when you're playing -- when | oud
music is going on, is there still noise out on the
street?

A Ch, yeah.

Q Li ke what ?

A Mot or cycl es, people, drunks, honel ess,
yeah. Lots of noi ses.

Q And, in your opinion, is Copper Fire
suitable for the area, where it is?

M5. ROBBINS: nbjection, calls for an
expert opinion. She's not an expert on sound
or in properness of the |location. He's asking
for her opinion Iike she's an expert w tness.

HEARI NG OFFI CER VWEBB: \Wat was your
guestion? What the question again?

MR, PETRUSKA: Well, she put the business
there. So, |'m asking her whether she thinks

it's suitable for the environnent.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: | -- you can answer
t hat .
THE WTNESS: Yeah, | love Belleville.
have al ways | oved Belleville. | have two
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business in Belleville and two buildings in

Belleville. 1It's a corner on their downtown

Main Street. It's a staple, and we' ve been

told that. Yeah, | think it's very suitable

for downt own.

Q (By M. Petruska) | want to talk to you
about the steps you've taken to control the noise,

okay? So, let's back that up a second. Back in

you started instituting things? D d you have any
controls in place to control the sound?

A Not really. | didn't know -- | didn't
quite understand or, frankly, believe sone of the
texts; and | just -- it was a little confusing.

Li ke, because | just didn't -- the timng of them

| said earlier, we would get texts -- oh, the
police, oh ny goodness. W got so many calls
from-- police visits to the point where we didn't
even know they were happeni ng, because we weren't
violating what they considered the |aw, which they
foll owed the EPA guidelines. So, there was just a

| ot goi ng on.

Covid, we couldn't be inside but six weeks out of

Page 201

2020, '21, did you have any controls in place before

a

ot of tinmes didn't nmake sense. So, you know, Iike

| was very worried. | did -- during
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the entire year. So, everything was outside. And

| ess then two weeks after we reopened in 2021, it
was February when the state |l et us go back in, we
had the water damage. And all we had was the bar
and |ive music to generate enough revenue to get
t hrough that, and that was a few nonths.
| don't know. | didn't start really

formulizing, because | didn't know exactly what |
was doing wong, until | got that report is when --
well, we were working and goi ng through sone testing
periods wwth her, with the attorneys. But, you
know, we're trying to figure out how bad was it, so
| didn't want to change.

Q Then after you got the report, is that

when you started taking steps --

A Yes.

Q -- to start controlling the noise?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. We've been through this, but |

think it's inmportant to nmake sure it's clear on the
record: initially, were you using a phone app?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Wiat was the purpose of that phone
app? Wre you saying this is scientifically valid?

A No. Just to give us a baseline to -- so,
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we could know how -- if it was out of |ine even

internally.
Q Right. So, fromnight to night, you could

| ook at a nunber?

A Yes.

Q And, basically, the phone was in the sane
position?

A Yes. | always -- everything has al ways
been -- it's hard to explain. Were the band is, is

in the front wi ndow when you walk in to the left.
Strai ght back, and that's the sane wall, against her
bui | ding; and then there's a service station; and
then there's a gam ng room and there's our Kkitchen.
We al ways put any of our decibel readings in the
sane place. In the service station, | have the

deci bel reader up on top so the nusicians can see
it. We put it there for two reasons. Because it's
kind of like the center. Not right up against the
band but not too far in the back, and it's where we
t hi nk maybe her bedroom m ght start. So, we wanted
to be able to nmanage fromthat point.

Q Ckay. And, so, you get a baseline

nunmber - -
A Yes.
Q -- each tinme a band played, correct?
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A Yes.

Q And you were using that not to say
scientifically that was the deci bel level, but to
know what the | evel was?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Wiile nonitoring that, that's how
you initially controll ed bands, correct?

A Right. There was one thing that we had

tried before that, which was noving the band. It
was sonmewhere between right after Covid and -- so,
it had to have been early in 2021, where we -- we

al ways had the nmusic where it is now W noved them
over to the other side thinking, oh, nmaybe, that
will help. No, that's when CGeri bl ew ny phone up
and said everything is worse; everything is worse.
So, we noved them back.

| know there's been di scussion here
t oday about put them over here, put themin the
back. It will just shoot right at her bedroom W
tried to not shoot it. Wat | think happened is
when we noved the band from one wi ndow to the other
wi ndow, it was angled right at her. So, | can't
prove that; |I'mnot scientific, obviously, but she
said it made things worse, so we noved the band back

and to make sure the speakers are not I|ike
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pointing -- they point into the restaurant, not, you

know, meking sure it's not pointing at her.

Q Ri ght .

A So --

Q Ckay. So, tried noving the bands. Then
you tried to nonitor the phone app --

A Yes.

Q -- correct? Just to tell bands when they
were getting too | oud, correct?

A Yes. W already had those spongy things
up around the thing, but Mark did get sone very
| arge sound panels. 2021 is when we built -- that's
when we | aunched our kitchen, but it's also when we
opened our event roomin July that year. So,
there's sound panels there. There are sound panels
up against that wall on the nezzanine. Big ones.
Not just little, puny ones.

Q Ckay. Once you -- after attenpting to
nove the band and havi ng the phone app and things
l'ike that, did you also institute new policies after
that to continue to try to control the sound?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Tell nme about the contracts with
the -- wth the bands that you hired?

A Well, basically, they get tal ked to, and
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they al so have the rules posted there. | worked
with a ot of these bands for so I ong they've
already -- they've already been given all these
things. And | explained earlier howif we had a new
band, they have to set their tab up; and they are
tal ked to about their nusic and their sound. It's
pretty well known in the nusic industry community in
the St. Louis-Illinois area, all the bands seemto
know t hat we have these rules. A lot of them--
|'ve even posted when |I'm | ooking for a band |'I1
say energic but not too | oud or whatever.

| " ve done that before. A lot of them
will come to nme now and just say, hey, | think we'll
be a perfect fit to our place. They know the
acoustics. They think they can be a perfect fit.
W get a lot of contacts that way, too. So, |'m
very -- because it's been so many years in
experiencing this, that we are very selective with
who we are work wwth. Along the way, one of our
bands told us there's probably nothing we could do
ot her than work with our bands. | did ask about how

sound and controlling the sound for them Not one

musician -- a |lot of nusicians said no, no, no,

don't do that. People are going to get angry. It's

not really going to fix the problem They'll just
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go and turn it up. They'll change their side of

things. Yeah. And sonetines it's not even
what ever -- whatever knobs they're turning.
Sonmetinmes it's their m crophone, and we have to have
a conversation with them about their m crophone and
their settings. So, anyway.

Q Then you al so started instituting

policies, and we've already tal ked about two of them

t oday?

A Yes.

Q They were marked as C -- let's see. C 17
and C-18. | also marked an update one from 2024,

and |'mgoing to hand you what's been marked R-37?
(Respondents' Exhibit R-37 marked.)
THE WTNESS: It is not the same in here?
MR. PETRUSKA: It's not in there. This is
R-37. 1'll give you a copy in one second.
HEARI NG OFFI CER VEBB: (kay.
THE W TNESS: Yeabh.
Q (By M. Petruska) That's the nost recent
policy you put in place, correct?
A Yes.
Q Ckay. So, we've heard testinony today
that -- even M ke said, he was in your bar and it

was 95 deci bels at sone point in tine in 2021,
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correct?

A Yes.

Q Has t he sound cone down since then?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. In fact, you've instituted policies
such as R-37 which set | ower nunbers, correct?

A Yes.

Q And just for the record, can you explain

what nunbers are on that policy?

A For Wednesday, Thursday and Sunday
afternoons, 85 to 88. Friday and Saturday, 88 to
92. And | say we realize there may be instances
when the decibel rises above about 95, giving them
sone grace; but we will not tolerate it to be above
95 for long and expect you to adjust inmmediately if
asked.

Q Ckay. Now, the 85 to 88, you heard M ke
say that three decibels is not really recognizabl e,
right?

A But six is.

Q And M ke said 85 is the nunber you shoul d
be at, right? Has Geri conpl ai ned when you' ve been
at 857

M5. ROBBINS: bjection, calls for

specul ation. They haven't established that she
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measured the sound at the exact nonent that

Ms. Boyer conpl ai ned.
THE WTNESS: Yes, she's conpl ai ned --
M5. ROBBINS:. You bl ocked her phone nunber

THE WTNESS: But we did --

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Do you know - -

MR, PETRUSKA: 1'Il -- I"Il establish it.

HEARI NG OFFI CER VWEBB: Yeabh.

MR, PETRUSKA: Let ne just ask the
question then I'll lay a foundation.

HEARI NG OFFI CER VEBB: (kay.

Q (By M. Petruska) Have you -- had Ceri
conpl ai ned to you about sound when the deci bel |evel
i n your place was bel ow 85?

A Yes.

Q | want -- at this point, go back to that
June -- what nunber is this for you?

M5. ROBBINS: C 11.
MR. PETRUSKA: G 11.

Q (By M. Petruska) Okay. So, this is C11,
the text nessages?

A Yes.

Q June 11lth, is a special date. Do you

remenber why it's a special date?
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A |s that the day -- hold on. |Is the day --

can you tell which page?
Q |"'msorry, it's on the first page of it.
A Ch, the very first page. June 11th.
Q Do you renenber the three-week test period

that we set up?

A Yes.

Q When did the three-week test period end?

A That Fri day.

Q Ckay. And what happened on that Friday?

A You sent them-- you sent thema letter
saying this is great. W -- it's been three weeks.

We didn't get any conplaints. Everything nust be
good and the conplaints just started.

Q But June 11th, we started getting texts?

A Li ke crazy.

Q We' ve been through those texts, but then
also -- I"mgoing to hand you what's been narked
R-24 and R-25.

(Respondents' Exhibits 24 and 25 marked.)

Q (By M. Petruska) Okay. Can you tell ne
what R-24 and R-25 are?

A This woul d have been when | got a
conplaint fromGeri and was texting with one of ny

staff or managers at the tinme to give ne screenshots
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of the decibels of what was going on while I was

getting a conplaint.

Q And what's on -- on R-24, first page,
what's the deci bel reading on the app?

A 83. 8.

Q What's the -- on the second page of that,
what's the deci bel reading?

A 85. 9.

Q On the third page, R 257

A 80. 5.

Q Were you getting those when Geri was
conplaining to you?

A Yes.

Q That's the reason you got them right?

A Yes.

Q Do you believe there's anything you can do
to satisfy Geri?

M5. ROBBINS: (bjection, calls for
specul ati on.

HEARI NG OFFI CER VEBB: You can answer it.

THE W TNESS: No.

Q (By M. Petruska) There's been di scussion
about you putting up, you know, sound panels and
things like that. Has Geri ever agreed that if you
did that, she'd drop this?
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A No.

Q And woul d you do that w thout her saying

t hat ?

A Never .

Q Because if you spent noney, what woul d
happen?

M5. ROBBINS: bjection, calls for

specul ation?

MR. PETRUSKA: \What do you think woul d
happen?
THE WTNESS: It still -- it still

woul dn't end.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Were these from

June 11t h?

MR. PETRUSKA: Those texts are from

June 12th, | believe.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay. Are Exhibits

R-24 and R-25 from June 12t h?

MR PETRUSKA: Yes.
HEARI NG OFFI CER VWEBB: (kay.

Q (By M. Petruska) W have a text nessage
exchange between yourself and Geri on June 12th on
page 2, correct? O the text nessages?

A That's where it starts, yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: And this is 20217
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MR. PETRUSKA: Yes.
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay.

Q (By M. Petruska) Have there been other
tinmes that's she contacted you about excessive noise
and it's been, according to your reader, 85 or
around that nunber?

A Yes.

Q You saw M ke's testing where that, you
know, where at 33 decibels in her apartnent and if
you add the 55 to themthat's 88 and still hearing

music, right?

A Yes.
Q Do you renenber in one of these texts
where CGeri said to you, |I'mnot going for |ow noise,

"' m going for no noise?
A Yes.

Q Can you have no noise?

A No.

Q Can your business survive with no noise
st andar d?

A | don't think so.

Q You nentioned the police reports and them
comng to you. | just want to cover it in kind of a
summary fashion here. These are -- handing you R-14

t hrough R-18.
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(Respondents' Exhibits R-14, R-15, R 16, R 17 and

R- 18 marked.)

Q (By M. Petruska)Do you recall getting
t hese copies of these reports?

A Yes.

Q And do you recall the police comng and
checking the nature of the conplaint?

A | actually didn't know about all of them
| only knew of a couple of themuntil | asked to see
all of them

Q And did the police ever tell you that you
were in violation of the | aw?

A No.

Q And was that relevant to your decision
making in this case?

A Absol utely.

MR, PETRUSKA: Wile |I'mthinking about
it, I would like to nove to admt R-37, which

Is the 2024 policy.

M5. ROBBINS: No objection.
MR. PETRUSKA: And | would like to nove to

admt R-24 and R-25.

M5. ROBBINS: Those are --
MR. PETRUSKA: The pictures.
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: The screenshots.
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M5. ROBBINS: W just put an objection on

the record to the extent they're being used as
some kind of scientific statenent as what the
deci bel reading was, but to the extent that
iIt's just notice on a cell phone app, no
obj ecti on.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay, noted. So
R-37 is admtted, and R- 24 and R-25 are
adm tted.

(Respondents' Exhibits R-24, R-25 and R-37 adm tted
onto the hearing record.)
MR. PETRUSKA: One second. Sorry, a page
di sappeared. Here we go.
Q (By M. Petruska) So, explain to ne how
you ended up with this building in the first place?
A My nother -- ny nom ny brother and |
bought it in 2009, | believe.

Q After you bought it, did Geri conplain
about sonet hi ng?

A Ri ght after we bought it, our large -- the
fourth floor tenant abruptly clai med bankruptcy, so
it was on the market to | ease, and CGeri actually

| ooked at it, but those negotiations went nowhere;

because she was in a | ease sonewhere else. |t was
right after that, we got a call at -- it was
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actually nmy uncle had to cone and tell nme that we

got a conplaint fromher, that our fire escape was
an eyesore and that it needed to be taken down and
cl eaned up.

Q kay. Did she follow up on that conpl ai nt
wth the Gty?

A | took care of it. | cleaned up the fire
escape.

Q In 2014, did sonething happen with the
bui | di ng?

A She wanted to -- first, she wanted to buy

the back lot, and then the conversation, e-mails,
turned quickly to, I want an easenent; and |I'mlike,
| was somewhat confused, |ike, what do you want?
And then she wanted -- said sonething about a
storage shed; and then it went to, |'mputting a

deck on and | need to attach it to your buil ding.

And | said, hey, you know, | don't own the building
by nyself. | need to get approval from ny brother
and ny nom | said, you know, ny brother's a
contractor; you're -- she's an engi neer.

| " mthinking, can we have the plans

so ny brother can review it? She got very upset,

and I was just -- | sincerely -- | was going to help
her. | wasn't saying no. | was saying | can't nake
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that decision by nyself. | just need to show ny

brot her and ny nom what you're wanting to do, like

iIf you' re going to poke a hole in our building or

not. She cane back and said, nope, |'ve got this
figured out. | can do this wthout attaching to
your wall; but, in the end, she built these decks

they're beautiful, but they're on our property and
two of her pillars; and she nust -- whoever did the
construction nust have punctured a cistern where one
of her bases of her deck pillars are on our

property. Now, that's sinking, so we've got sone

ongoi ng i ssues with that.

Q Ri ght .
A But she really had no regard to ne at, you
know, saying -- not being able to give her that

deci sion but then just doing it anyway.

Q So, she asked your perm ssion and then
just did it anyway?

A Correct.

Q Qui znos was on that first floor. D d
sonet hi ng happen at the Qui znos once?

A Yes.

Q What happened?

A My brother called ne one day because his

foreman was standing in line. At the tine, Mke
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Barron (sic) who owned -- who had the Qui znos

franchi se, owned us a lot of noney. | filed a |ien.
He was nmaki ng paynents, and Geri and M ke were, |
guess, comm serating about me; and she called ne the
C word publically while nmy brother's foreman was in
line. He called ne to let me know, and | was, |iKke,
nothing | can do about that. It was ny real
I ndi cation how she publically did not care for ne.

Q In 2016, why did you cone up with the idea
of Copper Fire? Did sonething happen with Qui znos?

A Yes, they went bankrupt. They shut down
unexpectedly, and Junction Coffee only had, like, a
nmont h-to-nonth | ease, no commtnment. So, that's
when we were |ike we got get this space filled. W
decided -- there was actually -- there was a
restaurant that was interested in potentially going
there, but we didn't think it was a good fit for
downtown. Didn't think our neighbors would like it,
so we decided to do what was supposed to be just a
shotgun small bar on the Quiznos side and ended up
turning into Copper Fire.

Q Ckay. Wen you cane up with the plan for
Copper Fire being nore than just a shotgun bar, did
you have to go in front of a commttee?

A Yes, we did.
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Q Who served on that commttee?

A The Redevel opnent Comm ttee was run by
Geri .

Q kay. Did-- so, was it -- did you tell
Geri that you were planning on opening a destination
venue?

A So, the mayor -- we had neetings with the
mayor and everything had to be presented and then
run in front of people at city hall and sone of
these commttees. Yeah, the nmayor was actually, at
the tine, very excited about it and |oved the idea
of having a destination -- that was exactly the term
used when we went in and said that we were doing
this. That we wanted to be a destination.

Q And, now, it's 2024, do you believe you' ve
becone that destination venue?

A | do. | do.

Q W' ve already tal ked about the 2017
incident. I'mgoing to skip that. 2018, you opened
on whi ch day?

A St. Patrick's Day.

Q Did you get a conplaint fromGeri?

A Yes.

Q Shortly thereafter, she brought in the

mayor, correct?
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A Well, | got an e-mail coordinating a

meeting, and she had al ready coordinated it and
said, basically, hey, the mayor is free on this
date, like -- which was a little, |like, what? So,
t hi ngs were happening that | didn't even know were
happening with her and the mayor, all of a sudden
we're getting like called into a neeting.

Q Your brand new busi ness, a couple nonths
ol d.

A Brand new.

Q 2021, you receive a cease-and-desi st
letter; is that correct?

A | did.

Q kay. That was just froman attorney. It
wasn't |ike a court order or anything?

A Correct.

Q And the demand was that you stop all nusic

i ncl udi ng house nusic, correct?

A Yes.

Q Do you have any idea why house nusic was
I ncl uded?

A No.

Q And have we since | earned house nusic
plays no role in this, whatsoever?

A Just like the exposed brick we didn't
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have.

Q Did you al so get additional conplaints
from Geri beyond noi se?

A About ny staff and cigarette butts and
foul |anguage fromnmny staff, yeah.

Q And then we have the barrage of police
reports all fromGeri, correct?

A Yeah.

Q And she's texting you conpl ai ni ng about
noi se, correct?

A Yes.

Q And woul d she ever let you cone in and
I nvestigate it?

A No.

Q Tell nme what you know about the noise
ordi nance, the new Belleville noise ordi nance t hat
was put in place. Wlat did you hear about it?

A There was al ways an ordi nance in pl ace.
The -- he was not the chief of police at the tine
but he is now, cane to ne and said, there are, you
know, your neighbors, you know, cannot help --

M5. ROBBINS: nbjection, hearsay.
THE WTNESS: Well -- Ckay.
MR. PETRUSKA: The chief of police already

testified to this so | think --
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HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: |s it what he
testified to?

M5. ROBBINS: It is still hearsay --

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: It is hearsay. Can
you ask the question --

MR, PETRUSKA: No --

(Court reporter clarification.)

MR, PETRUSKA: |f the witness has al ready
testified to the fact, it's not hearsay. |It's
al ready been testified to.

M5. ROBBINS: It's still hearsay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER VWEBB: | still don't
recall of --

M5. ROBBINS: Yeah, we don't have a
transcript of every last word that he said, but
to the extent that she's -- the witness was
here and he testified about what was said; but
she doesn't just get to reiterate and bring in
hear say about what he sai d.

MR, PETRUSKA: It's an out-of-court
statenent nmade by a declarant --

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ask -- what was
your question again?

MR, PETRUSKA: | asked what she knew about

t he new noi se ordi nance. That's what | asked.
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peopl e that got together to -- but

how -- |let us be the |iai son.

So, it all boiled to down to,

you have any reason to believe that Ceri

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: \What she knew about
t he new ordi nance? Ckay, you can answer what

you knew about the new noi se ordi nance.

THE WTNESS: | purposely stayed out of
t hose final discussions, because | didn't
want -- | didn't want to be the reason or have

any influence on what changes got made. This

was all through Geri. There were a bunch of

to that was a whole | ot of chaos between ne and
the other bars. Bar owners very angry at ne
because, you know, of Geri's conplaints. The

police were comng to ne, wanting to, |ike,

redoing the all already in place noise

ordi nance for Belleville, which was really

close to the EPA's. | think they ended up just

changing -- | don't even know t he exact

changes.

Q (By M. Petruska) | won't ask that.

A Yeah.

Q | won't ask that. The chief has already
testified about that. [1'Il let it sit at that. Do

Page 223

what | ed up

you know,

has wal ked
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by the outside of Copper Fire and then conplained to

you about the noise?

A Yeah, it's in a couple texts.

Q kay. And that would be what | have
marked as R-4, which --

MS. ROBBINS: G 11.

Q (By M. Petruska) C 11, right? Correct?

A Yes, and there would be so many tines |
woul d be in the bar with the nusic going, and |
woul d see them either com ng back from anot her pl ace
or wal king their dogs or sonething, walk by and then
we got the conplaint.

Q (By M. Petruska) Ckay. Can you turn to
C -- page 3 of G117

A Do | go -- okay. Yes.

Q It's starts at the top, but I want you to
| ook at the last text at the bottomthere. Can you
read that for nme?

A This is Geri. She said, "I wal ked by and
It could be heard to the other side of Main Street
wi th doors closed. That's a |lot |ouder than the
music we tested and couldn't hear in loft." So,
that's tal king about the TouchTunes. "Just take it
down a little nore, you know, everyone can hear it

and it will be even nore enjoyable."
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Q So, she is literally wal king by your rage 2
rest aurant - bar and conpl ai ni ng, correct?

A Yes. It was also like -- yeah, it was
just --

Q Your -- we tal ked about |ive nusic five
days a week, correct?

A Yes.

Q Let's make it clear: we already said the
hours but Wednesday is from when to when?

A 6:00 to 9:00 p. m

Q VWhat tine do you open on Wdnesdays?

A 11: 00 a. m

Q VWhat tinme do you cl ose?

A 10: 00 or 11:00.

Q And Thur sday, what tine do you open?

A Sane exact hours as Wednesday.

Q When did you have |ive nusic?

A 6:00 to 9:00 p. m

Q And then Friday, what tine do you open?

A 9:00 a. m

Q VWhat tine does live nusic start?

A 8:00 p.m, unless it's the day after
Thanksgi vi ng.

Q Do you renenber that you have these noise
standards from 88 to 85, do you renenber Ceri
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testifying she can't even go hone to her apartnent

during that tinme frane?

A Yes.

Q You' re doing everything that you can to
control the noise even |ower than you do all

weekends, right?

A Wednesdays and Thursdays are generally a
sol o, maybe a duo. | nean, very light, |ow nusic.
Q | s that one of the reasons you' re having

difficulty understanding the conplaints in this

case?

A Yes.

Q Because you have | owered the sound, right?

A Uh- huh, yes.

Q They said turn it down. You've turned it
down?

A Yes.

Q And the conplaints don't stop?

A Yes.

Q Has your -- how has Copper Fire been doing
as a business from 2018 to now?

A W were terrible in 2018. That first year
was horrible. The second year, we did better. The
third year was Covid. The fourth year was water

damage, but then we had a new kitchen and the second
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fl oor event room and we've just continued to keep

gr ow ng.
Q During your deposition, you were asked

whet her you' re maki ng any noney or anything |ike

t hat ?
A Yeah.
Q Are you nmaki ng any noney yet?
A | feel |ike we've been maki ng noney, even

if it doesn't look like we're cash flowing well. |
mean - -

Q Expl ain that for ne.

A Yeah, it's a business. 1It's ny second
busi ness. My husband and | had to have this
conversation before, where when even if you have a
nortgage or a loan on it, tone, | feel like you are
maki ng noney when you can -- even if you just break
even because you're paying your debt, you're paying
the bills. So, to nme, you're gaining collateral,
and this is a business that's been an investnent. |
don't ever do anything like get rich quick kind of
thing. Everything | tend to do is a long-term
i nvestnent, so |'ve been very conmtted to Copper
Fire and trying to turn it around as a business. |
feel like it's always a work in progress, but it is

ni ght and day what we are today versus what we were
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even two, t hree years ago.

Q And you said 65,000 --

A Yeah.
Q -- attendees each year?
A M ni num

Q Do people tell you they |ove the
envi ronnent at Copper Fire?
M5. ROBBINS: nbjection, hearsay.
HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: You can answer it.
THE WTNESS: Yeah, | hear it. | see the
conplaints. | see, you know, the foot traffic

Is what tells nme if we're doing sonething right

or W ong.

Q (By M. Petruska) Because if no one |iked
the environnent, you wouldn't have 65, 000 peopl e?

A That's right.

Q Ckay. You nentioned in your policies
about being short staffed fromtinme to tine. Are
you still short staffed?

A No.

Q (kay. That was a Covid issue, right?

A Total ly.

Q Just took a while to get past it?

A We had our first call off last week in

i ke over a year and a half. W're really well
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st af f ed.

Q | f you're asked to turn the nusic down t
85 deci bels, would you be able to have nusic on
weekends?

M5. ROBBINS: (bjection, calls for
specul ati on.

HEARI NG OFFI CER VWEBB: What do you nean

MR, PETRUSKA: [|'Il rephrase.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay.

Q (By M. Petruska) You have been nonitori
the sound in your restaurant-bar for quite sone
time, correct?

A Yes.

Q You know what it's like to be at 85, 88,
accordi ng to your baseline on Wdnesday and
Thur sday, correct?

A Correct.

Q Coul d you use that sound on Friday and
Sat ur day?

A No. We would be out of business, in ny
opi ni on.

Q The exanpl es that have cone up in this
case about certain bands being | oud, would you
say -- in 2021, was it nore like the WIld Wst for
whi | e?

Page 229
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A Yes.

Q Ckay. And you' ve been doi ng everyt hing
you can since then to bring it down?

A Yes.

Q kay. Wlfe & Nation, that band in
particul ar?

A Yeah.

Q But when they showed up -- and they had a
video of themfrom May of 2021. Do you happen to
remenber that?

A Yeah.

Q Ckay. They showed up with sonme pretty big
speakers, right?

A He t hought he was a rock star.

Q And even |i ke Bennie and others were
| ooking at the size of the speakers -- you tell ne,
what comments did you hear about Wl fe & Nation?

A Ch, yeah.

M5. ROBBINS: bjection, hearsay.

THE WTNESS: Well, | -- okay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: \What coments - -

M5. ROBBINS: Hearsay. Yeah, what
coments did you hear from ot her peopl e about
the band. That's hearsay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Well, | nean,
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you're using it to show what?

MR, PETRUSKA: Lessons |earned. Lessons
| ear ned.

HEARI NG OFFI CER VWEBB: You can go ahead
and answer.

THE WTNESS: That was around the whol e
ordi nance tinme, too, | believe. Yeah, the
bands, the other bar owners were being very
critical, and they would make comments, IiKke,
i f our band had too big of speakers that | was
doi ng sonething wong. Like | was trying to
hurt Geri, and that was just not the case.

Wl fe & Nation, though, they were hard to
control, and we haven't have them back in --
since an outdoor performance a few years ago.

Q (By M. Petruska) Even at that tine, 2021

A Yeah.
Q -- after that incident, you tried to have
outside, right?

A Ri ght .
Q As part of the solution?
A Yeah.

Q And you're still doing things to try to

address it?
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A Yes.

MR. PETRUSKA: That's all the questions |
have.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Before we nove on
to you, | just want to ask: you did not nove to
admt R-14 through R 187

MR, PETRUSKA: Yes, | did not.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay. And R-4 was
just C 117

MR. PETRUSKA: Yes, | believe it is. Let
me make sure.

M5. ROBBINS: The text nessages.

MR. PETRUSKA: Yeah, the text nessages.
The sane one on there --

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay, that's -- go
ahead.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY M5. ROBBI NS:

Q (By Ms. Robbins) | just have a few
foll owup questions, Renae. At the start,
M. Petruska |listed a few venues: Papa Vito's,
Benni e's, Venue On Main and Spaces. Do you know any
of these bars have residential units directly
adj acent to thenf

A | have no i dea.
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Q Ckay. And isn't it true that Spaces,
which is the venue you tal ked about across the
street is only open about once per nonth?

A Not in the sumrer. |In the sumer, they're
open quite frequently.

Q What's quite frequently?

A Every weekend.

Q And what about in the winter? Are they
only open --

A Speci al events.

Q And you said during your testinony when
M. Petruska was asking you questions, is it true
that you believe the nusic in Copper Fire could,
quote, "be over 100 decibels", and you woul d be
conpliant with the | aw?

A There's a 55 deci bel --

Q It's a yes or no question?

A | have to do the math.

Q Ckay.

A 100 m nus 55? Yes, | believe | would be.

Q And are you aware that the Illinois EPA
standards only |ist standards and decibel limts for
out si de noi se?

A | am

Q And woul d you agree that the live events
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in Belleville do not occur every night, correct?

A | didn't say they did.

Q And they're not five nights per week |ike
the live nusic at Copper Fire?

A No.

Q And you're aware that the Boyers did not
bring the | awsuit because of the one-day events but
because of the nusic at Copper Fire, correct?

A | thought they brought it because they
coul d hear sound on their side of the wall.

Q And they brought this |awsuit agai nst
Copper Fire that's on the other side of the wall,
correct?

A Correct.

Q And going back to R-24 and R-25, those
were the pictures of the cell phone --

A Yes.

Q This was back -- this is just using a cell
phone app, correct?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And that's not a calibrated
application, correct? You listened to -- let ne
clarify. You listened to M. Biffignani tal k about
hi s sound assessnents and what he does to calibrate

the systens. You don't do anything to calibrate the
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i Phone app, correct?

A It was funny because he actually said one
time -- he uses his phone and then when he was asked

shoul d we use the phone, he said absolutely not.
So, that was all we had as a baseline, and even your
sound guy said he uses his phone app for deci bel
reading. So, that is what we decided to use as our
baseline to at | east establish what works in our
space.

Q And you woul d agree that cell phone app is
not cali brated?

A | have no idea. |'mnot a scientist.

Q And you nentioned that Copper Fire is a
desti nati on venue, and you tal ked about the
Redevel opnent Board neeting. Isn't it true that
Copper Fire was al ways presented as a restaurant,
not a nusic venue to the Redevel opnent Board?

A |"'mnot sure how a restaurant all by
Itself becomes a destination.

Q But isn't it true that it was presented as
a restaurant not a nusic venue to the Redevel opnent
Boar d?

A It was presented as a bar and restaurant,
but you do not becone a destination just based on

your cold beer or your burger.
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Q So, you agree that it was presented as a
bar and restaurant to the Redevel opnent Board?
A The downtown is all about entertainnent.
Q My question was, you agree --
A | don't know if we tal ked about it or not.

| really don't know. But we had nusic on the very
first day wth a DJ and then sonebody fromthe band.
So, there was never any doubt that we weren't going
to have nusic.

Q You tal ked about inplenenting these
policies and | essons | earned, but it's true that,
you know, within the |last few nonths you responded
to a review saying that the two-story room has been
a beast to control for sound?

A Sure. It's loud with people.

Q And you woul d agree that different people
have different tol erances for sound?

A Absol utel y.

M5. ROBBINS: | have no further questions.
RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR PETRUSKA:

Q The R-24 and R-25, you know that sound in
Copper Fire has been |ouder than that, correct?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Because you used that app all the
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time?

A Yes.

Q So, based sed on ot her noise, nusic,
I nside the Copper Fire, you know that's |ow for
Copper Fire, correct?

A Yes.

Q Yet you're still getting conplaints from

Geri even at that |ow |evel ?

A Yes.

Q That's really the point. That's all |
wanted to make. Thank you.

M5. ROBBINS: No further questions.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay, | think we're
done with this witness. Thank you.

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay. D d you have
anything further to present as part of your
case?

MR. JACOBER: W have no further
W t nesses.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay. No further
exhi bits?

MR JACOBER: No, | think we admtted all
of our exhibits.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay. Al right,
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does -- do the Respondents have anything

further they would like to present today?

MR. PETRUSKA: No, | rest.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay. |'ll just
make sone cl osi ng announcenents. The
transcript is expected by Novenber 21st and
wi |l be posted on the Board' s website.

Exhi bits nust be filed electronically within
five days, pursuant to section 101.627 of the
Board's procedural rules. The public comrent
deadl i ne i s Novenber 20th. Any public comrent
must be filed in accordance with section

101. 628 of the Board's procedural rules.

The Conpl ai nants' brief is due by Decenber
18t h and the Respondents' brief is due by
January 24th and Conpl ai nants' reply, if
anything, is due by February 7th. Wuld
anybody |i ke to nake a cl osing argunent today?

MR. PETRUSKA: | have one. | want to make
a notion for directed verdict but I know you're
not going to grant that one, but I want to put
it on the record.

HEARI NG OFFI CER VWEBB: (kay.

CLOSI NG STATEMENT BY MR, PETRUSKA:
MR. PETRUSKA: That the notion for summary
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j udgnent has al ready established that she was

in conpliance wwth the law. W al so know t hat
t he deci bel |evels, based on their expert,
hinsel f, is below 40. | believe based on that,
to find a nui sance based on those objective
nunbers woul d be an unconstitutionally vague
application of the | aw and cannot be enforced
by this board. That with those objective
nunbers, anyone, anyone, can file a conpl aint
agai nst their neighbor and just say it bothers
me, and then you end up with a nui sance. And
if that's the law, it's wong and it's
unconstitutionally vague and wll not be
enforced on appeal .

So, that's ny argunent. | think a
di rected verdict should be granted by the
Board; | realize it's not; but it should be
granted by the Board because we have enough
I nformati on now to know that this cannot
possibly qualify as a nuisance. Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Whuld you like to
make cl osing statenents today?

MR. JACOBER: No, we'll reserve our
cl osing argunents for the briefing.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay.
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MR JACOBER: | did want to ask one
clarifying point, what you just went through:
the exhibits within five days; is that as of
t oday?

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Unh - -

MR JACOBER O --

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Tonorrow woul d be

day one, so.

we woul d submt our exhibits in conjunction

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Yes,
el ectronically.
MR. JACOBER: Electronically, with our

brief, or electronically with our --

within five days fromtoday.

MR. JACOBER: Cot it.

the exhibits, the only ones that we admtted.

Not all exhibits.

elther admtted -- were there ones that were
of fered but not admtted?

M5. ROBBINS: There was one offer of

Page 240

MR. JACOBER: kay. | had envisioned that

with our brief, but you want them submtted --

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: No, electronically

MR, PETRUSKA: Just to be clear, you want

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: The ones that were
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pr oof .

MR. JACOBER: Yeah, there was one of proof

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Oh, okay, yes.
Then that one al so, and that goes to Don Brown,
the clerk of the Board. Not to ne.

MR. JACOBER: kay, and | think because of
t he nunber of exhibits and then sone of them
are the videos and sone sound files, they're
pretty big, is it okay if we |oad everything
into a box.comfile and provi de downl oad
I nformati on?

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: The best person to
speak to about that woul d be Don Brown.

MR, JACOBER:  Ckay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: | don't know.

MR JACOBER: We'll call M. Brown.

MR. PETRUSKA: He told nme a junpdrive
woul d work, too.

MR. JACOBER: Oh, just FedEx a junpdrive?

MR. PETRUSKA: Yeah.

MR JACOBER. Ckay, we can do that, too.

HEARI NG OFFI CER WEBB: Ckay. So, at this
time, I wll conclude the proceedi ngs, and we

stand adj ourned. Thank you all.
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(Ending tinme of the hearing: 04:00 p.m
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) ) ) Page 243
|, Colin Wallis, in and for the State of

M ssouri do hereby certify that the w tness
whose testinony appears in the foregoing

Exam nati on Under Gath was duly sworn by ne;
that the testinony of the said w tness was
taken by ne to the best of ny ability and
thereafter reduced to typewiting under ny
direction; that | am neither counsel for,
related to, nor enployed by any of the parties
to the action in which this exam nation was
taken, and further that | amnot relative or
enpl oyee of any attorney or counsel enployed by
the parties thereto, nor financially or

otherw se interested in the out cone of the

SANRY N

within and for the State of M ssouri
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